


GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL

VVho VVe Are We are public rcal estate investment compan traded on NASDAQ Ow common

stock trades under he symbol GOOD Our three classes ot preferred stock trade under the symbols uOODN

GOODO and GOODI3 respectively We pay monthy distributions to our stockholders

What We Do As real estate investment trust or klf we seek to invest in and on net leased

industrial commercial and retail real estate properties and to selectively make long term industrial and

commercial mortgage loans We own 73 properties
located in 21 states totaling approximately 7.1 million

square
feet of rental space These properties

consist of office warehouse industrial commercial medical

retail and manufacturing facilities

Our principal investment objectives are to generate
cash from rents so that we can make monthly distributions

to our stockholders Our primary strategy achieve our investment objectives is to invest in and own

diversified portfolio of leased industrial coomercial and retail real estate Lhat we believe will produce stable

cash payments to us and increase in value os er time We expect to sell some ot our real estate assets from

time to time when we determine that doing so would be advantageous lAe also expect to occasiona ly make

mortgage loans secured by income producing commercial industrial or retail real estate which ma have

some form of equity participation

Our Adviser We are managed by Gladstone Management Corporation our Adviser whose principal

office is located at 152t Westbranch Drive McLean Viiginia 22102 suburb ofashington DC Our

Adviser also has offices in New York New York Chicago Illinois and Los Angeles California
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

IX Iai housand Is reD Share An nuns

OPERATING DATA
Total operating revenue

Total operating expenses

Other expenses

Inconi from contmumg operatns
Discontinued operations

Net income

Dividends attributable to preferred stock

Din idends attributable to senior common stock

Net income available to common stockholders

SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA
Larnings per weighted average cnmninn share basic and diluted

Income from continuing operations net of dividends attributable

to
pi

eferred stock

Discontinued operations

Net income as ailable to common stockholderu

Weighted average shares outstanding basic

Weighted as erage shares outstanding diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

Net income available to common stockholders

Real estate depreciation and amortization including

discontinued operations

ess Gain on sale of real estate net of taxes paid

Funds from operations available to common stockholders

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred dividends

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Real estate before accumulated depreciation

total assets

Mortgage notes payable term Iran and borross ings under the

line of credit

Total stockholders equity

lotal common shares outstanding

Cash Distributions Pe Share

of Common Stock

43976 41928 42609 40807 32690

21 270 23414 20541 19364 15791
16992 13586 17668 16570 10941

5714 4928 4400 4873 5958

201 40 182

5714 4928 4603 4913 6140

4094 4094 4094 4094 4094
62 20

1558 814 509 819 2046

015 0.09 0.04 0.09 0.22

0.02 0.01 0.02

0.15 0.09 0.06 0.10 0.24

8576 8563 8565 8565

8601 8563 8565 8565

1.50 1.50 1.50 0.44
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For the year ended December 31

2011 20l0 2009 2008 2007
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44252 9401017 8390754 8390562 9340500

$453147 9410609 9416865 9429099 9178903

8304050

$135314

10945

$286595
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$118451

8563
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

2011 was year of good growth Highlights for the year include increasing our portfolio of

properties completing two common stock offerings and obtaining mortgages for our properties

The increase of debt and equity capital enabled us to continue our growth We are pleased with

our results in 2011 and are excited about the prospects for 2012

OPERATING RESULTS

During the year we invested $54.6 million in seven new

pioperties at weighted average capitalization rate over

thc life of the leases of 9.14o We also assumed or issued

$3 million in mortgages to finance portion of the new

properties at weighted average interest rate of S.80o We

currently nwn 73 prnperties
which are located in 21 states

and these properties have 56 tenants in 17 industries All

properties are triple net properties in which the tenart

pays for most if not all the building expenses

We continued to focus on maintaining our portfolio and

orking with our existing tenants to extend the few leases

that are scheduled to mature in 2012 and 2013 At year end

all of our existing tenants have paid as agreed and our

portfolio was 980o leased We have two buildings without

tenants but are working hard on finding new tenants for each

We have mortgage debt in the aggregate principal

amount of $4.4 million payable during 2012 and $58.5 ruil ion

payable during 2013 We have no mortgage maturities in

2012 The mortgage payments due in 2012 are only prindpal

amortization payments and se have sufficient liquidity

to pay these amounts Of the principal payable in 2013

$53.9 million is the final payment of principal that is due in

the fourth quarter of 2013 We are currently in discussions

with those lenders and anticipate being able to extend the

maturity dates or retinance the mortgages with new lenders

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Our 2011 Funds from Operation or 110 was

approximately $15.7 million oi $1.53 per share which was

an 11.6c increase total FF0 over the prior year
Our

2011 results reflect the additional income from the seven

properties we acquiied during 2011 coupled with decrease

in both the net incentive fee and professional fees This

was partially offset by an increase in due diligence expense

from acquisitions during the year rombined with an increase

in the base management fee

At year end our total assets increased to $453.1 million

up lO.4o from 2010 The amounts outstanding under

lung term mortgdges end our 1in of ciedit increased to

$304.0 million up 6.1o and our stockholders equity

increased by 21.5o to $135.3 million We believe our

balance sheet is quite strong

CAPITAL MARKETS

Our common stock price rebounded

during 2011 Our average closing stock

price during 2011 was $17.48 versus

$16.38 during 2010 As result of the

increase in our common stock price

we issued 2.2 million shares of common

stock during 2011 for
gross proceeds

of $39.4 million

In addition in January 2012 we

sold $38.5 million of redeemable Series

Cumulative Term Preferred stock

We also expanded our line of credit

in January 2012 from $50.0 million to

$75.0 million These new funds should

give us an opportunity to buy additional

properties and increase our FF0 for 2012

In summary our financial iesults

were positive for 2011 and reflected our

ability to ins est the proceeds we raised

from both debt and equity into solid

real estate investments with accre

returns to our common stockholders
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DIVIDENDS

Our monthly distribution during 2011 was 80.125 per

share or $1.50 to- the
year

in January 2012 our

board of directors maintained the month Ic distributions of

0.125 per common share for each of the months January

bebruar and March 2012 We are proud of the fact that

we have never skipped reduced or deferred monthly

distribution since our inception in 2003

As of February 28 2012 we have paid 91 consecutive

monthly cash distributions to our common stockholders

74 consecutive monthly cash distributions to our Series

prefei red stockholders 65 consecutive monthly cash

distributions to our Series preferred stockholders and

22 consecutive monthly cash distributions to our senior

common stockholders

As an owner of real ectate we are required to record

depreciation on our properties This depreciation and

other items shelter portion of our distributions from

taxes Therefore in 2011 approximately 830o or $1.25

per share ot the distributions on our common stock was

considered taxUree retum of capital While part of the

distribution is tax free this return of cap tal will reduce

stockholders cost basis in he stock which may result in

larger capital gains tax when the stock sold Please

consult youl tax adviser for complete dctails

MARKETPLACE

United States continues to feel the lingering impact

of the recession that began in late 2008 unemployment

remains high housing starts aie low and the economic

situation in Europe will need to improve for the economy to

fully recover Over the last four years the capital markets

have experienced significant pi ice volatil ty and liquidity

disruptions which cave caused the rnarkct prices of many
stocks and debt securities lo fluctuate substantially and

the spreads on prospective debt financings to widen

considerably We believe that it will he few more years

before the US fully recovers from the recession As

result conditions within the U.S capital markets generally

and the U.S real estate capital markets particularly

continue to experience significant dislocation and stress

STRATEGY

Our strategy
includes the use of mortgages on our

pi opei
ties so that we may ouv more propeltics than would

otheiwise be possible with equity We do this to maximiz.e

potential returns to stockholders The market for long term

mortgages has been limited for some time howecer we

have recently seen five to ten year mortgages become more

obtainable The coIl aterali7ed mortgage hacked securities

or CMBS market where we have traditionally secured

mortgages has been attempting to make comeback in

ecent months but it is much more conservative than it

was prior to the recession and the pricing in the market

Our team remains hard at work seeking to invest the

proceeds from our latest equity raise While there are no

guarantees about the future preservation of the monthly

distributions to stockholders is paramount in our investment

strategy We have great team that believes strongly in the

highest ethical standards and service to shareholders

We are excited about the future and believe 2012 will

be an even more active year
for us Vve invite you to visit

our website www.GladstoneCommercial.com and sign up

for email notices to keep up with our activities You can

also now follow us on Facebook at Ihe Gladstone

Companies and on Twitter at GladstoneComps
Best wishes to you all

David Gladstone Chairman

Terry Brubaker Vice Chairman

George Chip Stelijes Ill President

remains volatile Consequently we are looking to regional

banks insurance companies and other non bank lenders

and to lesser extent the CMBS market to issue

mortgages to finance our real estate activities

Despite these challenges in the marketplace we were

successful in raising cost effective equity and issuing

additional term debt to grow oui portfolio of properties

While we are seeing signs of improvement in both the

equity and debt capital markets we believe these markets

will remain somewhat challenging during 2012

OUTLOOK
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Real estate purchased front and leased back to businesses

that are seeking to raise capitaifroni the sale of their

real estate so that they can invest the proceeds of the

sale of their real estate into their business
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR

THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2011

OR
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 001-33097

GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION
Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

MARYLAND

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

1521 WESTBRANCH DRIVE SUITE 200

MCLEAN VIRGINIA 22102

Address ofprincipal executive office

703 287-5800

Registrants telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of Each Class Name of exchange on

Common Stock par value $0.00 per share NASDAQ Global Select

7.75% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock par value $0.00 per share NASDAQ Global Select Market

7.50% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock par value $0.00 per share NASDAQ Global Select Market

7.125% Series Cumulative Term Preferred Stock par value $0.00 per share NASDAQ Global Select Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Yes No1

Indicate by check if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the Act Yes No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports

and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes NoD

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months or

for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files YesIi NoD

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not

be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III

of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K II

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller

reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2

of the Exchange Act Check one Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer lI Non-Accelerated Filer Smaller Reporting

Company Do not check if smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act Yes No II

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant on June 30 2011 based on the closing price on

that date of $17.33 on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was$178220819 For the purposes of calculating this amount only all

directors and executive officers of the registrant have been deemed to be affiliates

The number of shares of the registrants Common Stock $0.00 par value outstanding as of February 28 2012 was 10945379

Documents Incorporated by Reference Portions of the registrants Proxy Statement relating to the Registrants 2012 Annual Meeting

of Stockholders are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

02-0681276

I.R.S Employer
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Forward-Looking Statements

Our disclosure and analysis in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or Form 10-K and the documents that are

incorporated by reference herein contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A

of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or Securities Act and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended or Exchange Act Forward-looking statements provide our current expectations

or forecasts of future events and are not statements of historical fact These forward-looking statements

include information about possible or assumed future events including among other things discussion and

analysis of our future financial condition results of operations and funds from operations or FF0 our

strategic plans and objectives cost management occupancy and leasing rates and trends liquidity and

ability to refinance our indebtedness as it matures anticipated capital expenditures and access to capital

required to complete projects amounts of anticipated cash distributions to our stockholders in the future

and other matters Words such as anticipates expects intends plans believes seeks
estimates and variations of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking

statements These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks uncertainties

and other factors some of which are beyond our control are difficult to predict and could cause actual

results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements

Statements regarding the following subjects among others are forward-looking by their nature

our business and financing strategy

our ability to implement our business plan

pending transactions

our projected operating results

our ability to obtain future financing arrangements

estimates relating to our future distributions

our understanding of our competition and our ability to compete effectively

market and industry trends

interest and insurance rates

estimates of our future operating expenses including payments to our Adviser as defined

herein under the terms of our Advisory Agreement as defined herein

projected capital expenditures and

use of the proceeds of our Line of Credit as defined herein mortgage notes payable and

other future capital resources if any

Forward-looking statements involve inherent uncertainty and may ultimately prove to be incorrect or false

You are cautioned to not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements Except as otherwise may be

required by law we undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect

changed assumptions the occurrence of unanticipated events or actual operating results Our actual results

could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as result of various

factors including but not limited to

general volatility of the capital markets and the market price of our common and preferred

stock



risks associated with negotiation and consummation of pending and future transactions

changes in our business strategy

the adequacy of our cash reserves and working capital

our failure to successfully integrate and operate acquired properties and operations

defaults upon or non-renewal of leases by tenants

decreased rental rates or increased vacancy rates

the degree and nature of our competition

availability terms and deployment of capital including the ability to maintain and borrow

under our Line of Credit arrange for long-term mortgages on our properties secure one or

more additional long-term lines of credit and raise equity capital

our ability to identify hire and retain highly-qualified personnel in the future

changes in our industry or the general economy

changes in real estate and zoning laws and increases in real property tax rates

changes in governmental regulations tax rates and similarmatters

environmental uncertainties and risks related to natural disasters and

the loss of any of our key employees such as Mr David Gladstone our Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer Mr Teny Lee Brubaker our Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer

or Mr George Stelijes III our President and Chief Investment Officer

This list of risks and uncertainties however is only summary of some of the most important factors to us

and is not intended to be exhaustive You should carefully review the risks set forth herein under the

caption Item 1A Risk Factors New factors may also emerge from time to time that could materially and

adversely affect us

Item Business

Overview

Gladstone Commercial Corporation which we refer to as we us or the Company is real estate

investment trust or REIT that was incorporated under the General Corporation Laws of the State of

Maryland on February 14 2003 primarily for the purpose of investing in and owning net leased industrial

commercial and retail real property and selectively making long-term industrial and commercial mortgage

loans Our portfolio of real estate is leased to wide cross section of tenants ranging from small businesses

to large public companies many of which are corporations that do not have publicly rated debt We have

in the past entered into and intend in the future to enter into purchase agreements for real estate having

triple net leases with terms of approximately 10 to 15 years and built in rental increases Under triple net

lease the tenant is required to pay all operating maintenance and insurance costs and real estate taxes with

respect to the leased property As of February 28 2012 we own total of 73 properties

We conduct substantially all of our activities including the ownership of all of our properties through

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership Delaware limited partnership which we refer to as our



Operating Partnership We control our Operating Partnership through our ownership of GCLP Business

Trust II Massachusetts business trust which is the general partner of our Operating Partnership and of

GCLP Business Trust Massachusetts business trust which currently holds all of the limited partnership

units of our Operating Partnership We expect that our Operating Partnership may issue limited partnership

units from time to time in exchange for industrial and commercial real property Limited partners who hold

limited partnership units in our Operating Partnership will generally be entitled to redeem these units for

cash or at our election shares of our common stock on one-for-one basis

Our Operating Partnership is also the sole member of Gladstone Commercial Lending LLC which we

refer to as Gladstone Commercial Lending Gladstone Commercial Lending is Delaware limited liability

company that was formed to hold all of our real estate mortgage loans

Our business is managed by our extemal adviser Gladstone Management Corporation or our Adviser

Our Investment Objectives and Our Strategy

Our principal investment objectives are to generate income from rental properties and to much lesser

extent mortgage loans which we use to fund our continuing operations and to pay out monthly cash

distributions to our stockholders We intend to grow the distribution to stockholders over time and to

increase the value of our common stock Our primary strategy to achieve our investment objectives is to

invest in and own diversified portfolio of leased industrial and commercial real estate that we believe will

produce stable cash flow and increase in value We expect to sell some of our real estate assets from time to

time when our Adviser determines that doing so would be advantageous to us and our stockholders We
also expect to occasionally make mortgage loans secured by income-producing commercial or industrial

real estate which loans may have some form of equity participation We currently have no investments in

mortgage loans

We use leverage to make more investments than would otherwise be possible in order to maximize

potential returns to stockholders We are not limited with respect to the amount of leverage that we may

use for the acquisition of any specific property We intend to use non-recourse mortgage financing that

will allow us to limit our loss exposure on any property to the amount of equity invested in such property

The market for long-term mortgages has been limited for some time however we have recently seen mid-

to-long-term to 10 year mortgages become more obtainable The collateralized mortgage backed

securities or CMBS market has been attempting to make comeback in recent months but it is much

more conservative than it was prior to the recession and the pricing in the market remains volatile As

result we will likely not have the same level of access to the CMBS market that we had prior to the

recession Consequently we are looking to regional banks insurance companies and other non-bank

lenders and to lesser extent the CMBS market to issue mortgages to fmance our real estate activities

Investment Policies and Policies with Respect to Certain Activities

Types of Investments

Overview

We intend that substantially all of our investments will be generated from the ownership of income-

producing real property or to much lesser extent mortgage loans secured by real property We expect

that the vast majority of our investments will be structured as net leases but if net lease would have an

adverse impact on potential tenant or would otherwise be inappropriate for us we may structure our

investment as mortgage loan Investments are not restricted to geographical areas but we expect that

most of our investments in real estate will be made within the continental United States Some of our

investments may also be made through joint ventures that would permit us to own interests in large

properties without restricting the diversity of our portfolio Our stockholders are not afforded the

opportunity to evaluate the economic merits of our investments or the terms of any dispositions of



properties and instead rely on the advice of our Adviser See Risk FactorsOur success depends on the

performance of our Adviser and our Adviser makes inadvisable investment or management decisions our

operations could be materially adversely impacted

We anticipate that we will make substantially all of our investments through our Operating Partnership and

Gladstone Commercial Lending Our Operating Partnership and Gladstone Commercial Lending may
acquire interests in real property or mortgage loans in exchange for the issuance of limited partnership

units for cash or through combination of both Units issued by our Operating Partnership generally will

be redeemable for cash or at our election shares of our common stock on one-for-one basis However
we may in the future also conduct some of our business and hold some of our interests in real properties or

mortgage loans through one or more wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not owned directly or indirectly

through our Operating Partnership or Gladstone Commercial Lending

Property Acquisitions and Net Leasing

To date we have purchased majority of our properties from owners that have leased their properties to

non-affiliated tenants and while we have engaged in some transactions with tenants who have

consummated sale-leaseback transactions these transactions do not comprise the dominant portion of our

portfolio We expect that some of our sale-leaseback transactions will be in conjunction with acquisitions

recapitalizations or other corporate transactions affecting our tenants In these transactions we may act as

one of several sources of financing for these transactions by purchasing one or more properties from the

tenant and by net leasing it to the tenant or its successor in interest For discussion of the risks associated

with leasing property to leveraged tenants see Risk FactorsHighly leveraged tenants and borrowers

may be unable to pay rent or make mortgage payments which could adversely affect our cash available to

make distributions to our stockholders

In limited circumstances we have granted tenants an option to purchase the leased property and we

anticipate granting these options to select tenants in the future In these cases we generally seek to fix the

option purchase price at the greater of our purchase price for the property and the fair market value of the

property at the time the option is exercised

Our portfolio consists primarily of single-tenant commercial and industrial real property however we also

own and consider multi-tenant commercial and industrial properties as well as retail and medical

properties Generally we lease properties to tenants that our Adviser deems creditworthy under leases that

will be full recourse obligations of our tenants or their affiliates In most cases our leases will be triple net

leases that require the tenant to pay all the operating costs costs of maintenance insurance and real estate

taxes on the property We seek to obtain lease terms of approximately 10 to 15 years with built-in rental

increases

Investments in Mortgage Loans

Although we expect to make such investments sparingly we may elect to structure our investment in

particular property as mortgage loan secured by the property in situations where standard net lease

transaction would have an adverse tax impact on the seller of property or would otherwise be

inappropriate for us We anticipate that most of our lending transactions will be loans secured by industrial

or commercial property Our Adviser will attempt to structure mortgage loans in manner that would

provide us with current income substantially similar to that which we could expect to receive had the

investment been structured as net lease transaction

To the extent that we invest in mortgage loans we will generally originate those loans However we may
also purchase mortgage loans from banks CMBS pools or other lenders if such transactions are consistent

with our investment objectives Our Adviser will service the mortgage loans in our portfolio by monitoring

the collection of monthly principal and interest payments on our behalf There were no mortgage loans

outstanding as of December 31 2011



Underwriting Criteria Due Diligence Process and Negotiating Lease Provisions

We consider underwriting of the real estate and the tenant for the property or the borrower in the case of

mortgage loan to be the most important aspects of making an investment Evaluating the creditworthiness

of the tenant or borrower and its ability to generate sufficient cash flow to make payments to us pursuant to

the lease or the mortgage loan is the most important aspect of our underwriting procedures In analyzing

potential acquisitions of properties and leases our Adviser reviews all aspects of the potential transaction

including tenant and real estate fundamentals to determine whether potential acquisitions and leases can be

structured to satisfr our acquisition criteria The criteria listed below provide general guideposts that our

Adviser may consider when underwriting leases and mortgage loans

Credit Evaluation Our Adviser evaluates each potential tenant for its creditworthiness considering factors

such as the rating by national credit rating agency if any management experience industry position and

fundamentals operating history and capital structure Currently 46.0% of our tenants are rated by

national credit rating agency prospective tenant that is deemed creditworthy does not necessarily mean

that we will consider the tenants property to be investment grade Our Adviser seeks tenants that range

from small businesses many of which do not have publicly rated debt to large public companies Our

Advisers investment professionals have substantial experience in locating and financing these types of

companies By leasing properties to these tenants we believe that we will generally be able to charge rent

that is higher than the rent charged to tenants with unleveraged balance sheets and recognized credit

thereby enhancing current return from these properties as compared with properties leased to companies

whose credit potential has already been recognized by the market Furthermore if tenants credit

improves the value of our lease or investment will likely increase if all other factors affecting value remain

unchanged In evaluating possible investment we believe that the creditworthiness of prospective

tenant is normally more significant factor than the unleased value of the property itself While our Adviser

selects tenants it believes to be creditworthy tenants are not required to meet any minimum rating

established by an independent
credit rating agency Our Advisers standards for determining whether

particular tenant is creditworthy vary in accordance with variety of factors relating to specific prospective

tenants The creditworthiness of tenant is determined on tenant by tenant and case by case basis

Therefore general standards for creditworthiness cannot be applied

Leases with Increasing Rent Our Adviser seeks to include clause in each lease that provides for annual

rent escalations over the term of the lease These increases will generally be fixed however certain leases

are tied to increases in indices such as the consumer price index

Diversification Our Adviser attempts to diversif\j our portfolio to avoid dependence on any one particular

tenant facility type geographic location or tenant industry By diversifing our portfolio our Adviser

intends to reduce the adverse effect of single under-performing investment or downturn in any particular

industry or geographic region Total rental income consisted of the following tenant industry classifications

as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

Fortho year ceded December 31 2011 For the year ended December 31 2010 Forthe yearended Decentber 31 2009

Dollars in Thousands Dollars in Thousands Dollars Thousands

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of

Industry Classification Rental lsscorsm Rental Inconra Rental lnconm Rental Incoora Rental lncont Rental loconse

tealthcare Education Childease 6467 14.7% 6145 14.9% 6145 14.8%

Telecontmunications 6206 14.2 5447 13.3 5447 13.0

Electronics 6046 13.9 6165 15.0 6165 14.9

Diversifled/Congloosemte Manufacturing 3664 8.4 3665 8.9 3664 8.8

ChrmicalsPtastics Rabber 3146 7.2 3130 7.6 3173 7.6

Containers Packaging Glass 2339 5.4 2330 5.7 2330 5.6

PersonalNon-DumbleConsunserPrOdacts 2316 5.3 1228 3.0 1355 3.3

Beverage Pood Tobacco 2271 5.2 2189 5.3 2189 5.3

Machinery 2256 5.2 2333 5.7 2390 5.8

Buildings and t9eal Estate 2120 4.9 2075 5.0 2026 4.9

Printing Publishing 1979 4.5 2188 5.3 2189 5.3

Oil Gas 1271 2.9 1283 3.1 1138 2.7

Autonsebile 1167 2.7 1167 2.8 1167 2.8

Diversifled/Cangtonserutc Services 1091 2.3 300 0.7 308 0.8

Persansl Food Miscellaneous Services 649 1.5 575 1.4 575 1.4

Horns Office Furnishings
530 1.2 530 1.3 530 1.3

Banking
214 0.5

0.0 0.0

Insurance
0.0 422 1.0 723 1.7

43632 100.0% 41180 100.056 41514 100.9/s



Property Valuation The business prospects and the financial strength of the tenant are important aspects of

the evaluation of any sale and leaseback of property or acquisition of property subject to net lease

particularly property that is specifically suited to the needs of the tenant We generally require quarterly

unaudited and annual audited financial statements of the tenant in order to continuously monitor the

financial performance of the tenant We evaluate the financial capability of the tenant and its ability to

perform per the terms of the lease We may also examine the available operating results of prospective

investment properties to determine whether or not projected rental levels are likely to be met We then

compute the value of the property based on historical and projected operating results In addition each

property that we propose to purchase is appraised by an independent appraiser These appraisals may take

into consideration among other things the terms and conditions of the particular lease transaction and the

conditions of the credit markets at the time the purchase is negotiated We generally limit our property

acquisition cost or value to between $3 million and $30 million

Properties Important to Tenant Operations Our Adviser generally seeks to acquire investment properties

that are essential or important to the ongoing operations of the prospective tenant We believe that these

investment properties provide better protection in the event tenant becomes bankrupt as leases on

properties essential or important to the operations of bankrupt tenant are typically less likely to be rejected
in bankruptcy or otherwise terminated

Lease Provisions that Enhance and Protect Value When appropriate our Adviser attempts to include

provisions in our leases that require our consent to specified tenant activity or require the tenant to satisfy

specific operating tests These provisions may include for example operational or financial covenants of

the tenant as well as indenmification of us by the tenant against environmental and other contingent

liabilities We believe that these provisions serve to protect our investments from changes in the operating
and financial characteristics of tenant that may impact its ability to satisfy its obligations to us or that

could reduce the value of our properties Our Adviser generally also seeks covenants requiring tenants to

receive our consent prior to any change in control of the tenant

Credit Enhancement Our Adviser may also seek to enhance the likelihood of tenants lease obligations

being satisfied through cross-default with other tenant obligations letter of credit or guaranty of lease

obligations from each tenants corporate parent We believe that this type of credit enhancement if

obtained provides us with additional financial security

Underwriting of the Real Estate and Due Diligence Process

In addition to underwriting the tenant or borrower we also underwrite the real estate to be acquired or

secured by one of our mortgages On our behalf our Adviser performs due diligence review with respect
to each property such as evaluating the physical condition of property zoning and site requirements to

ensure the property is in compliance with all zoning regulations as well as an environmental site

assessment in an attempt to determine potential environmental liabilities associated with property prior to

its acquisition although there can be no assurance that hazardous substances or wastes as defined by

present or future federal or state laws or regulations will not be discovered on the
property after we acquire

it We could incur significant costs related to government regulation and private litigation over

environmental matters See Risk Factors We could be exposed to liability and remedial costs related to

environmental matters

Our Adviser also reviews the structural soundness of the improvements on the property and may engage
structural engineer to review all aspects of the structures in order to determine the longevity of each

building on the property This review normally also includes the components of each building such as the

roof the electrical wiring the heating and air-conditioning system the plumbing parking lot and various

other aspects such as compliance with state and federal building codes



Our Adviser also physically inspects the real estate and surrounding real estate as part of determining the

value of the real estate All of our Advisers due diligence is aimed at arriving at valuation of the real

estate under the assumption that it was not rented to the tenant that we are considering As part of this

process our Adviser may consider one or more of the following items

The comparable value of similar real estate in the same general area of the prospective property In

this regard comparable property
is difficult to defme because each piece of real estate has its own

distinct characteristics But to the extent possible comparable property in the area that has sold or is

for sale will be used to determine if the price to be paid for the property is reasonable The question

of comparable properties sale prices
is particularly relevant if property might be sold by us at

later date

The comparable real estate rental rates for similar properties in the same area of the prospective

property

Alternative property uses that may offer higher value

The cost of replacing the property if it were to be sold

The assessed value as determined by the local real estate taxing authority

In addition our Adviser supplements its valuation with real estate appraisal in connection with each

investment that we consider When appropriate our Adviser may engage experts to undertake some or all

of the due diligence efforts described above

Additional Investment Considerations

Terms of Mortgage Loans

Some of the mortgage loans that we may make purchase or otherwise acquire in the future in addition to

providing for base interest at fixed or variable rate may allow us to participate in the economic benefits

of any increase in the value of the property securing repayment of the loan as though we were an equity

owner of portion of the property In addition it is possible that participation may take other forms where

our Adviser deems participation available or otherwise appropriate provided that such participation does

not jeopardize our REIT tax status The form and extent of our participation if any will vary with each

transaction depending on factors such as credit support provided by the borrower the interest rate on our

mortgage loans and the anticipated and actual cash flow from the underlying real property
Our mortgage

loans may include first mortgage loans leasehold mortgage loans or conventional mortgage loans without

equity enhancements We have not in the past nor do we intend in the future to make or invest in sub-

prime mortgage loans

Except as described below any mortgage loan in our portfolio will generally be secured by real property

with demonstrable income-producing potential as well as security interest in personal or mixed property

connected with the real property

In the event that we make or invest in mortgage loan we will generally require mortgagees title

insurance policy or commitment as to the lien priority of mortgage or the condition of title in connection

with each mortgage loan We also may obtain an independent appraisal for underlying real property
that

our Adviser may consider when determining whether or not to make or invest in particular mortgage loan

In making mortgage loans that when combined with existing loans that are on parity with or senior to our

mortgage loan exceed 85% of the appraised value of any underlying real property our Adviser considers

additional underwriting criteria such as the net worth of the borrower the borrowers credit rating if any

the anticipated cash flow of the borrower any additional collateral or other credit enhancements provided

by the borrower or its affiliates and other factors our Adviser deems appropriate Where we think it is



appropriate we may make mortgage loans that are subordinated to first mortgage on property For

example if the property is subject to an economic development loan as first mortgage at particularly

low interest rate we may make second mortgage loan on the property However we will not make
second mortgage loan on any property that we would not consider owning subject to the existing senior

financing and leasing to the tenant

From time to time we may purchase mortgage loans including loans being sold at discount from banks

and other financial institutions if the subject property otherwise satisfies our underwriting criteria

Other Investments

Under IRS REIT rules we may invest up to an aggregate of 10% of our net equity in unimproved or non-

income-producing real property and in equity interests Equity interests are defined generally to mean
stock warrants or other rights to purchase the stock of or other equity interests in tenant of property

an entity to which we lend money or parent or controlling person of borrower or tenant and we will not

acquire equity interests in any entity other than in connection with lease or mortgage loan transaction We
anticipate that equity interests will not exceed 5% of our net equity in the aggregate and we will not make

any such investment in equity interests if such investment would adversely affect our qualification as

REIT for tax purposes To the extent that we hold equity interests in tenants or borrowers we anticipate

that they will generally be restricted securities as defined in Rule 144 under the Seurities Act Under this

rule we may be prohibited from reselling the equity securities without limitation until we have fully paid

for and held any such securities for one year The issuer of equity interests in which we invest may never

register these interests under the federal securities laws since any decision of an issuer to register its

securities may depend on any number of factors including the success of its operations

We will generally invest in unimproved or non-income-producing property only when our Adviser believes

that such property will appreciate in value or will increase the value of an adjoining or neighboring

property that we own

We might use taxable REIT subsidiaries to acquire or hold property including equity interests that may not

be deemed to be REIT-qualified assets Taxable REIT subsidiaries are taxed as ordinary corporations and

any taxes paid by such entity will reduce cash available to us for payment of distributions to our

stockholders

Joint Ventures

In the future we may also enter into joint ventures partnerships and other mutual arrangements with real

estate developers property owners and others for the purpose of obtaining an equity interest in property
in accordance with our investment policies Joint venture investments could permit us to own interests in

large properties without unduly restricting the diversity of our portfolio We will not enter into joint

venture to make an investment that we would not otherwise purchase on our own under our existing

investment policies

Use of Leverage

Non-recourse Financing

We use long-term mortgage borrowings as financing mechanism in amounts that we believe will

maximize the return to our stockholders Currently majority of our long-term mortgage borrowings are

structured as non-recourse to us and we intend to structure any medium-term mortgages in the same

manner with limited exceptions that would trigger recourse to us only upon the occurrence of certain fraud

misconduct environmental or bankruptcy events The use of non-recourse financing allows us to limit our

exposure to the amount of equity invested in the properties pledged as collateral for our borrowings Non
recourse financing generally restricts lenders claim on the assets of the borrower and as result the
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lender generally may look only to the property securing the debt for satisfaction of the debt We believe

that this financing strategy to the extent available protects our other assets However we can provide no

assurance that non-recourse financing will be available on terms acceptable to us or at all and there may

be circumstances where lenders have recourse to our other assets There is no limitation on the amount we

may borrow against any single investment property Of the $286.2 million in long-term mortgages

outstanding only $2.0 million is recourse to the Company

We believe that by operating on leveraged basis we will have more funds available and therefore will

make more investments than would otherwise be possible if we operated on non-leveraged basis We

believe that this creates more diversified portfolio and maximizes potential returns to our stockholders

We may refinance properties during the term of loan when we believe it is advantageous

Recourse Financing

Borrowings under our $75.0 million Line of Credit which is secured by those properties pledged to the

borrowing base under the Line of Credit are considered recourse financing which means that our lenders

have claim against our assets We intend to use our existing Line of Credit as warehouse Line of Credit

whereby we borrow on short-term basis until long-term financing can be arranged

Other Investment Policies

Working Capital Reserves

We may establish working capital reserve which we would anticipate to be sufficient to satisfy our

liquidity requirements Our liquidity could be adversely affected by unanticipated costs greater-than-

anticipated operating expenses or cash shortfalls in funding our distributions to stockholders To the extent

that the working capital reserve is insufficient to satisfy our cash requirements additional funds may be

produced from cash generated from operations or through short-term borrowings In addition subject to

limitations described in this Form 10-K we may incur indebtedness in connection with

the acquisition of any property

the refinancing of the debt upon any property or

the leveraging of any previously unleveraged property

For additional information regarding our borrowing strategy see Use of Leverage

Holding Period for and Sale of Investments Reinvestment of Sale Proceeds

We intend to hold each property we acquire for an extended period However circumstances might arise

which could result in the early sale of some properties if in the judgment of our Adviser the sale of the

property is in the best interests of us and our stockholders

The determination of whether particular property should be sold or otherwise disposed of will be made

after consideration of all relevant factors including prevailing economic conditions with view to

achieving maximum capital appreciation The selling price of property
which is subject to net lease will

be determined in large part by the amount of rent payable under the lease the remaining term of the lease

and the creditworthiness of the tenant In connection with our sales of properties we may lend the

purchaser all or portion of the purchase price In these instances our taxable income may exceed the cash

received by us in connection with any such sale which could cause us to delay required distributions to our

stockholders
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The terms of any sale will be dictated by custom in the area in which the property being sold is located and

the then-prevailing economic conditions decision to provide financing to any purchaser would be made

only after an investigation into and consideration of the same factors regarding the purchaser such as

creditworthiness and likelihood of future financial stability as are undertaken when we consider net lease

or mortgage loan transaction

We may continually reinvest the proceeds of property sales in investments that either we or our Adviser

believe will satisfy our investment policies

Investment Limitations

There are numerous limitations on the manner in which we may invest our funds which unless otherwise

noted below may be amended or waived by our Board of Directors at anytime Our Board of Directors has

adopted policy that we will not

invest in real property owned by our Adviser any of its affiliates or any business in which our

Adviser or any of its subsidiaries have invested except that we may lease property to existing and

prospective portfolio companies of current or future affiliates such as Gladstone Capital

Corporation Gladstone Investment Corporation and entities advised by our Adviser so long as that

entity does not control the portfolio company and the transaction is approved by both companies
Board of Directors this policy may not be changed without the approval of our stockholders

invest in comn-iodities or commodity futures contracts with this limitation not being applicable to

futures contracts when used solely for the
purpose

of hedging in connection with our ordinary

business of investing in properties and making mortgage loans

invest in contracts for the sale of real estate unless the contract is appropriately recorded in the

chain of title

invest in any individual property with cost in excess of 20% of our total assets at the time of

investment

make investments in unimproved property or indebtedness secured by deed of trust or mortgage

loans on unimproved property in excess of 10% of our total assets Unimproved real property is

property which has the following three characteristics

the property was not acquired for the purpose of producing rental or other operating income

no development or construction is in process on the property and

no development or construction on the property is planned in good faith to commence on the

property within one year of acquisition

issue equity securities on deferred payment basis or other similararrangement

issue debt securities in the absence of adequate cash flow to cover debt service

issue redeemable securities as defined in Section 2a32 of the Investment Company Act of

1940

grant warrants or options to purchase shares of our stock to our Adviser or its affiliates

engage in trading as compared with investment activities or engage in the business of

underwriting or the agency distribution of securities issued by other persons
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acquire securities in any company holding investments or engaging in activities prohibited in the

foregoing clauses or

make or invest in mortgage loans that are subordinate to any mortgage or equity interest of any of

our affiliates

Conflict of Interest Policy

We have adopted policies to reduce potential conflicts of interest addition our directors are subject to

certain provisions of Maryland law that are designed to minimize conflicts However we cannot assure you

that these policies or provisions of law will reduce or eliminate the influence of these conflicts

Under our current conflict of interest policy without the approval of majority of our independent

directors we will not

acquire from or sell to any of our officers directors or our Advisers employees or any entity in

which any of our officers directors or employees has an interest of more than 5% any assets or

other property

borrow from any of our directors officers or employees or any entity in which any of our officers

directors or employees has an interest of more than 5% or

engage in any other transaction with any of our directors officers or employees or any entity in

which any of our directors officers or employees has an interest of more than 5% except that our

Adviser may lease office space
in building that we own provided that the rental rate under the

lease is determined by our independent directors to be at fair market rate

Our policy also prohibits us from purchasing any real property owned by or co-investing with our Adviser

any of its affiliates or any business in which our Adviser or any of its subsidiaries have invested except

that we may lease property to existing and prospective portfolio companies of current or future affiliates

such as Gladstone Capital Corporation or Gladstone Investment Corporation and other entities advised by

our Adviser so long as that entity does not control the portfolio company and the transaction is approved

by both companies Board of Directors If we decide to change this policy on co-investments with our

Adviser or its affiliates we will seek our stockholders approval

Future Revisions in Policies and Strategies

Our independent directors periodically review our investment policies to evaluate whether they are in the

best interests of us and our stockholders Our investment procedures objectives and policies may vary as

new investment techniques are developed or as regulatory requirements change and except as otherwise

provided in our charter or bylaws may be altered by majority of our directors including majority of our

independent directors without the approval of our stockholders to the extent that our Board of Directors

determines that such modification is in the best interest of our stockholders Among other factors

developments in the market which affect the policies and strategies described in this report or which change

our assessment of the market may cause our Board of Directors to revise our investment policies and

strategies

Our Adviser and Administrator

Our business is managed by Gladstone Management Corporation or our Adviser The officers directors

and employees of our Adviser have significant experience in making investments in and lending to

businesses of all sizes including investing in real estate and making mortgage loans We have entered into

the Advisory Agreement as defined below with our Adviser under which our Adviser is responsible for

managing our assets and liabilities for operating our business on day-to-day basis and for identifying
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evaluating negotiating and consummating investment transactions consistent with our investment policies

as determined by our Board of Directors from time to time Gladstone Administrations LLC or our

Administrator employs our chief financial officer chief compliance officer internal counsel treasurer

investor relations department and their respective staffs

David Gladstone our chairman and chief executive officer is also the chairman chief executive officer and

the controlling stockholder of our Adviser Terry Lee Brubaker our vice chairman secretary and chief

operating officer and member of our Board of Directors also serves in the same capacities for our

Adviser George Stelljes III our president and chief investment officer and member of our Board of

Directors also serves in the same capacities for our Adviser

Our Adviser maintains an investment committee that approves each of our investments This investment

committee is comprised of Messrs Gladstone Brubaker and Stelljes We believe that our Advisers

investment committee review
process gives us unique competitive advantage over other REITs because

of the substantial experience and perspective that the members possess in evaluating the blend of corporate

credit real estate and lease terms that combine to provide an acceptable risk for our investments

Our Advisers Board of Directors has empowered its investment committee to authorize and
approve our

investments subject to the terms of the Advisory Agreement Before we acquire any property the

transaction is reviewed by our Advisers investment committee to ensure that in its view the proposed

transaction satisfies our investment criteria and is within our investment policies Approval by our

Advisers investment committee is generally the final step in the property acquisition approval process

although the separate approval of our Board of Directors is required in certain circumstances described

below For further detail on this process please see Investment Policies and Policies with Respect to

Certain Activities Underwriting Criteria Due Diligence Process and Negotiating Lease Provisions

Our Adviser is headquartered in McLean Virginia suburb of Washington D.C and also has offices in

New York Connecticut California and Illinois

Investment Advisory and Administration Agreements

Many of the services performed by our Adviser and Administrator in managing our day-to-day activities

are summarized below This summary is provided to illustrate the material functions which our Adviser and

Administrator perform for us pursuant to the terms of the Advisory and Administration Agreements as
defined below respectively but it is not intended to include all of the services which may be provided to

us by third parties

We have an advisory agreement with our Adviser or the Advisory Agreement and an administration

agreement with our Administrator or the Administration Agreement

Investment Advisory Agreement

Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement we are responsible for all expenses incurred for our direct

benefit Examples of these expenses include legal accounting interest on short-term debt and mortgages

tax preparation directors and officers insurance stock transfer services stockholder-related fees

consulting and related fees In addition we are also responsible for all fees charged by third parties that are

directly related to our business which may include real estate brokerage fees mortgage placement fees

lease-up fees and transaction structuring fees although we may be able to
pass some or all of such fees on

to our tenants and borrowers

During the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 none of these third party expenses were

incurred by us directly The actual amount of such fees that we incur in the future will depend largely upon
the aggregate costs of the properties that we acquire the aggregate amount of mortgage loans that we make
and the extent to which we are able to pass on such fees to our tenants and borrowers pursuant to the terms
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of the agreements Accordingly the amount of these fees that we will pay in the future is not determinable

at this time

Management Services and Fees under the Advisory Agreement

The Advisory Agreement provides for an annual base management fee equal to 2.0% of our total

stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock and an incentive fee based on FF0

Our Adviser does not charge acquisition or disposition fees when we acquire or dispose of properties as is

common in other externally managed REITs Furthermore there are no fees charged when our Adviser

secures long or short term credit or arranges mortgage loans on our properties however our Adviser may

earn fee income from our borrowers or tenants or other sources This fee income earned by our Adviser or

portion thereof may at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors be credited against our base

management fee as rebate to the base management fee

For purposes of calculating the incentive fee FF0 includes any realized capital gains and capital losses

less any distributions paid on preferred stock and senior common stock but FF0 does not include any

unrealized capital gains or losses The incentive fee would reward our Adviser if our quarterly FF0 before

giving effect to any incentive fee or pre-incentive fee FF0 exceeds 1.75% or the hurdle rate of total

stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock We pay our Adviser an incentive fee

with respect to our pre-incentive fee FF0 in each calendar quarter as follows

no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in which our pre-incentive fee FF0 does not exceed the

hurdle rate of 1.75% 7% annualized

100% of the amount of the pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than

2.1875% in any calendar quarter 8.75% annualized and

20% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds 2.1875% in any calendar quarter

8.75% annualized

Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on FF0

Pre-incentive fee FF0

expressed as percentage of total common stockholders equity

1.75% 2.1875%

0%4W 100% 20%

Percentage of pre-incentive fee FF0 allocated to incentive fee

The incentive fee may be reduced because of our Line of Credit covenant which limits distributions to our

stockholders to 95% of FF0 less those acquisition-related costs that are required to be expensed under

Accounting Standards Codification or ASC 805 Business Combinations

Administration Agreement

Under the terms of the Administration Agreement we pay separately for our allocable portion of our

Administrators overhead expenses
in performing its obligations to us including but not limited to rent

and our allocable portion of the salaries and benefits expenses of our Administrators employees including

but not limited to our chief financial officer chief compliance officer internal counsel treasurer investor

relations department and their respective staffs Our allocable portion of expenses is derived by

multiplying our Administrators total expenses by the percentage of our total assets at the beginning of each
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quarter in comparison to the total assets of all companies managed by our Adviser under similar

agreements

Adviser Duties and Authority under the Advisory Agreement

Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement our Adviser is required to use its best efforts to present to us

investment opportunities consistent with our investment policies and objectives as adopted by our Board of

Directors In performing its duties our Adviser either directly or indirectly by engaging an affiliate

finds evaluates and enters into contracts to purchase real estate and make mortgage loans on our

behalf in compliance with our investment procedures objectives and policies subject to approval of

our Board of Directors where required

provides advice to us and acts on our behalf with respect to the negotiation acquisition financing

refinancing holding leasing and disposition of real estate investments

takes the actions and obtains the services necessary to effect the negotiation acquisition financing

refinancing holding leasing and disposition of real estate investments and

provides day-to-day management of our business activities and other administrative services for us

as requested by our Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors has authorized our Adviser to make investments in any property on our behalf

without the prior approval of our board if the following conditions are satisfied

our Adviser has obtained an independent appraisal for the property indicating that the total cost of

the property does not exceed its appraised value and

our Adviser has concluded that the property in conjunction with our other investments and

proposed investments is reasonably expected to fulfill our investment objectives and policies as

established by our Board of Directors then in effect

The actual terms and conditions of transactions involving investments in properties and mortgage loans are

determined in the sole discretion of our Adviser subject at all times to compliance with the foregoing

requirements Some types of transactions however require the prior approval of our Board of Directors

including majority of our independent directors including the following

loans not secured or otherwise supported by real
property

any acquisition or mortgage loan which at the time of investment would have cost exceeding 20%
of our total assets

transactions that involve conflicts of interest with our Adviser other than reimbursement of

expenses
in accordance with the Advisory Agreement and

the lease of assets to our Adviser its affiliates or any of our officers or directors

Our Adviser and Administrator also engage in other business ventures and as result their resources are

not dedicated exclusively to our business For example our Adviser and Administrator also serve as the

external adviser to Gladstone Capital Corporation and Gladstone Investment Corporation both publicly

traded business development companies affiliated with us and Gladstone Land Corporation private

agricultural real estate company However under the Advisory Agreement our Adviser is required to

devote sufficient resources to the administration of our affairs to discharge its obligations under the

agreement The Advisory Agreement is not assignable or transferable by either us or our Adviser without
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the consent of the other party except that our Adviser may assign the Advisory Agreement to an affiliate

for whom our Adviser
agrees to guarantee its obligations to us Either we or our Adviser may assign or

transfer the Advisory Agreement to successor entity

Dealer Manager Agreement

In connection with the offering of our Senior Common Stock we entered into Dealer Manager

Agreement dated March 25 2011 the Dealer Manager Agreement with Gladstone Securities LLC the

Dealer Manager pursuant to which the Dealer Manager agreed to act as our exclusive dealer manager in

connection with the offering The Dealer Manager is an affiliate of us as its parent company is controlled

by Mr David Gladstone our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to the terms of the Dealer

Manager Agreement the Dealer Manager is entitled to receive sales commission in the amount of 7.0%

of the gross proceeds of the shares of senior common stock sold plus dealer manager fee in the amount of

3.0% of the gross proceeds of the shares of Senior Common Stock sold In addition we have agreed to

indemnifi the Dealer Manager against various liabilities including certain liabilities arising under the

federal securities laws We made $5 of payments during 2011 to the Dealer Manager pursuant to this

agreement

Employees

We do not currently have any employees and do not expect to have any employees in the foreseeable

future Currently services necessary for our business are provided by individuals who are employees of

our Adviser and our Administrator pursuant to the terms of the Advisory Agreement and the

Administration Agreement respectively Each of our executive officers is an employee or officer or both

of our Adviser or our Administrator No employee of our Adviser or our Administrator will dedicate all of

his or her time to us However we expect that 15-20 full time employees of our Adviser or our

Administrator will spend substantial time on our matters during calendar year 2012 To the extent that we

acquire more investments we anticipate that the number of employees of our Adviser and our

Administrator who devote time to our matters will increase

As of December 31 2011 our Adviser and our Administrator collectively had 53 full-time employees

breakdown of these employees is summarized by functional area in the table below

Number of Individuals Functional Area

10 Executive Management

32 Investment Management Portfolio Management and Due Diligence

11 Administration Accounting Compliance Human Resources Legal and Treasury

Competition

We compete with number of other real estate companies and traditional mortgage lenders many of whom

have greater marketing and financial resources than we do Principal factors of competition in our primary

business of investing in and owning leased industrial and commercial real property are the quality of

properties leasing terms attractiveness and convenience of location Additionally our ability to compete

depends upon among other factors trends of the national and local economies investment altematives

financial condition and operating results of current and prospective tenants and borrowers availability and

cost of capital taxes and governmental regulations

Environmental Matters

As current and prior owner of real estate we are subject to various federal state and local environmental

laws regulations and ordinances and also could be liable to third parties resulting from environmental
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contamination or noncompliance at our properties Environmental laws often impose liability without

regard to whether the owner or operator knew of or was responsible for the presence of the contaminants

and the costs of any required investigation or cleanup of these substances can be substantial The liability is

generally not limited under such laws and could exceed the propertys value and the aggregate assets of the

liable party The presence of contamination or the failure to remediate contamination at our properties also

may expose us to third-party liability for personal injury or property damage or adversely affect our ability

to sell lease or develop the real property or to borrow using the real property as collateral These and other

risks related to environmental matters are described in more detail in Item 1A Risk Factors below

Available Information

Copies of our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K

proxy statements and amendments if any to those reports filed pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act are available free of charge through our website at

www.GladstoneCommercial.com request for any of these reports may also be submitted to us by

sending written request addressed to Investor Relations Manager Gladstone Commercial Corporation

1521 Westbranch Drive Suite 200 McLean VA 22102 or by calling our toll-free investor relations line at

1-866-366-5745 The public may read and copy materials that we file with the Securities and Exchange

Commission or the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE Washington DC
20549 Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at

1-800-SEC-0330 The SEC also maintains website that contains reports proxy and information

statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov
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Item 1A Risk Factors

An investment in our securities involves number of significant risks and other factors relating to our

structure and investment objectives As result we cannot assure you that we will achieve our investment

objectives You should consider carefully the following information before making an investment in our

securities

Risks related to the economy

The current state of the economy and the capital markets increases the possibility of adverse effects on our

financial position results of operations and the market price of our securities

Over the last four years the United States the U.S capital markets have experienced significant price

volatility and liquidity disruptions which have caused market prices of many stocks and debt securities to

fluctuate substantially and the spreads on prospective debt financings to widen considerably We believe

that it will be few more years
before the U.S fully recovers from the recession These circumstances have

materially impacted liquidity in the financial markets making terms for certain financings less attractive

and in certain cases have resulted in the lack of availability of certain types of financing Continued

uncertainty in the stock and credit markets may negatively impact our ability to access additional financing

at reasonable terms which may negatively affect our ability to make acquisitions These disruptions in the

financial markets also may have material adverse effect on the market value of our coniinon and preferred

stock and the lease rates we can charge for our properties as well as other unknown adverse effects on us

or the economy in general In addition the continued challenging economic conditions could still

materially and adversely impact the financial condition of one or more of our tenants and therefore could

increase the likelihood that tenant may declare bankruptcy or default upon its payment obligations arising

under related lease

The recent downgrade of the US credit rating and the economic crisis in Europe could negatively impact

our liquidity financial condition and earnings

Recent U.S debt ceiling and budget deficit concerns together with signs of deteriorating sovereign debt

conditions in Europe have increased the possibility of additional credit-rating downgrades and economic

slowdowns Although U.S lawmakers passed legislation to raise the federal debt ceiling Standard

Poors Ratings Services lowered its long-term sovereign credit rating on the U.S from AAA to AA in

August 2011 The impact of this or any further downgrades to the U.S governments sovereign credit

rating or its perceived creditworthiness and the impact of the current crisis in Europe with respect to the

ability of certain European Union countries to continue to service their sovereign debt obligations is

inherently unpredictable and could adversely affect the U.S and global financial markets and economic

conditions There can be no assurance that governmental or other measures to aid economic recovery will

be effective These developments and the governments credit concerns in general could cause interest

rates and borrowing costs to rise which may negatively impact our ability to access the debt markets on

favorable terms In addition the decreased credit rating could create broader financial turmoil and

uncertainty which may weigh heavily on our stock price Continued adverse economic conditions could

have material adverse effect on one or more of our tenants or our business financial condition and results

of operations

Inflation may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

Although inflation has not materially impacted our results of operations in the past increased inflation

could have more pronounced negative impact on our results of operations During times when inflation is

greater than increases in rent as provided for in our leases rent increases may not keep up with the rate of

inflation Likewise even though triple net leases reduce our exposure to rising property expenses due to

inflation substantial inflationary pressures and increased costs may have an adverse impact on our tenants

if increases in their operating expenses
exceed increases in revenue which may adversely affect the tenants

ability to pay rent
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Risks related to our financing

Our Line of Credit contains various covenants which not complied with could accelerate our repayment

obligations thereby materially and adversely affecting our liquidity financial condition results of

operations and ability to pay distributions to stockholders

The agreement governing our Line of Credit requires us to comply with certain financial and operational

covenants These covenants require us to among other things maintain certain financial ratios including

fixed charge coverage debt service coverage and minimum net worth We are also required to limit our

distributions to stockholders to 95% of our FF0 and continued compliance with this covenant may require

us to limit our distributions to stockholders As of December 31 2011 we were in compliance with these

covenants However our continued compliance with these covenants depends on many factors and could

be impacted by current or future economic conditions and thus there are no assurances that we will

continue to comply with these covenants In addition we have $45.2 million of mortgage debt maturing in

October 2013 Under the terms of the Line of Credit we must refinance extend or have enough cash on

hand including availability under our Line of Credit as of April 2013 or we would be considered in

default Failure to comply with these covenants would result in default which if we were unable to

obtain waiver from the lenders could accelerate our repayment obligations under the Line of Credit and

thereby have material adverse impact on our liquidity financial condition results of operations and

ability to pay distributions to stockholders

Our business strategy relies heavily on external financing which may expose us to risks associated with

leverage such as restrictions on additional borrowing and payment of distributions to stockholders risks

associated with balloon payments and risk of loss of our equity upon foreclosure

We use leverage so that we may make more investments than would otherwise be possible in order to

maximize potential returns to stockholders If the income generated by our properties and other assets fails

to cover our debt service we could be forced to reduce or eliminate distributions to our stockholders and

may experience losses

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives will be affected by our ability to borrow money in

sufficient amounts and on favorable terms We expect that we will borrow money that will be secured by

our properties and that these financing arrangements will contain customary covenants such as those that

limit our ability without the prior consent of the lender to further mortgage the applicable property or to

discontinue insurance coverage Accordingly we may be unable to obtain the degree of leverage we

believe to be optimal which may cause us to have less cash for distribution to stockholders than we would

have with an optimal amount of leverage Our use of leverage could also make us more vulnerable to

downturn in our business or the economy as it may become difficult to meet our debt service obligations if

our cash flows are reduced due to tenant defaults There is also risk that significant increase in the ratio

of our indebtedness to the measures of asset value used by financial analysts may have an adverse effect on

the market price of our securities

Some of our debt financing arrangements may require us to make lump-sum or balloon payments at

maturity Our ability to make balloon payment at maturity is uncertain and may depend upon our ability

to obtain additional financing or to sell the financed property At the time the balloon payment is due we

may not be able to refinance the balloon payment on terms as favorable as the original loan or sell the

property at price sufficient to make the balloon payment which could adversely affect the amount of

distributions to our stockholders

We intend to acquire additional properties by using our Line of Credit and by continuing to seek long-term

financing where we will borrow all or portion of the purchase price of potential acquisition and

securing the loan with mortgage on some or all of our existing real property The market for long-term

mortgages has been limited for some time however we have recently seen mid-to-long-term to 10 year

mortgages become more obtainable The CMBS market has been attempting to make comeback in recent

months but it is much more conservative than it was prior to the recession and the pricing in the market
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remains volatile As result we will likely not have the same level of access to the CMBS market that we

had prior to the recession Consequently we are looking to regional banks insurance companies and other

non-bank lenders and to lesser extent the CMBS market to issue mortgages to finance our real estate

activities As of December 31 2011 we have obtained approximately $285.0 million in long-term

financing which we have used to acquire additional properties If we are unable to make our debt payments

as required lender could foreclose on the property securing its loan This could cause us to lose part or all

of our investment in such property which in turn could cause the value of our securities or the amount of

distributions to our stockholders to be reduced

change in the value of our assets could cause us to experience cash shortfall be in default of our loan

covenants lose management control or incur charge for the impairment of assets

We borrow on secured basis under the Line of Credit significant reduction in value of the assets

secured as collateral could require us to post additional assets or pay down the balance of the Line of

Credit Although we believe that we have significant excess collateral and capacity future asset values are

uncertain If we were unable to meet request to add collateral to the Line of Credit this inability could

have material adverse affect on our liquidity and our ability to meet our loan covenants We may
determine that the value of an individual asset or group of assets was impaired and that we may need to

record charge to write-down the value of the asset to reflect its current estimated value based upon its

intended use

Interest rate changes may adversely affect our results of operations

We may experience interest rate volatility in connection with mortgage loans on our properties or other

variable-rate debt that we may obtain from time to time Certain of our leases contain escalations based on

market interest rates and the interest rate on our existing Line of Credit is variable Although we seek to

mitigate this risk by structuring such provisions to contain minimum interest rate or escalation rate as

applicable these features do not eliminate this risk We are also exposed to the effects of interest rate

changes as result of holding cash and cash equivalents in short-term interest-bearing investments We
have not entered into any derivative contracts to attempt to further manage our exposure to interest rate

fluctuations significant change in interest rates could have an adverse impact on our results of

operations

Risks related to the real estate industry

We are subject to certain risks associated with real estate ownership and lending which could reduce the

value of our investments

Our investments include net leased industrial commercial and retail property Our performance and the

value of our investments is subject to risks inherent to the ownership and operation of these types of

properties including

changes in the general economic climate

changes in local conditions such as an oversupply of space or reduction in demand for real estate

changes in interest rates and the availability of financing

competition from other available space and

changes in laws and governmental regulations including those governing real estate usage zoning and

taxes

The debt obligations of our tenants are dependent upon certain factors which neither we nor our tenants or

borrowers control such as national local and regional business and economic conditions government

economic policies and the level of interest rates As discussed in Risks related to the economy above the

credit markets have tightened resulting in significant contraction in available liquidity Accordingly the
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credit market constraints and recession may increase the operating expenses
of our tenants and decrease

their ability to make lease payments and thereby adversely affect our liquidity financial condition results

of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders

Competition for the acquisition of real estate may impede our ability to make acquisitions or increase the

cost of these acquisitions

We compete for the acquisition of properties with many other entities engaged in real estate investment

activities including financial institutions institutional pension funds other REITs other public and private

real estate companies and private real estate investors These competitors may prevent us from acquiring

desirable properties or may cause an increase in the price we must pay for real estate Our competitors may
have greater resources than we do and may be willing to pay more for certain assets or may have more

compatible operating philosophy with our acquisition targets In particular larger REITs may enjoy

significant competitive advantages that result from among other things lower cost of capital and

enhanced operating efficiencies Our competitors may also adopt transaction structures similar to ours

which would decrease our competitive advantage in offering flexible transaction terms In addition the

number of entities and the amount of funds competing for suitable investment properties may increase

resulting in increased demand and increased prices paid for these properties

Our ownership of properties through ground leases exposes us to risks which are different than those

resulting from our ownership offee title to other properties

We have acquired an interest in certain of our properties by acquiring leasehold interest in the land

underlying the property and we may acquire additional properties in the future that are subject to similar

ground leases In this situation we have no economic interest in the land underlying the property and do

not control this land Because we do not control the underlying land this type of ownership interest poses

potential risks for our business because if the ground lease terminates for any reason we will lose our

interest in the property including any investment that we made in the property ii if our tenant defaults

under the previously existing lease we will continue to be obligated to meet the terms and conditions of the

ground lease without the annual amount of ground lease payments reimbursable to us by the tenant and

iii if the third party owning the land under the ground lease disrupts our use either permanently or for

significant period of time then the value of our assets could be impaired and our results of operations could

be adversely affected

Risks related to our tenants borrowers and properties

Highly leveraged tenants and borrowers may be unable to pay rent or make mortgage payments which

could adversely affect our cash available to make distributions to our stockholders

Some of our tenants and borrowers may have recently been either restructured using leverage or acquired

in leveraged transaction Tenants and borrowers that are subject to significant debt obligations may be

unable to make their rent or mortgage payments if there are adverse changes to their businesses or because

of the impact of the recession discussed in Risks related to the economy Tenants that have experienced

leveraged restructurings or acquisitions will generally have substantially greater debt and substantially

lower net worth than they had prior to the leveraged transaction In addition the payment of rent and debt

service may reduce the working capital available to leveraged entities and prevent them from devoting the

resources necessary to remain competitive in their industries

In situations where management of the tenant or borrower will change after transaction it may be

difficult for our Adviser to determine with certainty the likelihood of the tenants or borrowers business

success and of its ability to pay rent or make mortgage payments throughout the lease or loan term These

companies generally are more vulnerable to adverse economic and business conditions and increases in

interest rates

Leveraged tenants and borrowers are more susceptible to bankruptcy than unleveraged tenants Bankruptcy

of tenant or borrower could cause
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the loss of lease or mortgage payments to us

an increase in the costs we incur to carry the property occupied by such tenant

reduction in the value of our securities or

decrease in distributions to our stockholders

Under bankruptcy law tenant who is the subject of bankruptcy proceedings has the option of continuing

or terminating any unexpired lease If bankrupt tenant terminates lease with us any claim we might

have for breach of the lease excluding claim against collateral securing the claim will be treated as

general unsecured claim Our claim would likely be capped at the amount the tenant owed us for unpaid

rent prior to the bankruptcy unrelated to the termination plus the greater of one years lease payments or

15% of the remaining lease payments payable under the lease but no more than three years lease

payments In addition due to the long-term nature of our leases and terms providing for the repurchase of

property by the tenant bankruptcy court could re-characterize net lease transaction as secured

lending transaction If that were to occur we would not be treated as the owner of the property but might

have additional rights as secured creditor

Net leases may not result in fair market lease rates over time

We expect large portion of our rental income to come from net leases and net leases frequently provide

the tenant greater discretion in using the leased property than ordinary property leases such as the right to

sublease the property subject to our approval to make alterations in the leased premises and to terminate

the lease prior to its expiration under specified circumstances Further net leases are typically for longer

lease terms and thus there is an increased risk that contractual rental increases in future years will fail to

result in fair market rental rates during those years As result our income and distributions to our

stockholders could be lower than they would otherwise be if we did not engage in net leases

Many of our tenants are small and medium size businesses which
exposes us to additional risks unique to

these entities

Leasing real property or making mortgage loans to small and medium-sized businesses exposes us to

number of unique risks related to these entities including the following

Small and medium-sized businesses may have limited financial resources and may not be able to make

their lease or mortgage payments on timely basis or at all small or medium-sized tenant or

borrower may be more likely to have difficulty making its lease or mortgage payments when it

experiences adverse events such as the failure to meet its business plan downturn in its industry or

negative economic conditions In addition because of the lack of available credit in the current

marketplace as discussed further in Risks related to the economy above our tenants might not be able

to obtain the financing necessary to fund their working capital which could hinder their ability to make

their lease or mortgage payment on timely basis or at all

Small and medium-sized businesses typically have narrower product lines and smaller market shares

than large businesses Because our target tenants and borrowers are typically smaller businesses that

may have narrower product lines and smaller market share they will tend to be more vulnerable to

competitors actions and market conditions as well as general economic downturns In addition our

target tenants and borrowers may face intense competition including competition from companies with

greater financial resources more extensive development manufacturing marketing and other capabilities

and larger number of qualified managerial and technical personnel
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There is generally little or no publicly available information about our target tenants and borrowers

Many of our tenants and borrowers are likely to be privately owned businesses about which there is

generally little or no publicly available operating and financial information As result we will rely on

our Adviser to perform due diligence investigations of these tenants and borrowers their operations and

their prospects We may not learn all of the material information we need to know regarding these

businesses through our investigations

Small and medium-sized businesses generally have less predictable operating results We expect that

many of our tenants and borrowers may experience significant fluctuations in their operating results may

from time to time be parties to litigation may be engaged in rapidly changing businesses with products

subject to substantial risk of obsolescence may require substantial additional capital to support their

operations to finance expansion or to maintain their competitive positions may otherwise have weak

financial position or may be adversely affected by changes in the business cycle Our tenants and

borrowers may not meet net income cash flow and other coverage tests typically imposed by their senior

lenders The failure of tenant or borrower to satisfy financial or operating covenants imposed by senior

lenders could lead to defaults and potentially foreclosure on credit facilities which could additionally

trigger cross-defaults in other agreements If this were to occur it is possible that the ability of the tenant

or borrower to make required payments to us would be jeopardized

Small and medium-sized businesses are more likely to be dependent on one or two persons Typically the

success of small or medium-sized business also depends on the management talents and efforts of one

or Iwo persons or small group of persons The death disability or resignation of one or more of these

persons could have material adverse impact on our tenant or borrower and in turn on us

Small and medium-sized businesses may have limited operating histories While we intend to target as

tenants and borrowers stable companies with proven track records we may lease properties or lend

money to new companies that meet our other investment criteria Tenants or borrowers with limited

operating histories will be exposed to all of the operating risks that new businesses face and may be

particularly susceptible to among other risks market downturns competitive pressures and the departure

of key executive officers

We may not have funding forfuture tenant improvements

When tenant at one of our properties does not renew its lease or otherwise vacates its space in one of our

buildings it is likely that in order to attract one or more new tenants we will be required to expend

substantial funds for tenant improvements and tenant refurbishments to the vacated space We cannot

assure you that we will have sufficient sources of funding available to us for such purposes in the future

Illiquidity of real estate investments may make it difficult for us to sell properties in response to market

conditions and could harm our financial condition and ability to make distributions

To the extent the properties are not subject to triple-net leases some significant expenditures such as real

estate taxes and maintenance costs are generally not reduced when circumstances cause reduction in

income from the investment Should these events occur our income and funds available for distribution

could be adversely affected In addition as REIT we may be subject to 100% tax on net income derived

from the sale of property considered to be held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of our

business We may seek to avoid this tax by complying with certain safe harbor rules that generally limit the

number of properties we may sell in given year the aggregate expenditures made on such properties prior

to their disposition and how long we retain such properties before disposing of them However we can

provide no assurance that we will always be able to comply with these safe harbors If compliance is

possible the safe harbor rules may restrict our ability to sell assets in the future and achieve liquidity that

may be necessary to fund distributions
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Our real estate investments may include special use and single or multi-tenant properties that may be

difficult to sell or re-lease upon tenant defaults or early lease terminations

We focus our investments on commercial industrial and retail properties number of which include

manufacturing facilities special use storage or warehouse facilities and special use single or multi-tenant

properties These types of properties are relatively illiquid compared to other types of real estate and

financial assets This illiquidity will limit our ability to quickly change our portfolio in
response to changes

in economic or other conditions With these properties if the current lease is terminated or not renewed or

in the case of mortgage loan if we take such property in foreclosure we may be required to renovate the

property or to make rent concessions in order to lease the property to another tenant or sell the property In

addition in the event we are forced to sell the property we may have difficulty selling it to party other

than the tenant or borrower due to the special purpose for which the property may have been designed

These and other limitations may affect our ability to sell or re-lease properties without adversely affecting

returns to our stockholders

Our real estate investments have limited number of tenants and are concentrated in limited number of

industries which subjects us to an increased risk of sign Ulcant loss if any one of these tenants is unable to

pay or ifparticular industries experience downturns

As of December 31 2011 we owned 72 properties and had 57 tenants in these properties and our largest

tenants accounted for approximately 23.5% of our total rental income consequence of limited number

of tenants is that the aggregate returns we realize may be substantially adversely affected by the

unfavorable performance of small number of tenants We do not have fixed guidelines for industry

concentration and our investments could potentially be concentrated in relatively few industries As of

December 31 2011 14.7% of our total rental income was earned from tenants in the healthcare education

and childcare industry 14.2% of our total rental income was earned from tenants in the telecommunication

industries and 13.9% of our total rental income was earned from tenants in the electronic industry As

result downturn in an industry in which we have invested significant portion of our total assets could

have material adverse effect on us

The inability of tenant in single tenant property to pay rent will reduce our revenues and increase our

carrying costs of the building

Since most of our properties are occupied by single tenant the success of our investments will be

materially dependent on the financial stability of these tenants If tenant defaults our rental revenues

would be reduced and our expenses
associated with carrying the property would increase as we would be

responsible for payments such as taxes and insurance Lease payment defaults by these tenants could

adversely affect our cash flows and cause us to reduce the amount of distributions to stockholders In the

event of default by tenant we may experience delays in enforcing our rights as landlord and may incur

substantial costs in protecting our investment and re-leasing our property If lease is terminated there is

no assurance that we will be able to lease the property for the rent previously received or sell the property

without incurring loss

We may be unable to renew leases lease vacant space or re-lease space as leases expire which could

adversely affect our business and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders

If we cannot renew leases we may be unable to re-lease our properties to other tenants at rates equal to or

above the current market rate Even if we can renew leases tenants may be able to negotiate lower rates as

result of market conditions Market conditions may also hinder our ability to lease vacant space in newly

developed or redeveloped properties In addition we may enter into or acquire leases for properties that are

specially suited to the needs of particular tenant Such properties may require renovations tenant

improvements or other concessions in order to lease them to other tenants if the initial leases terminate

Any of these factors could adversely impact our financial condition results of operations cash flow our

ability to pay distributions to our stockholders
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Liability for uninsured losses could adversely affect our financial condition

Losses from disaster-type occurrences such as wars floods or earthquakes may be either uninsurable or

not insurable on economically viable terms Should an uninsured loss occur we could lose our capital

investment or anticipated profits and cash flow from one or more properties

We could incur sign ficant costs related to government regulation and private litigation over environmental

matters

Under various environmental laws including the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation

and Liability Act or CERCLA current or previous owner or operator of real property may be liable for

contamination resulting from the release or threatened release of hazardous or toxic substances or

petroleum at that property and an entity that arranges for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic

substance or petroleum at another property may be held jointly and severally liable for the cost to

investigate and clean up such property or other affected property Such parties are known as potentially

responsible parties or PRPs Environmental laws often impose liability without regard to whether the

owner or operator knew of or was responsible for the presence of the contaminants and the costs of any

required investigation or cleanup of these substances can be substantial PRPs are liable to the government

as well as to other PRPs who may have claims for contribution The liability is generally not limited under

such laws and could exceed the propertys value and the aggregate assets of the liable party The presence

of contamination or the failure to remediate contamination at our properties also may expose us to third-

party liability for personal injury or property damage or adversely affect our ability to sell lease or develop

the real property or to borrow using the real property as collateral

Environmental laws also impose ongoing compliance requirements on owners and operators of real

property Environmental laws potentially affecting us address wide variety of matters including but not

limited to asbestos-containing building materials storage tanks storm water and wastewater discharges

lead-based paint wetlands and hazardous wastes Failure to comply with these laws could result in fines

and penalties and/or expose us to third-party liability Some of our properties may have conditions that are

subject to these requirements and we could be liable for such fines or penalties and/or liable to third parties

for those conditions

We could be exposed to liability and remedial costs related to environmental matters

Certain of our properties may contain or may have contained asbestos-containing building materials or

ACBMs Environmental laws require that ACBMs be properly managed and maintained and may impose

fines and penalties on building owners and operators for failure to comply with these requirements Also

certain of our properties may contain or may have contained or are adjacent to or near other properties that

have contained or currently contain storage tanks for the storage of petroleum products or other hazardous

or toxic substances These operations create potential for the release of petroleum products or other

hazardous or toxic substances Certain of our properties may contain or may have contained elevated

radon levels Third parties may be permitted by law to seek recovery
from owners or operators for property

damage and/or personal injury associated with exposure to contaminants including but not limited to

petroleum products hazardous or toxic substances and asbestos fibers Also certain of our properties may

contain regulated wetlands that can delay or impede development or require costs to be incurred to mitigate

the impact of any disturbance Absent appropriate permits we can be held responsible for restoring

wetlands and be required to pay fines and penalties

Certain of our properties may contain or may have contained microbial matter such as mold and mildew

The
presence

of microbial matter could adversely affect our results of operations In addition if any of our

property is not properly connected to water or sewer system or if the integrity of such systems are

breached or if water intrusion into our buildings otherwise occurs microbial matter or other contamination

can develop When excessive moisture accumulates in buildings or on building materials mold growth

may occur particularly if the moisture problem remains undiscovered or is not addressed over period of

time Some molds may produce airborne toxins or irritants If this were to occur we could incur significant

remedial costs and we may also be subject to material private damage claims and awards Concern about
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indoor
exposure to mold has been increasing as exposure to mold may cause variety of adverse health

effects and symptoms including allergic or other reactions If we become subject to claims in this regard

it could materially and adversely affect us and our future insurability for such matters

Independent environmental consultants conduct Phase environmental site assessments on all of our

acquisitions Phase environmental site assessments are intended to evaluate information regarding the

environmental condition of the surveyed property and surrounding properties based generally on visual

observations interviews and certain publicly available databases These assessments do not typically take

into account all environmental issues including but not limited to testing of soil or groundwater or the

possible presence of asbestos lead-based paint radon wetlands or mold The results of these assessments

are addressed and could result in either cancellation of the purchase the requirement of the seller to

remediate issues or additional costs on our part to remediate the issue

None of the previous site assessments revealed any past or present environmental liability that we believe

would be material to us However the assessments may have failed to reveal all environmental conditions

liabilities or compliance concerns Material environmental conditions liabilities or compliance concerns

may have arisen after the assessments were conducted or may arise in the future and future laws

ordinances or regulations may impose material additional environmental liability We cannot assure you
that costs of future environmental compliance will not affect our ability to make distributions or that such

costs or other remedial measures will not be material to us

If sale-leaseback transaction is re-characterized in tenants bankruptcy proceeding our financial

condition could be adversely affected

We may enter into sale-leaseback transactions whereby we would purchase property and then lease the

same property back to the person from whom we purchased it In the event of the bankruptcy of tenant

transaction structured as sale-leaseback may be re-characterized as either financing or joint venture

either of which outcomes could adversely affect our business If the sale-leaseback were re-characterized as

financing we might not be considered the owner of the property and as result would have the status of

creditor in relation to the tenant In that event we would no longer have the right to sell or encumber our

ownership interest in the property Instead we would have claim against the tenant for the amounts owed

under the lease with the claim arguably secured by the property The tenant/debtor might have the ability

to propose plan restructuring the term interest rate and amortization schedule of its outstanding balance

If confirmed by the bankruptcy court we could be bound by the new terms and prevented from foreclosing

our lien on the property If the sale-leaseback were re-characterized as joint venture we could be treated

as co-venturer with our lessee with regard to the property As result we could be held liable under

some circumstances for debts incurred by the lessee relating to the property Either of these outcomes

could adversely affect our cash flow and our ability to pay distributions to stockholders

Our properties may be subject to impairment charges which could adversely affect our results of

operations and FF0

We are required to periodically evaluate our properties for impairment indicators propertys value is

considered impaired if managements estimate of the aggregate future cash flows undiscounted and

without interest charges to be generated by the property based upon its intended use is less than the

carrying value of the property These estimates of cash flows are based upon factors such as expected

future operating income trends and prospects as well as the effects of interest and capitalization rates

demand and occupancy competition and other factors Ongoing adverse market and economic conditions

and market volatility make it difficult to value our properties These factors may result in uncertainty in

valuation estimates and instability in the estimated value of our properties which in turn could result in

substantial decrease in the value of the properties and significant impairment charges

We continually assess our properties to determine if any impairments are necessary or appropriate No

assurance can be given that we will be able to recover the current carrying amount of our properties in the

future Our failure to do so would require us to recognize additional impairment charges for the period in
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which we reached that conclusion which could materially and adversely affect us and our results of

operations and FF0

If we invest in mortgage loans such investments may be affected by unfavorable real estate market

conditions including interest rate fluctuations which could decrease the value of those loans and our

results of operations

If we invest in mortgage loans we will be at risk of defaults by the borrowers on those mortgage loans as

well as interest rate risks To the extent we incur delays in liquidating such defaulted mortgage loans we

may not be able to obtain sufficient proceeds to repay
all amounts due to us under the mortgage loans

Further we will not know whether the values of the properties securing the mortgage loans will remain at

the levels existing on the dates of origination of those mortgage loans If the values of the underlying

properties fall our risk will increase because of the lower value of the security associated with such loans

Risks related to our Adviser

We are dependent upon our key management personnel who are employed by our Adviser for our future

success particularly David Gladstone Terry Lee Brubaker and George Stelljes III

We are dependent on our senior management and other key management members to carry out our business

and investment strategies Our future success depends to significant extent on the continued service and

coordination of our senior management team particularly David Gladstone our chairman and chief

executive officer Terry Lee Brubaker our vice chairman and chief operating officer and George Stelljes

III our president and chief investment officer all of whom are subject to an employment agreement with

our Adviser The departure of any of our executive officers or key employees could have material adverse

effect on our ability to implement our business strategy and to achieve our investment objectives

Our success depends on the performance of our Adviser and our Adviser makes inadvisable investment

or management decisions our operations could be materially adversely impacted

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives and to pay distributions to our stockholders is dependent

upon the performance of our Adviser in evaluating potential investments selecting and negotiating

property purchases and dispositions and mortgage loans selecting tenants and borrowers setting lease or

mortgage loan terms and determining financing arrangements Accomplishing these objectives on cost-

effective basis is largely function of our Advisers marketing capabilities management of the investment

process ability to provide competent attentive and efficient services and our access to financing sources on

acceptable terms Our stockholders have no opportunity to evaluate the terms of transactions or other

economic or financial data concerning our investments and must rely entirely on the analytical and

management abilities of our Adviser and the oversight of our Board of Directors If our Adviser or our

Board of Directors makes inadvisable investment or management decisions our operations could be

materially adversely impacted As we grow our Adviser may be required to hire train supervise and

manage new employees Our Advisers failure to effectively manage our future growth could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

We may have conflicts of interest with our Adviser and other affiliates

Our Adviser manages our business and locates evaluates recommends and negotiates the acquisition of

our real estate investments At the same time our advisory agreement permits our Adviser to conduct other

commercial activities and provide management and advisory services to other entities including but not

limited to Gladstone Capital Corporation or Gladstone Capital Gladstone Investment Corporation or

Gladstone Investment and Gladstone Land Corporation or Gladstone Land an entity owned by our

chairman David Gladstone Moreover with the exception of our chief financial officer all of our officers

and directors are also officers and directors of Gladstone Capital and Gladstone Investment which actively

make loans to and invest in small and medium-sized companies As result we may from time to time

have conflicts of interest with our Adviser in its management of our business and with Gladstone Capital

and Gladstone Investment which may arise primarily from the involvement of our Adviser Gladstone
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Capital Gladstone Investment Gladstone Land and their affiliates in other activities that may conflict with

our business

Examples of these potential conflicts include

our Adviser may realize substantial compensation on account of its activities on our behalf and may
therefore be motivated to approve acquisitions solely on the basis of increasing compensation to itself

we may experience competition with our affiliates for financing transactions

our Adviser may earn fee income from our borrowers or tenants and

our Adviser and other affiliates such as Gladstone Capital Gladstone Investment and Gladstone Land

could compete for the time and services of our officers and directors

These and other conflicts of interest between us and our Adviser and other affiliates could have material

adverse effect on the operation of our business and the selection or management of our real estate

investments

Our Adviser is not obligated to provide waiver of the incentive fee which could negatively impact our

earnings and our ability to maintain our current level of or increase disfributions to our stockholders

The Advisory Agreement contemplates quarterly incentive fee based on our funds from operations Our

Adviser has the ability to issue full or partial waiver of the incentive fee for current and future periods

however our Adviser is not required to issue any waiver Any waiver issued by our Adviser is an

unconditional and irrevocable waiver For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 an

unconditional and irrevocable voluntary waiver was issued by our Adviser for approximately $2.1 million

$0.2 million and $0.7 million respectively If our Adviser does not issue this waiver in future quarters it

could negatively impact our earnings and may compromise our ability to maintain our current level of or

increase distributions to our stockholders which could have material adverse impact on the market price

of our securities

We may be obligated to pay our Adviser incentive compensation even we incur loss

The Advisory Agreement entitles our Adviser to incentive compensation based on our FF0 which rewards

the Adviser if our quarterly FF0 before giving effect to any incentive fee exceeds 1.75% 7% annualized

of our total stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock Our pre-incentive fee FF0

for incentive compensation purposes excludes the effect of any unrealized gains losses or other items that

do not affect realized net income that we may incur in the fiscal quarter even if such losses result in net

loss on our statement of operations for that quarter Thus we may be required to pay our Adviser incentive

compensation for fiscal quarter even if we incur net loss for that quarter

Risks Related to Qualification and Operation as REIT

Ifwe fail to qua4i5 as REIT our operations and dividends to stockholders would be adversely impacted

We intend to continue to be organized and to operate so as to qualify as REIT under the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986 as amended or the Code REIT generally is not taxed at the corporate level on income it

currently distributes to its stockholders Qualification as REIT involves the application of highly

technical and complex rules for which there are only limited judicial or administrative interpretations The

determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within our control may affect our

ability to continue to qualify as REIT In addition new legislation new regulations administrative

interpretations or court decisions could significantly change the tax laws possibly with retroactive effect

with respect to qualification as REIT or the federal income tax consequences of such qualification
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If we were to fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year

we would not be allowed to deduct our distributions to stockholders when computing our taxable

income

we would be subject to federal income tax including any applicable alternative minimum tax on

our taxable income at regular corporate rates

we would be disqualified from being taxed as REIT for the four taxable years following the year

during which qualification was lost unless entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions

our cash available for dividends to stockholders would be reduced and

we may be required to borrow additional funds or sell some of our assets in order to pay corporate

tax obligations that we may incur as result of our disqualification

We may need to incur additional borrowings to meet the REIT minimum distribution requirement and to

avoid excise tax

In order to maintain our qualification as REIT we are required to distribute to our stockholders at least

90% of our annual real estate investment trust taxable income excluding any net capital gain and before

application of the dividends paid deduction To the extent that we satisfy this distribution requirement but

distribute less than 100% of our taxable income we will be subject to federal corporate income tax on our

undistributed taxable income In addition we are subject to 4% nondeductible excise tax on the amount

if any by which certain distributions paid by us with respect to any calendar year are less than the sum of

85% of our ordinary income for that year ii 95% of our net capital gain for that year and iii 100% of

our undistributed taxable income from prior years In order to meet the 90% distribution requirement and

to avoid the 4% excise tax we may need to incur additional borrowings Although we intend to pay

dividends to our stockholders in manner that allows us to meet the 90% distribution requirement and

avoid this 4% excise tax we cannot assure you that we will always be able to do so

Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us to forgo otherwise attractive opportunities or

liquidate otherwise attractive investments

To qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we must continually satisfy tests concerning among

other things the nature and diversification of our assets the sources of our gross income the amounts we

distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of our capital stock In order to meet these tests we may

be required to forgo investments we might otherwise make Thus compliance with the REIT requirements

may hinder our performance

In particular we must ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter at least 75% of the value of our assets

consists of cash cash items government securities and qualified real estate assets The remainder of our

investment in securities other than government securities securities of taxable REIT subsidiaries each

taxable REIT subsidiary or TRS and qualified real estate assets generally cannot include more than 10%

of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding

securities of any one issuer In addition in general no more than 5% of the value of our assets other than

government securities securities of TRSs and qualified real estate assets can consist of the securities of

any one issuer and no more than 25% of the value of our total assets can be represented by the securities of

one or more TRSs

We also must ensure that at least 75% of our gross income for each taxable year consists of certain types

of income that we derive directly or indirectly from investments relating to real property or mortgages on

real property or qualified temporary investment income and ii at least 95% of our gross income for each

taxable year consists of income that is qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gross income test other
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types of interest and dividends gain from the sale or disposition of stock or securities or any combination

of these

In addition we may be required to make distributions to our stockholders at disadvantageous times or when

we do not have funds readily available for distribution If we fail to comply with these requirements at the

end of any calendar quarter we must qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT

qualification and suffering adverse tax consequences As result we may be required to liquidate

otherwise attractive investments and may be unable to pursue investments that would otherwise be

advantageous to us in order to satisfy the asset and
gross

income requirements for qualifying as REIT

These actions could have the effect of reducing our income and the amounts available for distribution to

our stockholders Thus compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make and in

certain cases maintain ownership of certain attractive investments

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulatory tax changes that could reduce the market price of

our securities

At any time the federal income tax laws governing REITs or the administrative interpretations of those

laws may be amended We cannot predict when or if any new federal income tax law regulation or

administrative interpretation or any amendment to any existing federal income tax law regulation or

administrative interpretation will be adopted promulgated or become effective and any such law

regulation or interpretation may take effect retroactively We and our stockholders could be adversely

affected by any such change in or any new federal income tax law regulation or administrative

interpretation

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualfj for the reduced tax rates available for some dividends

The maximum tax rate applicable to income from qualified dividends payable to U.S stockholders that

are individuals trusts and estates has been reduced by legislation to 15% currently through the end of

2012 Dividends payable by REITs however generally are not eligible for the reduced rates Although

this legislation does not adversely affect the taxation of REITs or dividends payable by REITs the more

favorable rates applicable to regular corporate qualified dividends could cause investors who are

individuals trusts and estates to perceive investments in REITs to be relatively less attractive than

investments in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that pay dividends which could adversely affect the

value of the shares of REITs including our stock

Complying with the REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively and may cause us to incur

tax liabilities

The REIT provisions of the Code substantially limit our ability to hedge our liabilities Any income from

hedging transaction that we enter into to manage risk of interest rate changes price changes or currency

fluctuations with respect to borrowings made or to be made to acquire or carry
real estate assets does not

constitute gross income for purposes of the gross income requirements To the extent that we enter into

other types of hedging transactions the income from those transactions is likely to be treated as non-

qualifying income for purposes of both of the gross income tests As result of these rules we may need to

limit our use of advantageous hedging techniques or implement those hedges through TRSs This could

increase the cost of our hedging activities because any TRS would be subject to tax on gains or expose us

to greater risks associated with changes in interest rates than we would otherwise want to bear In addition

losses incurred by TRS generally will not provide any tax benefit except for being carried forward

against future taxable income earned by the TRS

To the extent that our distributions represent return of capital for tax purposes you could recognize an

increased capital gain upon subsequent sale of your stock

Distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits and not treated by us as

dividend will not be taxable to U.S stockholder to the extent such distributions do not exceed the

stockholders adjusted tax basis in its shares of our stock but instead will constitute return of capital and

will reduce the stockholders adjusted tax basis in its shares of our stock If our distributions result in
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reduction of stockholders adjusted basis in its shares of our stock subsequent sales by such stockholder

of its shares of our stock potentially will result in recognition of an increased capital gain or reduced capital

loss due to the reduction in such stockholders adjusted basis in its shares of our stock

If our Operating Partnership fails to maintain its status as disregarded entity or partnershzp forfederal

income tax purposes its income may be subject to taxation

As we hold all of the ownership interests in our Operating Partnership it is currently disregarded for

income tax purposes We intend that our Operating Partnership will qualify as partnership for income tax

purposes upon the admission of additional partners however if the IRS were to successfully challenge the

status of our Operating Partnership as partnership it would be taxable as corporation In such event this

would reduce the amount of distributions that our Operating Partnership could make to us This could 1so

result in our losing REIT status and becoming subject to corporate level tax on our income This would

substantially reduce our cash available to pay distributions and the return on your investment In addition if

any of the entities through which our Operating Partnership owns its properties in whole or in part loses

its characterization as disregarded entity or partnership for federal income tax purposes it would be

subject to taxation as corporation thereby reducing distributions to our Operating Partnership Such re

characterization of an underlying property owner could also threaten our ability to maintain REIT status

Other risks

We are subject to restrictions that may discourage change of control Certain provisions contained in our

articles of incorporation and Maryland law may prohibit or restrict change of control

Our articles of incorporation prohibit ownership of more than 9.8% of the outstanding shares of our

capital stock by one person This restriction may discourage change of control and may deter

individuals or entities from making tender offers for our capital stock which offers might otherwise be

financially attractive to our stockholders or which might cause change in our management

Our Board of Directors is divided into three classes with the term of the directors in each class expiring

every third year At each annual meeting of stockholders the successors to the class of directors whose

term expires at such meeting will be elected to hold office for term expiring at the annual meeting of

stockholders held in the third year following the year of their election After election director may only

be removed by our stockholders for cause Election of directors for staggered terms with limited rights to

remove directors makes it more difficult for hostile bidder to acquire control of us The existence of this

provision may negatively impact the price of our securities and may discourage third-party bids to

acquire our securities This provision may reduce any premiums paid to stockholders in change in

control transaction

Certain provisions of Maryland law applicable to us prohibit business combinations with

any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of our common stock

referred to as an interested stockholder

an affiliate of ours who at any time within the two-year period prior to the date in question

was an interested stockholder or

an affiliate of an interested stockholder

These prohibitions last for five years after the most recent date on which the interested stockholder became

an interested stockholder Thereafter any business combination with the interested stockholder must be

recommended by our Board of Directors and approved by the affirmative vote of at least 80% of the votes

entitled to be cast by holders of our outstanding shares of common stock and two-thirds of the votes

entitled to be cast by holders of our common stock other than shares held by the interested stockholder

These requirements could have the effect of inhibiting change in control even if change in control were

in our stockholders interest These provisions of Maryland law do not apply however to business
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combinations that are approved or exempted by our Board of Directors prior to the time that someone

becomes an interested stockholder

Market conditions could adversely affect the market price and trading volume of our securities

The market price of our common and preferred stock may be highly volatile and subject to wide

fluctuations and the trading volume in our common and preferred stock may fluctuate and cause significant

price variations to occur Due to market volatility our common stock significantly fluctuated during 2011

We cannot assure investors that the market price of our common and preferred stock will not fluctuate or

decline further in the future Some market conditions that could negatively affect our share price or result in

fluctuations in the price or trading volume of our securities include but are not limited to

price and volume fluctuations in the stock market from time to time which are often unrelated to the

operating performance of particular companies

significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of shares of REITs real estate companies or

other companies in our sector which is not necessarily related to the performance of those companies

price and volume fluctuations in the stock market as result of terrorist attacks or speculation regarding

future terrorist attacks in the United States or abroad

actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results or distributions to stockholders

changes in our funds from operations or earnings estimates or the publication of research reports about us

or the real estate industry generally

actions by institutional stockholders

speculation in the press or investment community

changes in regulatory policies or tax guidelines particularly with respect to REITs and

investor confidence in the stock market

Shares of common stock eligible forfuture sale may have adverse effects on our share price

We cannot predict the effect if any of future sales of common stock or the availability of shares for future

sales on the market price of our common stock Sales of substantial amounts of common stock including

shares of common stock issuable upon the conversion of units of our operating partnership that we may
issue from time to time or issuable upon conversion of our senior common stock or the perception that

these sales could occur may adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common stock

Legislative or regulatory action could adversely affect investors

In recent years numerous legislative judicial and administrative changes have been made in the provisions

of the federal and state income tax laws applicable to investments in stock of REITs Additional changes to

tax laws are likely to continue to occur in the future and we cannot assure you that any such changes will

not adversely affect the taxation of our stockholders Any such changes could have an adverse effect on an

investment in our shares or on the market value or the resale potential of our properties

Compliance or failure to comply with laws requiring access to our properties by disabled persons could

result in substantial cost

The Americans with Disabilities Act or ADA and other federal state and local laws generally require

public accommodations be made accessible to disabled persons Noncompliance could result in the

imposition of fines by the government or the award of damages to private litigants These laws may require

us to modify our existing properties These laws may also restrict renovations by requiring improved access

to such buildings by disabled persons or may require us to add other structural features which increase our

construction costs Legislation or regulations adopted in the future may impose further burdens or
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restrictions on us with respect to improved access by disabled persons We may incur unanticipated

expenses
that may be material to our financial condition or results of operations to comply with ADA and

other federal state and local laws or in connection with lawsuits brought by private litigants

Our Board ofDirectors may change our investment policy without stockholders approval

Subject to our co-investment policy our Board of Directors will determine our investment and financing

policies growth strategy and our debt capitalization distribution acquisition disposition and operating

policies Our Board of Directors may revise or amend these strategies and policies at any time without

vote by stocldiolders Accordingly stockholders control over changes in our strategies and policies is

limited to the election of directors and changes made by our Board of Directors may not serve the interests

of stocld-iolders and could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations including our

ability to distribute cash to stockholders or qualify as REIT

Our failure to redeem our Series Term Preferred Stock on its Mandatory Redemption Date could trigger

change of control in our Board ofDirectors

If we fail to redeem or call for redemption the Series Term Preferred Stock pursuant to the mandatory

redemption required on January 31 2017 the number of directors constituting our Board of Directors will

be increased by the minimum number of directors that when added to our Board of Directors will

constitute majority and the holders of our Series Term Preferred Stock will be entitled voting as

separate class to the exclusion of the holders of all other classes or series of our stock to elect such

number of additional directors

Joint venture investments could be adversely affected by our lack of sole decision making authority our

reliance on co-venturers financial condition and disputes between our co-venturers and us

We may invest with third parties through partnerships joint ventures or other entities acquiring non-

controlling interests in or sharing responsibility for managing the affairs of property partnership joint

venture or other entity In such event we will not have sole decision-making authority regarding the

property partnership joint venture or other entity Investments in partnerships joint ventures or other

entities may under certain circumstances involve risks not present were third party not involved

including the possibility that partners or co-venturers may become bankrupt or fail to fund their share of

required capital contributions Partners or co-venturers also may have economic or other business interests

or goals that are inconsistent with our business interests or goals and may be in position to take actions

contrary to our preferences policies or objectives Such investments also will have the potential risk of our

reaching impasses with our partners or co-venturers on key decisions such as sale because neither we

nor the partner or co-venturer would have full control over the partnership or joint venture Disputes

between us and partners or co-venturers may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our

expenses and prevent our management team from focusing its time and effort exclusively on our business

In addition we may in some circumstances be liable for the actions of our third-party partners or co

venturers

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to take action against our directors and officers are limited

Maryland law provides that director or officer has no liability in that capacity if he or she performs his or

her duties in good faith in manner he or she reasonably believes to be advisable and in our best interests

and with the care that an ordinarily prudent person in like position would use under similar

circumstances In addition our charter eliminates our directors and officers liability to us and our

stockholders for money damages except for liability resulting from actual receipt of an improper benefit in

money property or services or active and deliberate dishonesty established by final judgment and that is

material to the cause of action and ii requires us to indemnify directors and officers for liability resulting

from actions taken by them in those capacitates to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law As

result our stockholders and we may have more limited rights against our directors and officers than might

otherwise exist under common law In addition we may be obligated to fund the defense costs incurred by

our directors and officers
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

The following table provides certain summary information about our 72 properties as of December 31

2011

TotoiReoral trotorow 6w
Totot Koala

Year of

the year coded
Ieooow

per Onotmtheorwet

Yeaotro8t/ Roatobk Loooo Deoerothee3l 20111
Ooo00ied Sqoare oooro

Poop arty hrqroovenwato Date of Pooohooo Square Foot Oooraavy pfratioa
oaIIaria 000aaatf

Foot Tboooardo

208 Smelt Regret Lotte

ttohioNC 1997 12/23/2803 58926 100% 2015 623 1057 4939

3874 ttitou8 Path NW
Caotoa Ott 1994 1302804 54018 100% 2014 338 6.26 2016

260 Sprhogrivr Orivo

Aloror 001 1968/1999 4292804 83891 100% 2015 1027 12.24 7217

SItS Wettpaok Drive

Charlotte NC 19841995 6382084 64500 100% 2019 1032 16.00 0690

171 Oraat Oak Orior

CaatoaNC 1998 762004 228000 100% 2024 600 2.65 2314

101.219 TaoPaaorlNo 33-251-0246

8iderTowaoko FA 1991 852004 290000 100% 2014 931 3.21 5462

9698 Old US Hwy 52

1.ooirgtor NC 1986 852004 154000 100% 2014 425 2.76 2771

9100 Highway 290 Otter

Aorotir TX 2001 9162004 51933 100% 2015 751 14.46 6500

13 hawtaktFaok Drive

Mt Pooorm PA 1995-1999 10152004 225275 100% 2021 633 2.84 5113

0050 Pelt Park Tea tloohvood

Sao Antonio 171 1999 2102005 60245 100% 2014 770 12.78 8982

4630 Joranat Street

Cokaadros OH 1995 2102005 39000 100% 2015 308 7.90 2655

199 SirgoitgKoad

BgPkloNY 2001 4152005 120000 100% 2013 644 5.37 5587

2525 NoattoWordkoow Avaoaw

WivIt6a KS 2000 5112005 69287 100% 2012 1109 16.01 8129

725 737 Orrat SoothweatPkwy

Aohtgtoa TX 1966 5262005 64800 100% 2013 663 10.36 4008

4032 Liodee Avrroa

Dayton OH 1956 6352005 59894 100% 2018 268 4.47 1984

SI Coahett Way

Eatootowo NJ 199 772005 30268 100% 2024 537 17.74 4545

17 20 Varoaka Avaeoe

Featdolia Towoak NJ 1979 7112005 183000 100% 2020 983 5.37 6759

150 Ridgrvirw Crater Oriva

Dwwaa SC 198420012807 7142005 222670 100% 2020 1539 6.9 1109

170 00dgrftw Create Daivo

Diana SC 1984/20012807 7142005 55350 100% 2020 383 6.92 2735

5656 Caroqroo Parkway

Hamiwood MO 1977 852005 51159 0% 2011 86 1.68 2360

914 Wahlrot Overt

Aogoh IN 1982 922005 52080 100% 2023 126 2.42 682

800 Onowth Parkway

Aargok IN 1991 922005 50000 100% 2023 126 2.02 655

802 Soot 11th Street

Kook Path IL 1988 922005 52000 100% 2823 126 2.42 681

Oppoataa6y Way

i1oooburyort SaSA 1994 10172005 86308 100% 205 89 10.32 6593

255 SpritgStroot

Cir.toavllk WI 1992 10312009 291142 100% 2020 57 1.07 3263

5700 Lao Road

Jr4aple Hoitlo 011 1974 12212005 347218 100% 2015 1271 3.66 10332
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5275

1979 12130/2005 23368 2889

1978 2/15/2006 156580

1996 2/21/2006 20486 1667

1996 2/21/2006 40080 3268

1996 2i21/2006 25000 2042

1996 2/21/2006 22.862
1868

1964 2/21/2006 359540
18545

1984 3/10/2006 114100 11556

1986/2000 6/30/2006 125692 6940

1907 7/11/2006 12000
2000

1979/1980 9/22/2006 532069

1061/1980 0/29/2006 63514

1962/1989 929/2006 29472

1978 9i29/2006 16275

2002 1/5/2007 60050 5357

1994 2/16/2007 115500
540

2004 3/1/2007 258310 8500

1956/1092 3/9/2007 132337

1985/1989 5/17/2007 102200

2007 7/1/2007 21264 4764

2005 9/6/2007 71880 4219

2001 9/28/2007 63235
9152

2002 9t28/2007 55.869 4929

1989 12/13/2007 16740 3257

851

Fraeerv

Total Rental Ira/one Er
Total Rental

Year of
te eraSed

Irtane per Fereranlreannes

Year BaSI/ ReelabO Laaae Deaonter3l 201
oaaapod Sqrnra 5IrSsn

Inrroverrtr5a Dale of Farabaae Sqiraro Fool Oeeapamy Erqplalitrr

b0aa Ohonth1 Feat Thoorrrds

1972 12/30/2005 42213 0% 2010

276

154

273

535

334

11.81

1.61

13.38

13.38

13.36

7545 MallerhtanTrespike

lliolarort VA

3930 Srarllreesl Coarl

Tabdo 011

75 CarrelSOeal

Sand Iladley MA

2101 FanDrian

Cleaqram IL

2109 Fan Drive

Clms9rer II

2215 FanDriva

Clrae1ta IL

230 FanDeiar

Clwqrars IL

2470 I6arrerl Road

alarevlle MN

12000 Fordand Aveare Snare

Banana MN

14701 AralarnyAnenne

Meeerrnrrre Fa Wi

1025 Bfrdsaeg Drive

Baylewm TX

42400 MeerllRaad

Steelirg HerIn Mi

21502250 Fleas VaflryFaeknray

Bltrirarst AL

2325 Wee Fakvriw Asornre

Meragarrery AL

5221 Hirway763

Cabartri MD

4690 Fednway Drive

Maaaar 081

20 Sorobkagera Lane

RakigIk NC

1110 Weal Tenkifier

çSta DR

3725 Earl lOrIr Corel

Hieleab FL

554 COrk Road

Tewkabaey MA

5324 Nelaip Bartnaed

irlaaae OH

7282 WOMan Barry Banlevaed

Clara NY

ISIS MrereteenDrioe SE

Dread Rapils MI

TendarMl Carat

Ballirglreaak IL

2349 Lanretneenllb highway

Deaaor DA

234 Larnreaaevllle hbghnway

Deaaarr DA

2339 l.awreocavlle Highway

Deaatar DA

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

150%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2020

2012

2013

2013

2013

2013

2012

2015

2016

2013

2016

2016

2016

2016

2013

2015

2010

2022

2017

2027

2020

2025

2014

2031

306 13.38

3031 8.43

1235 10.82

783 6.23

254 21.17

1167 2.19

271 4.27

126 4.28

69 4.24

681 11.35

717 6.2

1566 6.57

1013 7.65

922 9.02

583 27.42

530 7.37

1088 17.21

619 11.08

469 28.02

123 28.131989 12/13/2007 4372 100% 2031

1989 12/13/2007 5488 100% 203 154 28.06 1068
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Total Renal banonar the

Total Rental

Year of

liar oear erulad

leconc per Ecea
Year Built/ Reetobh Lease Docetthar 31 20

Oooqried Square ge
Propeaty Iegmsnnarnto Date of Purchase Sqacre Feet Occupancy Enmtiso Foot 2/escrow

SI
Phillir

Boulevard

Lawronooville GA 2005 12/13/2007 12412 100% 203 407 32.79 2020

2096 McGee Road

SnellvilleGA 1906 12/13/2007 3800 100% 2031 106 27.89 732

7174 Wlasat Snort

CoviegtocrGA 2000 12/13/2007 5000 100% 2031 139 27.80 963

1055 Haw Creek Parkway

CaacaeirngGA 2004 12/13/2007 13919 00% 2031 442 31.76 3066

1293 Welheook Chile

Conyrra GA 1994 12/13/2007 6400 100% 2031 178 27.81 1233

425 Gateway Drive

Reading PA 2007 1/29/2008 42900 100% 2028 717 16.71 5214

6499 UnioerskyAvensr NE

Frilky MN 1985/2006 2/26/2008 74160 lOON 2020 812 10.95

7520 Askter Road

ConoordToweshis GD 1957/2008 3/31/2008 273300 100% 2028 1724 6.3

10021 Rodney Snort

PinroiloNC 1985 4/30/2008 74950 100% 2028 431 5.75 2128

28305 State Roate7

fklaeielta OH 1992/2057 8/29/2008 223458 100% 2028 905 4.05 4464

400 lIiglok0 Drive

ChclhotPA 1987 8/29/2000 67200 100% 2016 75S 11.28 6019

1520 AhaeyPtaoe SE

Oraege COy Iowa 1990 12/15/2010 48712 100% 2026 1169 2.40 10402

24lSCratuyPlaooSE

HkkoryNorrhCarolita 2008 4/4/201 60000 100% 2020 693 16.00

2645 North Airport Plezo Asenur Lot

Sprirgfnta MG 2006 6/20/2011 78421 100% 2021 755 16.42 11505

124 East Hines Rood

Boston Heitieto Dli 2011 0/20/2011 25000 105% 2021 74 13.75

Sylvan Way

PorspaeyNJ 1984 10/28/2011 60111 100% 2026 204 17.02 7190

495 Stale Road

Dartesoutle MA 2011 11/18/2011 16540 100% 2086 74 37.28 4352

1955 Sooth Natioeol Avonon

Spektgi5MO 2005 12/13/2011 14560 100% 2080 16 21.66

Sb PaeishStrret

Pinaboede PA 1968 12/28/2011 26080 100% 2026 13.05

Tatatn 7071792 43632 286193

teTwe tenants occupy this building each with sepamte leases ending in the same year

Rental income per occupied square foot is annualized as if the building were held for all of 2011

Property subject 10 ground lease

9Tolal rental income inchaded in this table is stroigtst-line rental income calculated in accordance with US GAAP

Tenant has the option to lermmnate the lease in years 26-75

Tenanl has the option to terminate the lease in years 19-62
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The following table summarizes the lease expirations by year
for our properties for leases in place as of

December 31 2011

Rental Revenue for

Eqiring Leases for

the Year Ended

December31 2011

Year of Lease
Number of

Dollars
in of Annualized Base

Enpiration Square Feet Leases Thousands Rent

2012 578827 4274 9.8%

2013 364262 3690 8.5%

2014 614132 3083 7.1%

2015 896876 6823 15.7%

2016 835022 3174 7.3%

2017 102200 922 2.1%

2018 59894 268 0.6%

2019 3527211 30 21312 48.9%

Total 6978424 57 43546 100%

Our two vacant buildings total 93368 square
feet

The following table summarizes the geographic locations of our properties for leases in place as of

December 31 2011

Rental Revenue for

nqiring Leases for

the Year Ended

December31 2011

Number of
Dollars in of Annualized Base

State Square Feet Leases Thousands Rent

Ohio 1185411 11 7455 17.1%

Minnesota 547800 5078 11.7%

North Carolina 695876 3828 8.8%

Pennsylvania 623375 3039 7.0%

Texas 188178 2438 5.6%

Michigan 596104 2255 5.2%

Iffinois 164131 2067 4.7%

Massachusetts 338508 1947 4.5%

All Other States 2639041 22 15439 35.4%

Total 6978424 57 43546 100%

Our two vacant buildings total 93368 square feet

Item Legal Proceedings

We are not currently subject to any material legal proceedings nor to our knowledge is any material legal

proceeding threatened against us

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market or NASDAQ under the symbol
GOOD The following table reflects the range of the high and low sale prices of our common stock on

NASDAQ and the distributions per share for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 Distributions

to stockholders are declared quarterly and paid monthly Amounts presented represent the cumulative

amount of the common stock distributions declared for the months composing such quarter

Market price per share

Distributions

Quarter Ended High Low Declared Per Share

3/31/2010 14.87 13.05 0.375

6/30/2010 17.79 14.36 0.375

9/30/2010 17.30 15.61 0.375

12/31/2010 19.50 17.00 0.375

3/31/2011 19.54 17.42 0.375

6/30/2011 19.43 16.88 0.375

9/30/2011 17.92 15.00 0.375

12/31/2011 17.76 13.93 0.375

Since inception we have never reduced our per-share distributions nor have we missed payment of

scheduled distribution to our stockholders Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates our per share

distribution payments as they monitor the capital markets and the impact that the economy has upon us
The decision as to whether to authorize and pay distributions on shares of our common stock in the future

as well as the timing amount and composition of any such future distributions will be at the sole and

absolute discretion of our Board of Directors in light of conditions then existing including our earnings

taxable income FF0 financial condition liquidity capital requirements debt maturities the availability of

capital contractual prohibitions or other restrictions applicable REIT and legal restrictions and general

overall economic conditions and other factors While the statements above concerning our distribution

policy represent our current expectations any actual distribution payable will be determined by our Board

of Directors based upon the circumstances at the time of declaration and the actual number of shares then

outstanding and any distribution payable may vary from such expected amounts

To qualif as REIT we are required to make ordinary dividend distributions to our stockholders The

amount of these distributions must equal at least

the sum of 90% of our REIT taxable income computed without regard to the dividends paid

deduction and capital gain and 90% of the net income after tax if any from foreclosure

property less

the sum of certain non-cash items

For federal income tax purposes our distributions generally consist of ordinary income capital gains
nontaxable return of capital or combination of those items Distributions that exceed our current and

accumulated earnings and profits calculated for tax purposes constitute return of capital rather than

dividend which reduces stockholders basis in its shares of stock and will not be taxable to the extent of

the stockholders basis in its shares of our stock To the extent distribution exceeds the stockholders

share of both our current and accumulated earnings and profits and the stockholders basis in its shares of

our stock that distribution will be treated as gain from the sale or exchange of that stockholders shares of

our stock Every year we notif stockholders of the taxability of distributions paid to stockholders during

the preceding year
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As of February 2012 there were approximately 8800 beneficial owners of our common stock

On November 19 2009 the Company entered into dealer manager agreement as amended and restated

on December 22 2009 or the Dealer Manager Agreement with Halcyon Capital Markets LLC or

Halcyon pursuant to which Halcyon agreed to act as the Companys dealer manager in connection with the

Companys continuous private offering of up to 3333333 shares of its then newly-designated unregistered

senior common stock par value $0.00 per share at price of $15.00 per share to investors and selling

commission of 1.6125 per share On October 19 2010 the Company terminated the private offering of

unregistered senior common stock including the related dividend reinvestment plan for such senior

common stock The Company issued 59057 shares of unregistered senior common stock pursuant to the

private offering and related dividend reinvestment plan These issuances were exempt from registration

pursuant to the Securities Act and to Rule 506 thereunder among other exemptions on the basis that the

securities were sold in private offering not involving general solicitation and that the purchasers of the

securities were accredited investors Net proceeds from these sales after selling commissions and dealer

manager fees were approximately $787000
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data for the fiscal years ended December 31 2011 2010 2009 2008 and

2007 is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements Certain amounts from prior years
financial statements have been reclassified to discontinued operations and these reclassifications had no

effect on previously reported net income or stockholders equity The data should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report and

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in

Item of this report

For the year endod December31

Dollars in Thousands Except Per Shoro Anoronts

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Operatireg Data

Total opeeotmg revenue 43976 41928 42609 40807 32690

Total oprratiog etqtrnxeu 21270 23414 20541 19364 15791
Othcrcqostsr 16992 13586 17668 16570 10941
Ittcosnn from cotttittuittg operotions 5714 4928 4400 4873 5958

Discontinued operoti005 203 40 182

Net istconre 3714 4928 4603 4913 6140
Dividends attributable to preferred stock 4094 4094 4094 4094 4094
Dividends attributable to senior conason stock 62 20
Net iecottn ovailoblr to conutron stockholders 1558 814 509 819 2046

Share sad Per Share Data

Eansmgs per weighted average conuton sham -basic diluted

loconas fromcontinaing oprtntioos net ofdividends attributable to prrfcered stock 0.15 0.09 0.04 0.09 0.22

Discontinued operations 0.02 0.01 0.02

Nrtincoexcavailoblrtocostntrenatocldsolders 0.15 0.09 0.06 0.10 0.24

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 10237 0576 8563 0565 8565

Weighted avesoge shores outstanding-diluted 10209 8601 0563 8565 8565
Cash dividends declared per cenusron share 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.44

Srqslrmestsl Data

Net inconus available to conusox stockholders 1538 814 309 819 2046

Renlnstatr depreciation and anrossizasion including discontinued operations 14149 13264 13172 12705 10528

Less Cain oo sale ofreal estote net of tears paid 160 78

Funds finmopnmtions available to cersmxcn stochholdren 15707 14078 13521 13524 12496

Ratio oframings to condsinod fixed charges and professed dividends lb lOx lOx 1.06 lb

Balasne Sheet Data

Rnotestatrbefbreaccunnduteddcprrciatian 442521 401017 390734 390562 348500

Total oasnts 453147 410609 416865 429099 578903

Mortgage notes payable 5mb loan and bosrosssngs under the line of credt
304050 286595 285962 286611 226520

Total stockholders equity 135314 111375 118451 130495 142368
Total conusron shores outstanding 10945 8725 8563 8565 8565

FF0 was developed by The National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts or NAREIT as relative non-

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States or GAAP supplemental measure of operating

performance of an equity REIT in order to recognize that income-producing real estate historically has not depreciated

on the basis determined under GAAP FF0 as defined by NAREIT is net income loss computed in accordance with

GAAP excluding gains or losses from sales of property plus depreciation and amortization of real estate assets and

after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures FF0 does not represent cash flows from operating

activities in accordance with GAAP and should not be considered an alternative to either net income loss as an

indication of our performance or to cash flow from operations as measure of liquidity or ability to make distributions

to stockholders Comparison of FF0 to similarly titled measures for other REITs may not necessarily be meaningful
due to possible differences in the application of the NAREIT definition used by such REITs

FF0 available to common stockholders is FF0 adjusted to subtract preferred share and senior common share

distributions We believe that net income available to common stockholders is the most directly comparable GAAP
measure to FF0 available to common stockholders

Basic funds from operations per share or Basic FF0 per share and diluted funds from operations per share or Diluted

FF0 per share is FF0 available to common stockholders divided by weighted average common shares outstanding and

FF0 available to common stockholders divided by weighted average common shares outstanding on diluted basis

respectively during period We believe that FF0 available to common stockholders Basic FF0 per share and

Diluted FF0 per share are useful to investors because they provide investors with further context for evaluating our

FF0 results in the same manner that investors use net income and earnings per share or EPS in evaluating net income

available to common stockholders In addition since most REITs provide FF0 available to common stockholders
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Basic FF0 and Diluted FF0 per share information to the investment community we believe these are useful

supplemental measures for comparing us to other REITs We believe that net income is the most directly comparable

GAAP measure to FF0 Basic EPS is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to Basic FF0 per share and that

diluted EPS is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to Diluted FF0 per share

The following table provides reconciliation of our FF0 for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 2009 2008 and

2007 to the most directly comparable GAAP measure net income and computation of basic and diluted FF0 per

weighted average common share and basic and diluted net income per weighted average common share

For the year ended December 31

Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Anraunta

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Net inconre

Loss Distributions attnbutabte to prefeered and senior coneemn stank

Net inconre available In connron stockhotders

Add Real estate depreciation and asemrtiration inclading discontmued

operations

Less lain an sale of real estate

EPO available to cenusren stockholders

Weighted average shares ontstandhsg basic

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted

Basic Diluted net inconus per weighted average share ofcosmswn

stork

Basic Diluted FF0 per weighted average share of ronusren stock

Distributions declared per share ofconermn stock

Percentage of FF0 paid per share of conmmn stock

0.15 0.09

1.53

1.50

1.64

1.50

91%

4603 4913 6140

4094 4094 4093

509 819 2047

10528

79
12496

The calculation of the ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred distributions is below Earnings

consist of net income from continuing operations before fixed charges Fixed charges consist of interest expense

amortization of deferred financing fees and the portion of operating lease expense that represents interest The portion

of operating lease expense that represents interest is calculated by dividing the amount of rent expense allocated to us

by our Adviser as part of the administration fee payable under the Advisory Agreement by three

For the
year

ended December 31

Dollars in Thousands Except Ratios

2009 2008

Net inconxc from continuing operations

Add fixed charges and preferred and senior common distnbutions

Less preferred and senior consrtxsn distrisutions

Fixed charges and preferred and senior conntnsn distribtations

Interett
expense

Amortization of delbered flnnncing Ihen

Estinxcted interest component of rent

Preferred and senior common distributions

Total fixed charges and preferred and senior common distributions

5714 4928 4400 4873 5958

20964

4t56 4114 4094 4094 4094

$21247 21191 22001 20964 tS670

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred distributions 1.0

5714 4920

4156 4114

1558 8t4

14149 13204

15707 14078

10237 8576

10209 8601

13172 12705

160

13521 13524

8563 0565

8563 8565

0.06 0.10

90%

8565

0565

0.24

1.46

1.44

99%

1.50

1.50 t.50

95% 95%

2011 2010

Earnings

21247

2007

21191 22001 15670

$22805 22005 22307 21743 17534

16158 16031 16399 15575 10847

918 1031 1496 1284 717

15 15 12 11 12

4156 4114 4094 4094 4094

t.t 1.0 1.0 1.1
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction

with our financial statements and the notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K

OVERVIEW

General

We are real estate investment trust or REIT that was incorporated under the General Corporation Law of

the State of Maryland on February 14 2003 primarily for the
purpose

of investing in and owning net

leased industrial commercial and retail real property and selectively making long-term industrial and

commercial mortgage loans Our portfolio of real estate is leased to wide cross section of tenants ranging

from small businesses to large public companies many of which are corporations that do not have publicly-

rated debt We have historically entered into and intend in the future to enter into purchase agreements for

real estate having triple net leases with terms of approximately 10 to 15 years and built in rental rate

increases Under triple net lease the tenant is required to pay all operating maintenance and insurance

costs and real estate taxes with respect to the leased property We are actively communicating with buyout

funds real estate brokers and other third parties to locate properties for potential acquisition or to provide

mortgage financing in an effort to build our portfolio We currently own 73 properties totaling 7.1 million

square feet which have total gross and net carrying value including intangible assets of $513.7 million

and $437.2 million respectively We do not currently have any mortgage loans outstanding

Business Environment

The United States continues to feel the lingering impact of the recession that began in late 2007

unemployment remains high housing starts are low and the economic situation in Europe will need to

improve for the economy to fully recover As result conditions within the U.S capital markets generally

and the U.S real estate capital markets particularly continue to experience significant dislocation and

stress While we are seeing signs of improvement in both the equity and debt capital markets these

markets remain somewhat challenging Despite the challenges in the marketplace we were able to issue

2.2 million common shares during 2011 for gross proceeds of $39.4 million In addition in January 2012

we closed on $38.5 million of Series Cumulative Term Preferred stock or Term Preferred Stock which

is redeemable in five years During 2011 we also assumed or issued $31.7 million in mid-term mortgages

to finance some of our new properties

However these economic conditions could still materially and adversely impact the financial condition of

one or more of our tenants and therefore could increase the likelihood that tenant may declare

bankruptcy or default upon its payment obligations arising under related lease For example the tenant

occupying our building located in Hazelwood Missouri declared bankruptcy in October 2010 The tenant

did not confirm our lease in its bankruptcy proceedings in March 2011 and the final rent payment was

received in April 2011 We are currently working to re-tenant this property In addition our building

located in Richmond Virginia remains vacant The leases on these two vacant buildings comprised 2.3% of

our annualized rental income and the annual carrying costs are $177000 We are actively seeking new
tenants for these properties All of our remaining properties are occupied and the tenants are paying in

accordance with their leases

Moreover our ability to make new investments is highly dependent upon our ability to procure external

financing Our principal sources of external financing generally include the issuance of equity securities

long-term mortgage loans secured by properties and borrowings under our line of credit or the Line of

Credit The market for long-term mortgages has been limited for some time however we have recently

seen mid-to-long-term to 10 year mortgages become more obtainable The collateralized mortgage

backed securities or CMBS market has been attempting to make comeback in recent months but it is

much more conservative than it was prior to the recession and the pricing in the market remains volatile As

result we will likely not have the same level of access to the CMBS market that we had prior to the
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recession Consequently we are looking to regional banks insurance companies and other non-bank

lenders and to lesser extent the CMBS market to issue mortgages to fmance our real estate activities

Recent Developments

Investment Activities

The following is summary of our recent acquisitions

Hickory North Carolina On April 2011 we acquired 60000 square foot office building located in

Hickory North Carolina for $10.7 million excluding related acquisition expenses
of $59000 We

funded this acquisition using borrowings from our Line of Credit At closing we were assigned the

existing triple net lease with the existing tenant which has remaining term of approximately nine

years The tenant has two options to extend the lease for additional periods of five years each The

lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line

rents of $1.1 million

Springfield Missouri On June 20 2011 we acquired 78421 square foot office building located in

Springfield Missouri for $15.9 million excluding related acquisition expenses
of $55000 We funded

this acquisition through combination of borrowings from our Line of Credit and the assumption of

approximately $11.6 million of mortgage debt on the property At closing we were assigned the

existing triple net lease with T-Mobile USA Inc which has remaining term of approximately ten

years The tenant has three options to extend the lease for additional periods of five years each The

lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line

rents of $1.4 million

Boston Heights Ohio On October 20 2011 we acquired 25000 square foot office building located

in Boston Heights Ohio for $4.4 million excluding related acquisition expenses of $56000 We funded

this acquisition using borrowings from our Line of Credit The property was new build-to-suit for

Paychex North America subsidiary of Paychex Inc The tenant has leased the property for ten years

and has three options to renew the lease for additional periods of three years
each The lease provides

for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of $377000

Parsippany New Jersey On October 28 2011 we acquired 60111 square foot office building

located in Parsippany New Jersey for $11.1 million excluding related acquisition expenses of

$390000 We funded this acquisition through combination of borrowings from our Line of Credit and

the issuance of $7.2 million of mortgage debt on the property The tenant has leased the property for 15

years
and has one option to renew the lease for an additional period of three years The lease provides

for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of $1.1

million

Dartmouth Massachusetts On November 18 2011 we acquired the leasehold interests in 16340

square foot retail building located in Dartmouth Massachusetts for $5.8 million excluding related

acquisition expenses
of $56000 We funded this acquisition through combination of borrowings from

our Line of Credit and the issuance of $4.4 million of mortgage debt on the property The property was

new build-to-suit and is primarily leased to the Walgreens Company Walgreens has leased the

property for 75 years with the rights to terminate every years
in

years
26-75 The lease provides for

prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents net of ground

lease payments of $414000

Springfield Missouri On December 13 2011 we acquired the leasehold interests in 14560 square

foot retail building located in Springfield Missouri for $2.7 million excluding related acquisition

expenses
of $42000 We funded this acquisition using borrowings from our Line of Credit The

property is leased to the Walgreens Company Waigreens has 62 years remaining on the lease with the
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rights to terminate every years in years 19-62 The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over

the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents net of ground lease payments of $221000

Pittsburgh Pennsylvania On December 28 2011 we acquired 26080 square foot office building

located in Pittsburgh Pennsylvania for $4.2 million excluding related acquisition expenses of

$140000 We funded this acquisition using borrowings from our Line of Credit Expedient

Communications data center operator is the tenant in this building and has leased the property for 15

years and has options to renew the lease for additional periods of
years

each The lease provides for

prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of $400000

Ashburn Virginia On January 25 2012 we acquired 52130 square foot office building located in

Ashburn Virginia for $10.8 million excluding related acquisition expenses of $98000 We funded this

acquisition using borrowings from our Line of Credit Independent Project Analysis mc an energy

consultant is the tenant in this building and has leased the property for 15 years and has options to

renew the lease for additional periods of
years

each The lease provides for prescribed rent

escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of $989000

Financing Activities

Debt

The following is summary of debt that has recently been issued

PNC Bank On June 20 2011 we assumed approximately $11.6 million of indebtedness pursuant to

long-term note payable from PNC Bank in connection with the Companys acquisition on the same

date of property located in Springfield Missouri The note accrues interest at rate of 6.08% per

year and we may not repay this note prior to the last two months of the term or we would be subject to

substantial prepayment penalty The note matures on June 30 2016

Provident Bank On October 28 2011 we borrowed $7.2 million pursuant to lông-term note payable

from The Provident Bank which is collateralized by security interest in our Parsippany New Jersey

property which was acquired on the same date The note accrues interest at rate of 6.00%
per year

and we may not
repay

this note prior to the last two years of the term or we would be subject to

substantial prepayment penalty The note has maturity date of November 2021

Liberty Bank On November 18 2011 we borrowed $4.4 million pursuant to long-term note payable

from Liberty Bank which is collateralized by security interest in our Dartmouth Massachusetts

property which was acquired on the same date The note accrues interest at rate of 4.50% per year

and we may not repay this note prior to the last three months of the term or we would be subject to

substantial prepayment penalty The note has maturity date of November 2018 with three year

extension period through November 2021

Great Southern Bank On December 2011 we borrowed $8.5 million pursuant to long-term note

payable from Great Southern Bank which is collateralized by security interest in our Tulsa

Oklahoma property The note accrues interest for the first five years at rate of 6.00%
per year after

the 5th
year the rate is based on the prime rate with floor of 6.00% We may not repay this note prior

to December 2015 or we would be subject to substantial prepayment penalty The note has

maturity date of December 2019

Line of Credit

Expansion On January 31 2012 we amended our Line of Credit to increase the current maximum

availability of credit under our Line of Credit from $50.0 million to $75.0 million The Line of Credit

was arranged by Capital One N.A as administrative agent and Branch Banking and Trust Company as
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an additional lender Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania joined the Line of Credit as an additional lender

All other terms of the agreement remained the same

Leasing Activities

The following is summary of leases that have been recently extended

Georgia Properties On January 31 2011 we extended the lease with our tenant occupying our

properties located in Decatur Georgia Lawrenceville Georgia Snellville Georgia Covington

Georgia and Conyers Georgia The lease covering all of these properties was extended for an

additional five year period thereby extending the lease until December 2031 The lease was originally

set to expire in December 2026 The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the

lease with annualized straight line rents of $1.6 million Furthermore the lease grants the tenant four

options to extend the lease for period of five years each In connection with the extension of the lease

and the modification of certain terms under the lease the tenant paid $750000

South Hadley Massachusetts On May 15 2011 we re-leased our previously vacant building located in

South Hadley Massachusetts for period of six months with three-month extension option In

February 2012 the tenant signed new lease with term expiring in January 2013 with one-year

extension option

Angola Indiana On June 23 2011 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our properties

located in Angola Indiana and Rock Falls Illinois The lease covering these properties was extended

for an additional three-year period thereby extending the lease until August 2023 The lease was

originally set to expire in August 2020 The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life

of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately $345000 Furthermore the lease

grants the tenant three options to extend the lease for period of five years each In connection with the

extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we provided tenant

allowance of $150000 payable over one year period

San Antonio Texas On February 14 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our

property located in San Antonio Texas The lease covering this property was extended for an

additional eight-year period thereby extending the lease until November 2021 The lease was

originally set to expire in February 2014 The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the

life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately $785000 Furthermore the lease

grants the tenant two options to extend the lease for period of five years each In connection with the

extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we provided tenant

allowance of $603000 payable over two years and paid $327000 in leasing commissions

Roseville Minnesota On February 27 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our

property located in Roseville Minnesota The new lease covers approximately one-third of this

property and was extended for an additional five year period thereby extending the lease until

December 2017 The lease was originally set to expire in December 2012 The tenant in this property

will pay rent on the entire building through the end of 2012 and we continue to search for new tenants

to lease the remainder of the building The new lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the

life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of $1257 Furthermore the lease grants the tenant

one option to extend the lease for period of five years In connection with the extension of the lease

and the modification of certain terms under the lease we provided tenant allowance of $413 payable

over two years and paid $767 in leasing commissions

Equity Activities

The equity issuances summarized below were all issued under our effective shelf registration statement on

file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or SEC
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Common Equity On February 2011 we closed on the sale of 725000 shares of our common stock at

$18.35 per share in an underwritten public offering Subsequently on February 16 2011 we closed on

the sale of an additional 108750 shares of common stock on the same terms and conditions in

connection with the underwriters exercise of their over-allotment option The net proceeds including

the over-allotment after deducting the underwriting discount and offering expenses were $14.3 million

We used the proceeds of the offering to repay portion of the outstanding balance under our Line of

Credit and for general corporate purposes

Common Equity On June 15 2011 we closed on the sale of 1200000 shares of our common stock at

$17.55 per share in an underwritten public offering Subsequently on July 2011 we closed on the

sale of an additional 174000 shares of common stock on the same terms and conditions in connection

with the underwriters exercise of their over-allotment option The net proceeds including the over-

allotment after deducting the underwriting discount and offering expenses were $22.7 million We used

the proceeds of the offering to repay portion of the outstanding balance under our Line of Credit and

for general corporate purposes

Preferred Equity On February 2012 we completed public offering of 1.4 million shares of 7.125%

Series Term Preferred Stock par value $0.001 per share at public offering price of $25.00 per

share Gross proceeds totaled $35.0 million and net proceeds of the offering after deducting

underwriting discounts and offering expenses borne by us were $33.4 million and were used to repay

portion of outstanding borrowings under our Line of Credit and for acquistions of real estate On

February 2012 the underwriters notified us of their intent to exercise their option to purchase an

additional 140000 shares of the Term Preferred Stock to cover over-allotments which resulted in net

proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts of $3.4 million received by us on February 10 2012
which were used for working capital The shares are traded under the ticker symbol GOODN on the

NASDAQ The Term Preferred Stock is not convertible into our common stock or any other security

Generally we may not redeem shares of the Term Preferred Stock prior to January 31 2016 except in

limited circumstances to preserve our status as REIT On or after January 31 2016 we may redeem

the shares at redemption price of $25 per share plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends to and

including the date of redemption The shares of the Term Preferred Stock have mandatory redemption

date of January 31 2017 In accordance with ASC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity

mandatorily redeemable financial instruments should be classified as liabilities in the balance sheet and

therefore we will record the Term Preferred Stock as liability

Senior Common Equity During December 2011 and January 2012 we issued 11933 shares of our

senior common stock at $15.00 per share in an ongoing best-efforts public offering The net proceeds

after deducting the underwriting discount and commission were $161100 We used the proceeds of the

offering to repay portion of the outstanding balance under our Line of Credit and for general corporate

purposes

Diversity of Our Portfolio

Gladstone Management Corporation or our Adviser seeks to diversify our portfolio to avoid dependence

on any one particular tenant geographic market or tenant industry By diversifying our portfolio our

Adviser intends to reduce the adverse effect on our portfolio of single under-performing investment or

downturn in any particular industry or geographic market Our largest tenant at December 31 2011

comprised 6.9% of our total rental income and our largest concentration of properties was located in Ohio
which accounted for 17.1% of our total rental income The table below reflects the breakdown of our total

rental income by tenant industry classification for the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively
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Our Adviser and Administrator

Our Adviser is led by management team which has extensive experience purchasing real estate and

originating mortgage loans Our Adviser is controlled by Mr David Gladstone our chairman and chief

executive officer Mr Gladstone is also the chairman and chief executive officer of our Adviser Terry Lee

Brubaker our vice chairman chief operating officer secretary and director is member of the Board of

Directors of our Adviser as well as its vice chairman and chief operating officer George Stelijes III our

president chief investment officer and director is member of the Board of Directors of our Adviser and

its president and chief investment officer Gladstone Administration LLC or our Administrator employs

our chief financial officer chief compliance officer intemal counsel treasurer investor relations

department and their respective staffs

Our Adviser and Administrator also provide investment advisory and administrative services respectively

to our affiliates including but not limited to Gladstone Capital Corporation and Gladstone Investment

Corporation both publicly-traded business development companies as well as Gladstone Land

Corporation private agricultural real estate company With the exception of our chief financial officer

all of our executive officers serve as either directors or executive officers or both of Gladstone Capital

Corporation and Gladstone Investment Corporation In the future our Adviser may provide investment

advisory services to other funds both public and private of which it is the sponsor

Advisory and Administration Agreements

We are externally managed pursuant to contractual arrangements with our Adviser and our Administrator

Our Adviser and Administrator employ all of our personnel and pay their payroll benefits and general

expenses directly We have an advisory agreement with our Adviser or the Advisory Agreement and an

administration agreement with our Administrator or the Administration Agreement

Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement we are responsible for all
expenses

incurred for our direct

benefit Examples of these expenses
include legal accounting interest on short-term debt and mortgages

tax preparation directors and officers insurance stock transfer services stockholder-related fees

consulting and related fees In addition we are also responsible for all fees charged by third parties that are

directly related to our business which may include real estate brokerage fees mortgage placement fees

lease-up fees and transaction structuring fees although we may be able to pass some or all of such fees on

to our tenants and borrowers

During the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 none of these third party expenses were

incurred by us directly The actual amount of such fees that we incur in the future will depend largely upon

the aggregate costs of the properties that we acquire the aggregate amount of mortgage loans that we make

Industry Classification

Heslthcare Education Childcare

Teleconomsaications

Electronics

Diversified/Conglossmrate Manofactssristg

Chemicals Plastics Rubber

Containers Packaging Glass

Personal Non-Gamble Consunmr Products

Boverage Food Tobacco

Machinery

Buildings and Real Estate

Printing Publishing

Oil Des

Auloombile

Diversified/Conglonmrate Services

Personal Food Miscellaneous Services

Hoem Office Furnishings

Banhing

Insurance

Forlhe year rnded December 312011 Poe the year ended December 31 2010 For the year coded December 31 2009

Dollars in Thousands Dollars in Thousands Dollars

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of

Rental Income Rental lnconm Rental Incone Rental Income Rental Incont Rental Incont

6467 14.7% 6145 14.915 6145 14.8%

6206 14.2 5447 13.3 5447 13.1

6046 13.9 6165 15.0 6165 14.9

3664 8.4 3665 8.9 3664 8.8

3146 7.2 3130 7.6 3173 7.6

2339 5.4 2330 5.7 2330 3.6

2316 5.3 1228 3.0 1355 3.3

2271 5.2 2189 5.3 2189 5.3

2256 5.2 2333 5.7 2390 5.8

2120 4.9 2075 5.0 2026 4.9

1979 4.5 2188 5.3 2189 5.3

1271 2.9 1283 3.1 1138 2.7

1167 2.7 1167 2.8 1167 2.8

1001 2.3 308 0.7 308 0.8

649 1.5 575 1.4 575 1.4

530 1.2 530 1.3 530 1.3

204 0.5 0.0 0.0

0.0 422 1.0 723 1.7

43632 l00.0/ 41180 100.005 41514 l00.O%
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and the extent to which we are able to pass on such fees to our tenants and borrowers pursuant to the terms

of the agreements Accordingly the amount of these fees that we will pay in the future is not determinable

at this time

Management Services and Fees under the Advisory Agreement

The Advisory Agreement provides for an annual base management fee equal to 2.0% of our total

stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock or total common stockholders equity

and for an incentive fee based on funds from operations or FF0 Our Adviser does not charge acquisition

or disposition fees when we acquire or dispose of properties as is common with other externally-advised

REITs Furthermore there are no fees charged when our Adviser secures long or short term credit or

arranges mortgage loans on our properties however our Adviser may earn fee income from our borrowers

or tenants or other sources

For purposes of calculating the incentive fee FF0 includes any realized capital gains and capital losses

less any distributions paid on preferred stock and senior common stock but FF0 does not include any

unrealized capital gains or losses The incentive fee would reward our Adviser if our quarterly FF0 before

giving effect to any incentive fee or pre-incentive fee FF0 exceeds 1.75% or the hurdle rate of total

common stockholders equity We pay our Adviser an incentive fee with respect to our pre-incentive fee

FF0 in each calendar quarter as follows

no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in which our pre-incentive fee FF0 does not exceed the

hurdle rate of 1.75% 7% annualized

100% of the amount of the pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than

2.1875% in any calendar quarter 8.75% annualized and

20% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds 2.1875% in any calendar quarter

8.75% annualized

Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on FF0

Pre-incentive fee FF0

expressed as percentage of total common stockholders equity

1.15% 2.1815%

0% 100% 20%

Percentage of pre-incentive fee FF0 allocated to the incentive fee

The incentive fee may be reduced because of covenant which exists in our Line of Credit agreement

which limits distributions to our stockholders to 95% of FF0 less those acquisition-related costs that are

required to be expensed under Accounting Standards Codification or ASC 805 Business Combinations

In order to comply with this covenant our Board of Directors accepted our Advisers offer to

unconditionally irrevocably and voluntarily waive on quarterly basis portion of the incentive fee for the

years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 which allowed us to maintain the current level of

distributions to our stockholders These waived fees may not be recouped by our Adviser in the future

Our Adviser has indicated that it intends to continue to waive all or portion of the incentive fee in order to

support the current level of distributions to our stockholders however our Adviser is not required to issue

any such waiver either in whole or in part
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Administration Agreement

Pursuant to the Administration Agreement we pay for our allocable portion of our Administrators

overhead
expenses

incurred while performing its obligations to us including but not limited to rent and

the salaries and benefits expenses of our personnel including our chief financial officer chief compliance

officer internal counsel treasurer investor relations department and their respective staffs Our allocable

portion of expenses is generally derived by multiplying our Administrators total
expenses by the

percentage of our total assets at the beginning of each quarter in comparison to the total assets of all

companies managed by our Adviser under similar agreements

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in

the United States of America or GAAP requires management to make judgments that are subjective in

nature in order to make certain estimates and assumptions Our Adviser relies on its experience collects

historical and current market data and analyzes this information in order to arrive at what it believes to be

reasonable estimates Under different conditions or assumptions materially different amounts could be

reported related to the accounting policies described below In addition application of these accounting

policies involves the exercise of judgment regarding the use of assumptions as to future uncertainties and

as result actual results could materially differ from these estimates summary of all of our significant

accounting policies is provided in Note to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in

this Form 10-K Below is summary of accounting polices involving estimates and assumptions that

require complex subjective or significant judgments in their application and that materially affect our

results of operations

Allocation of Purchase Price

When we acquire real estate we allocate thepurchase price less any expenses
related to the acquisition to

the acquired tangible assets and liabilities consisting of land building tenant improvements long-term

debt and ii the identified intangible assets and liabilities consisting of the value of above-market and

below-market leases in-place leases unamortized lease origination costs tenant relationships and capital

lease obligations based in each case on their fair values All expenses related to the acquisition are

expensed as incurred rather than capitalized into the cost of the acquisition as had been required by the

previous accounting

Managements estimates of value are made using methods similar to those used by independent appraisers

e.g discounted cash flow analysis Factors considered by management in its analysis include an estimate

of carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering current market conditions and

costs to execute similar leases We also consider information obtained about each property as result of our

pre-acquisition due diligence marketing and leasing activities in estimating the fair value of the tangible

and intangible assets and liabilities acquired In estimating carrying costs management also includes real

estate taxes insurance and other operating expenses and estimates of lost rentals at market rates during the

hypothetical expected lease-up periods which primarily range
from to 18 months depending on specific

local market conditions Management also estimates costs to execute similar leases including leasing

commissions legal and other related expenses to the extent that such costs are not already incurred in

connection with new lease origination as part of the transaction Management also considers the nature

and extent of our existing business relationships with the tenant growth prospects for developing new

business with the tenant the tenants credit quality and managements expectations of lease renewals

including those existing under the terms of the lease agreement among other factors change in any of

the assumptions above which are very subjective could have material impact on our results of

operations
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The allocation of the purchase price directly affects the following in our consolidated financial statements

The amount of purchase price allocated to the various tangible and intangible assets on our

balance sheet

The amounts allocated to the value of above-market and below-market lease values are amortized

to rental income over the remaining non-cancelable terms of the respective leases The amounts

allocated to all other tangible and intangible assets are amortized to depreciation or amortization

expense Thus depending on the amounts allocated between land and other depreciable assets

changes in the purchase price allocation among our assets could have material impact on our

FF0 metric which is used by many REIT investors to evaluate our operating performance and

The period of time over which tangible and intangible assets are depreciated varies greatly and

thus changes in the amounts allocated to these assets will have direct impact on our results of

operations Intangible assets are generally amortized over the respective life of the leases which

normally range
from 10 to 15 years Also we depreciate our buildings over 39 years but do not

deprec.iate our land These differences in timing could have material impact on our results of

operations

Asset Impairment Evaluation

We periodically review the carrying value of each property to determine if circumstances that indicate

impairment in the carrying value of the investment exist or that depreciation periods should be modified In

determining if impairment exists management considers such factors as our tenants payment histories the

financial condition of our tenants including calculating the current leverage ratios of tenants the likelihood

of lease renewal business conditions in the industries in which our tenants operate and whether the

carrying value of our real estate has decreased If any of the factors above support the possibility of

impairment we prepare projection of the undiscounted future cash flows without interest charges of the

specific property and determine if the carrying amount of such property is recoverable In preparing the

projection of undiscounted future cash flows we estimate the holding periods of the properties and cap

rates using information that we obtain from market comparability studies and other comparable sources If

impairment were indicated the carrying value of the property would be written down to its estimated fair

value based on our best estimate of the propertys discounted future cash flows using assumptions from

market participants Any material changes to the estimates and assumptions used in this analysis could

have significant impact on our results of operations as the changes would impact our determination of

whether impairment is deemed to have occurred and the amount of impairment loss that we would

recognize

Using the methodology discussed above and in light of the current economic conditions discussed above in

OverviewBusiness Environment we evaluated our entire portfolio as of December 31 2011 for any

impairment indicators and performed an impairment analysis on those select properties that had an

indication of impairment As result of this analysis we concluded that none of our properties were

impaired and we will continue to monitor our portfolio for any indicators that may change our conclusion

Results of Operations

The weighted-average yield on our total portfolio taking into account vacant properties was 9.4% as of

December 31 2011 If all properties in the portfolio were fully occupied the weighted-average yield would

have been 9.5% assuming retums on our vacant buildings remained steady as of December 31 2011 The

weighted-average yield on our portfolio is calculated by taking the annualized straight-line rents reflected

as rental income on our consolidated statements of operations of each acquisition as percentage of the

acquisition The weighted-average yield does not account for the interest
expense

incurred on the

mortgages placed on our properties
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comparison of our operating results for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 is below

For the year ended December 31

2011 2010 $Change %Change

Dollars in Thousands

Operating revenues

Rental income 43632 41180 2452 6%

Interest income frommortgage note receivable 421 421 -100%

Tenant recovery revenue 344 327 17 5%

Total operating revenues 43976 41928 2048 5%

Operating expenses

Depreciation and amortization 14149 13264 885 7%

Pmperty operating expenses 986 971 15 2%

Due diligence expense 700 412 288 70%

Base imnagement fee 1629 1199 430 36%

Incentive fee 3398 3480 82 -2%

Administration fee 1024 1063 39 -4%

Ceneral and administrative 1497 3408 1911 -56%

Total operating expenses before credit fromAdviser 23383 23797 414 -2%

Credit to base menagement fee 225 225 100%

Credit to incentive fee 2113 158 1955 1237%

Total operating expenses 21270 23414 2144
__________________

Other income expense

lnterestincome-employeeloans 36 151 115 -76%

Other income 48 3326 3278 -99%

Interest expense 17076 17063 13 0%

Total other expense 16992 13586 3406 25%

Net income 5714 4928 786 16%

Distributions attributable to prefened stock 4094 4094 0%

Distributions attributable to senior common stock 62 20 42 210%

Net income available to common stockholders 1558 814 744 91%

Operating Revenues

Rental income increased for year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended December 31

2010 because of the seven properties acquired during 2011 and the full year of income from our property

acquired in December 2010 partially offset by the lost rental income from two of our properties which are

now vacant

Interest income from mortgage notes receivable decreased for the year ended December 31 2011 as

compared to the year ended December 31 2010 as our only mortgage loan was fully repaid in July 2010

Tenant recovery revenue increased slightly for the
year

ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2010 because of an increase in insurance premiums from 2010 resulting in increased

reimbursements from our tenants

Operating Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to

the year ended December 31 2010 because we acquired seven properties in 2011 and full year of

depreciation was recorded from our property acquired in December 2010
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Property operating expenses
consist of franchise taxes management fees insurance ground lease payments

and overhead expenses paid on behalf of certain of our properties Property operating expenses increased

during the
year

ended December 31 2011 as compared to the
year

ended December 31 2010 because of

overhead expenses for which we are now responsible which were previously paid directly by our tenants

at our two vacant properties

Due diligence expense primarily consists of legal fees and fees incurred for third-party reports prepared in

connection with potential acquisitions and our due diligence analyses related thereto Due diligence

expense increased for year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended December 31 2010

as result of costs incurred related to the seven properties acquired during 2011 partially offset by an out

of period adjustment of $250000 recorded during 2011 related to the acquisition of the property in Orange

City Iowa in December 2010 See Note to our consolidated financial statements included in Item in

this Form 10-K for further detail of the out of period adjustment

The base management fee increased for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the
year

ended

December 31 2010 due to an increase in total common stockholders equity from the issuance of common

stock during 2011 the main component of the calculation There was no base management fee credit in

2011 as there was in 2010 and we currently do not anticipate having credits to the base management fee in

the future The calculation of the base management fee is described in detail above under Advisory and

Administration Agreements

The incentive fee decreased for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the
year

ended

December 31 2010 due to the increase in common stockholders equity from the issuance of common

stock during 2011 resulting in higher hurdle rate to overcome which is the main component of the

calculation The incentive fee credit increased for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the

year ended December 31 2010 because of the increase in the amount of common stock dividends paid in

2011 which resulted in larger portion of the incentive fee required to be credited The calculation of the

incentive fee is described in the detail above under Advisory and Administration Agreement

The administration fee decreased for the
year

ended December 31 2011 as compared to the
year

ended

December 31 2010 primarily as result of decrease in the amount of the total expenses allocated from

our Administrator during the periods partially offset by an increase in our allocable portion of the total

expenses The calculation of the administration fee is described in detail above under Advisory and

Administration Agreements

General and administrative expenses decreased for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the

year ended December 31 2010 primarily due to the write-off of approximately $1.6 million of fees and

expenses
incurred in relation to the termination of the private offering of unregistered senior common stock

in 2010

Other Income and Expense

Interest income on employee loans decreased during the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to

the year ended December 31 2010 This decrease was result of loan payoffs made by employees of our

Adviser during 2010 and 2011 coupled with other principal repayments made during the periods

Other income decreased during the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2010 because of $3.3 million in additional income and prepayment fees we received in

connection with the early repayment of our mortgage loan in July 2010

Interest expense increased for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended December

31 2010 This increase was primarily result of an increase in the rate on our $45.2 million mortgage loan

in October 2011 of 0.18% when the mortgage loan was renewed coupled with interest on the $31.7 million

of mortgage debt assumed and issued during 2011 This was partially offset by decrease of 2.3% in the

interest rate charged on our $45.2 million mortgage loan that renewed September 2010 and reduced
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interest expense on our long-term financings from amortizing principal payments made during 2010 and

2011

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders

Net income available to common stockholders increased for the year
ended December 31 2011 as

compared to the year ended December 31 2010 primarily because of the write-off of $1.6 million of fees

related to the termination of the private offering of unregistered senior common stock in 2010 and income

earned from the seven properties acquired during 2011 partially offset by the $3.3 million in additional

income that was recognized during 2010 related to the early repayment of our mortgage loan

comparison of our operating results for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 is below

For the year ended December 31E

2010 2009 $Change %Change

Dollars in Thousands

Operating revenues

Rental income 41180 41514 334 -1%

Interest income frommortgage note receivable 421 760 339 -45%

Tenant recovery revenue 327 335 -2%

Total operating revenues 41928 42609 681 -2%

Operating expenses

Depreciation and amortization 13264 13161 103 1%

Property operating expenses 971 915 56 6%

Due diligence expense 412 41 371 905%

Base management fee 1199 1401 202 -14%

Incentive fee 3480 3239 241 7%

Administration fee 1063 1016 47 5%

leneral and administrative 3408 1494 1914 128%

Total operating expenses before credit fromAdviser 23797 21267 2530 12%

Credit to base management fee 225 225 100%

Credit to incentive fee 158 726 568 -78%

Total operating expenses 23414 20541 2873 14%

Other income expense

Interest income employee loans 151 192 41 -21%

Other income 3326 35 3291 9403%

Interest expense 17063 17895 832 -5%

Total other expense 13586 17668 4082 -23%

Income from continuing operations 4928 4400 528 12%

Discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations
43 43 -100%

Otin on sale of real estate 160 160 -100%

Total discontinued operations 203 203 -100%

Net income 4928 4603 325 7%

Distributions attributable to prefereed
stock 4094 4094 0%

Distributions attributable to senior common stock 20 20 100%

Net income available to common stockholders 814 509 305 60%
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Operating Revenues

Rental income remained relatively flat for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2009 as two of our tenants vacated their respective properties during 2010 slightly

offset by the acquisition of property in December 2010

Interest income from mortgage notes receivable decreased for the year ended December 31 2010 as

compared to the year ended December 31 2009 as our only mortgage loan was fully repaid in July 2010

Tenant recovery revenue decreased slightly for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2009 because one of our tenants that vacated their property during 2010 no longer

reimburses us for insurance expense

Operating Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses remained relatively flat for the year ended December 31 2010 as

compared to the
year

ended December 31 2009 because we only acquired one property in December 2010
which had minimal impact on the expense

Property operating expenses consist of franchise taxes management fees insurance ground lease payments

and overhead expenses paid on behalf of certain of our properties Property operating expenses increased

during the
year

ended December 31 2010 as compared to the
year

ended December 31 2009 because of

overhead insurance and franchise tax expenses for which we are now responsible at the two properties

where our leases expired and the tenants subsequently vacated during 2010

Due diligence expenses primarily consist of legal fees and fees incurred for third-party reports prepared in

connection with potential acquisitions and our due diligence analyses related thereto Due diligence

expenses increased for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to the year ended December 31

2009 due to fees incurred in connection with the acquisition of the property in Orange City Iowa in

December 2010

The base management fee decreased for the
year

ended December 31 2010 as compared to the
year

ended

December 31 2009 due to decrease in total common stockholders equity the main component of the

calculation Total common stockholders equity decreased because distributions to common stockholders

for the year ended December 31 2010 exceeded net income during the period by approximately $7.9

million The calculation of the base management fee is described in detail above under Advisory and

Administration Agreements

The incentive fee increased for the
year ended December 31 2010 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2009 due to the increase in pre-incentive fee FF0 caused by the $3.3 million of additional

income and prepayment fees we received in connection with the early repayment of our mortgage loan

coupled with the decrease in total common stockholders equity The calculation of the incentive fee is

described in detail above under Advisory and Administration Agreements

The administration fee increased for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2009 primarily as result of an increase in the amount of the total
expenses allocated from

our Administrator during the periods The calculation of the administration fee is described in detail above

under Advisory and Administration Agreements

General and administration expenses increased during the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to

the year ended December 31 2009 primarily due to the write-off of approximately $1.6 million of fees and

expenses incurred in relation to the private offering of unregistered senior common stock and related

dividend reinvestment plan discussed in Overview Recent Developments Equity Activities above In

addition we wrote-off approximately $150000 of fees incurred in connection with the filing of our base

registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC in 2007 These fees were written off in September 2010

when we filed new base registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC
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Other Income and Expense

Interest income on employee loans decreased during the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to

the year ended December 31 2009 This decrease was result of loan payoffs made by employees of our

Adviser during 2009 and 2010 coupled with other principal repayments during 2010

Other income increased during the
year

ended December 31 2010 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2009 because of the $3.3 million in additional income and prepayment fees we received in

connection with the early repayment of our mortgage loan in July 2010

Interest expense decreased for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to the
year

ended

December 31 2009 This decrease was primarily result of the approximately 2.3% decrease in the

interest rate charged on our $48.0 million mortgage loan that was renewed in September 2010 coupled

with decrease in the London Interbank Offered Rate or LIBOR from 2009 which reduced our interest

expense
under our Line of Credit and reduced interest expense on our long-tenn financings from

amortizing principal payments made during 2009 and 2010

Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations for the
year

ended December 31 2009 relates to the property that we

sold in July 2009 which was located in Norfolk Virginia

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders

Net income available to common stockholders increased for the year ended December 31 2010 as

compared to the year ended December 31 2009 primarily because of the $3.3 million in additional income

and prepayment fees we received in connection with the early repayment of our mortgage loan in July

2010 partially offset by the write-off of $1.6 million in fees related to the termination of our private

offering of unregistered senior common stock

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our sources of liquidity include cash flows from operations cash and cash equivalents borrowings under

our Line of Credit obtaining mortgages on our unencumbered properties and issuing additional equity

securities Our available liquidity at December 31 2011 was $14.7 million including $3.3 million in cash

and cash equivalents and an available borrowing capacity of $11.4 million under our Line of Credit

Future Capital Needs

We actively seek conservative investments that are likely to produce income in order to pay distributions as

well as attractive long-term capital gains for our stockholders We intend to use the proceeds of future

equity raised and debt capital borrowed to continue to invest in industrial commercial and retail real

property make mortgage loans repurchase shares of our preferred stock on the open market or pay down

outstanding borrowings under our Line of Credit Accordingly to ensure that we are able to effectively

execute our business strategy we routinely review our liquidity requirements and continually evaluate all

potential sources of liquidity Our short-term liquidity needs include proceeds necessary to fund our

distributions to stockholders pay the debt services costs on our existing long-term mortgages and fund our

current operating costs Our long-term liquidity needs include proceeds necessary to grow and maintain

our portfolio of investments

We believe that our available liquidity is sufficient to fund our distributions to stockholders pay the debt

service costs on our existing long-term mortgages and fund our current operating costs in the near term

We further believe that our cash flow from operations coupled with the financing capital available to us in
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the future are sufficient to fund our long-term liquidity needs Additionally to satisfy either our short-term

or long-term obligations or both we may require credits to our management fees that are issued from our

Adviser although our Adviser is under no obligation to provide any such credits either in whole or in part

Equity Capital

Equity capital markets continue to improve As result we were able to raise $3.4 million of common

equity pursuant to our Open Market Sales Agreement with Jefferies during 2010 We have not sold any

common shares under our Open Market Agreement during 2011 however we raised net of offering costs

$14.3 million of common equity in February 2011 and another $22.7 million of common equity in June and

July 2011 We also raised $36.8 million of preferred equity net of offering costs in February 2012 We
used these proceeds to repay portion of the outstanding balance of the Line of Credit to acquire

additional properties and the remainder for general corporate and working capital needs

Currently we have the ability to raise up to $218.7 million of additional equity capital through the sale of

securities that are registered under our universal shelf registration statement on Form S-3 or the Universal

Shelf in one or more future public offerings Of the $218.7 million of available capacity under our

Universal Shelf $21.6 million of common stock is reserved for additional sales under our Open Market

Sale Agreement and $52.3 million is reserved for sales of our Senior Common Stock

Debt Capital

As of December 31 2011 we had 21 fixed-rate mortgage notes payable in the aggregate principal amount

of $286.2 million collateralized by total of 59 properties with terms at issuance ranging from years to

25 years The weighted-average interest rate on the mortgage notes payable as of December 31 2011 was

5.70%

We believe that banks are recommencing their general lending practices and the CMBS market is slowly

returning see the discussion in Overview Business Environment above Specifically we are beginning

to see banks and other non-bank lenders that are willing to issue medium to long-term mortgages between

and 10 years albeit on less favorable terms than were previously available Consequently we are

focused on obtaining mortgages through both regional banks non-bank lenders and CMBS

We have mortgage debt in the aggregate principal amount of $4.4 million payable during 2012 and $58.5

million payable during 2013 The 2012 principal amount payable does not include $45.2 million of balloon

principal payments maturing on one of our long-term mortgages in 2012 however this mortgage has one

remaining annual extension option through 2013 and we intend to exercise this option in 2012 As long as

we are in compliance with certain covenants under the mortgage loan we will be able to exercise the

renewal option and will be required to pay fee of 0.25% of the current outstanding principal balance or

approximately $113000 The mortgage payments due in 2012 are solely comprised of debt amortization

payments We have no balloon principal payments due under any of our other mortgage loans until 2013

and these are not due until the fourth quarter of 2013 however we are initiating conversations with lenders

in advance of these maturities and anticipate being able to extend the maturity dates or refinance with new

lenders We intend to pay the 2012 debt amortization payments from operating cash flow and borrowings

under our Line of Credit

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities during the year ended December 31 2011 was $19.7 million as

compared to net cash provided by operating activities of $18.1 million for the year ended December 31

2010 This increase was primarily result of the $750000 lease modification fee received from the tenant

located in our properties in Georgia in connection with the extension of their lease in January 2011

coupled with rental income received from the seven properties acquired in 2011 This was partially offset

by expenses
incurred during 2010 related to our terminated offering of our unregistered senior common

stock which were not incurred in 2011 two vacancies in our properties during 2011 coupled with the lost

interest income from the repayment of our mortgage loan in 2010 The majority of cash from operating
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activities is generated from the rental payments that we receive from our tenants We utilize this cash to

fund our property-level operating expenses
and use the excess cash primarily for debt and interest payments

on our mortgage notes payable interest payments on our Line of Credit distributions to our stockholders

management fees to our Adviser and other entity-level expenses

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities during the
year

ended December 31 2011 was $46.0 million which

primarily consisted of the acquisition of seven properties in 2011 coupled with tenant improvements

performed at certain of our properties and net payments to our lenders for reserves as compared to net cash

provided by investing activities during the year ended December 31 2010 of $8.1 million which primarily

consisted of the repayment of our $10.0 million mortgage loan partially offset by the acquisition of one

property in 2010 net payments to our lenders for reserves and tenant improvements performed at certain of

our properties

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31 2011 was $22.6 million which

primarily consisted of proceeds from the sale of common stock and borrowings under mortgage notes

payable partially offset by distributions paid to our stockholders principal repayments on mortgage notes

payable and net repayments on our Line of Credit Net cash used in financing activities for the
year

ended

December 31 2010 was $22.2 million which primarily consisted of distributions paid to our stockholders

principal repayments on mortgage notes payable payments for deferred fmancing costs and net repayments

to our Line of Credit partially offset by proceeds from sales of common and senior common stock

Line of Credit

In December 2010 we procured $50.0 million Line of Credit maturing on December 28 2013 with

Capital One N.A serving as revolving lender letter of credit issuer and as an administrative agent and

Branch Banking and Trust Company serving as revolving lender and letter of credit issuer The Line of

Credit originally provided for senior secured revolving credit facility of up to $50.0 million with

standby letter of credit sublimit of up to $20.0 million In January 2012 the Line of Credit was expanded to

$75.0 million Currently ten of our properties are pledged as collateral under our Line of Credit The

interest rate per annum applicable to the Line of Credit is equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate or

LIBOR plus an applicable margin of up to 3.00% depending upon our leverage Our leverage ratio used in

determining the applicable margin for interest on the Line of Credit is recalculated quarterly We are

subject to an annual maintenance fee of 0.25% per year Our ability to access this source of financing is

subject to our continued ability to meet customary lending requirements such as compliance with financial

and operating covenants and our meeting certain lending limits One such covenant requires us to limit

distributions to our stockholders to 95% of our FF0 with acquisition-related costs required to be expensed

under ASC 805 added back to FF0 for covenant purposes In addition the maximum amount that we may
draw under this agreement is based on percentage of the value of properties pledged as collateral to the

banks which must meet agreed upon eligibility standards

When we are able to procure mortgages for these pledged properties the banks will release the properties

from the Line of Credit and reduce the availability under the Line of Credit by the advanced amount of the

released property Conversely as we purchase new properties meeting the eligibility standards we may

pledge these new properties to obtain additional advances under this agreement Our availability under the

Line of Credit will also be reduced by letters of credit used in the ordinary course of business We may use

the advances under the Line of Credit for both general corporate purposes and the acquisition of new

investments

At December 31 2011 there was $18.7 million outstanding under the Line of Credit at an interest rate of

3.0% and $5.6 million outstanding under letters of credit at weighted average interest rate of 2.8% At

December 31 2011 the remaining borrowing capacity available under the Line of Credit was $11.4

million Our ability to increase the availability under our Line of Credit is dependent upon our pledging
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additional properties as collateral Traditionally we have pledged new properties to the Line of Credit as

we arrange for long-term mortgages for these pledged properties Currently only 13 of our properties do

not have long-term mortgages and 10 of those are pledged as collateral under our Line of Credit

Accordingly we have only properties which are unencumbered and which may be pledged as collateral

to increase the borrowing capacity available under the Line of Credit We were in compliance with all

covenants under the Line of Credit as of December 31 2011

Contractual Obligations

The following table reflects our material contractual obligations as of December 31 2011

Payments Due by Period Dollars in Thousands

Contractual Obligations Total 1_ess than Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More than Years

DebtObligations 304893 49631 53900 115215 86147

Interest on Debt Obligations 72316 16894 27830 19824 7768

Operating Lease Obligations 8153 411 825 825 6092

Total 385362 66936 82555 135864 100007

Debt obligations represent borrowings onder our line of credit which represents $18700 sf the debt obligation due in 2013

and mortgage notes payable that were outstanding as of December 312011 The $45233 mortgage note issued in September 2008 matures in October 2012

and we expect to exercise our option to extend the maturity
date until October 2013

Interest on debt obligations includes estimated interest on our borrowings under our line of credit The balance and interest rate on our tine of credit is variable

thus the amount of interest calculated for purposes of this table was based upon rates and balances as of December 31 2011

Operating lease obligations represent the ground lease payments due on our Tulsa Oklahoma Dartmouth Massachusetts and ringfield
Missouri

property

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31 2011
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk includes risks that arise from changes in interest rates foreign currency exchange rates

commodity prices equity prices and other market changes that affect market sensitive instruments The

primary risk that we believe we are and will be exposed to is interest rate risk Five of our fifty-seven leases

contain escalations based on market interest rates and the interest rate on our existing Line of Credit is

variable Although we seek to mitigate this risk by structuring such provisions of our loans and leases to

contain minimum interest rate or escalation rate as applicable these features do not eliminate this risk

We have not entered into any derivative contracts to attempt to further manage our exposure to interest rate

fluctuations

To illustrate the potential impact of changes in interest rates on our net income for the year
ended

December 31 2011 we have performed the following analysis which assumes that our balance sheet

remains constant and that no further actions beyond minimum interest rate or escalation rate are taken to

alter our existing interest rate sensitivity

The following table summarizes the impact of 1% 2% and 3% increase in the one month LIBOR for the

year
ended December 31 2011 As of December 31 2011 our effective average LIBOR was 0.29% thus

1% 2% or 3% decrease could not occur

Dollars in Thousands

Increase to Rental Increase to Interest Net Decrease to

Interest Rate Change Income Expense Net Income

1% Increase to LIBOR 145 145

2% Increase to LIBOR 290 290

3% Increase to LIBOR 435 435

As of December 31 2011 the fair value of our fixed rate debt outstanding was $276.2 million Interest rate

fluctuations may affect the fair value of our fixed rate debt instruments If interest rates on our fixed rate

debt instruments using rates at December 31 2011 had been one percentage point higher or lower the fair

value of those debt instruments on that date would have decreased or increased by $9.2 million and $9.7

million respectively

In the future we may be exposed to additional effects of interest rate changes primarily as result of our

Line of Credit or long-term mortgage debt which we use to maintain liquidity and fund expansion of our

real estate investment portfolio and operations Our interest rate risk management objectives are to limit

the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower overall borrowing costs To

achieve these objectives we will borrow primarily at fixed rates or variable rates with the lowest margins

available and in some cases with the ability to convert variable rates to fixed rates We may also enter

into derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and
caps

in order to mitigate the interest

rate risk on related financial instrument We will not enter into derivative or interest rate transactions for

speculative purposes

In addition to changes in interest rates the value of our real estate is subject to fluctuations based on

changes in local and regional economic conditions and changes in the creditworthiness of lessees and

borrowers all of which may affect our ability to refinance debt if
necessary

61



Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Management on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Finn

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Notes to Financial Statements

Schedule III Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

62



Report of Management on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Rule 3a- 5f and 5d- 15f under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and include those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions

and the dispositions of our assets provide reasonable assurance that our transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with appropriate

authorizations and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on our financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Therefore even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable

assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management we assessed the effectiveness of our

internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations COSO Based on our assessment

management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31
2011

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 has been audited

by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report

which is included herein

February 28 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Gladstone Commercial Corporation

In our opinion the consolidated fmancial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all

material respects
the financial position of Gladstone Commercial Corporation and its subsidiaries at

December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2011 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America In addition in our opinion the financial statement

schedules listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all material respects the information set forth

therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements Also in our opinion

the Company maintained in all material respects effective intemal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys

management is responsible for these financial statements and the financial statement schedule for

maintaining effective intemal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements

on the financial statement schedules and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based

on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal

control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial

reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing

such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and iiiprovide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements
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Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean VA
February 28 2012
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Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Dollars in Thousands Except Share and Per Share Amounts

December31 2011 December31 2010

ASSETS

Real estate at cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Total real estate net

Lease
intangibles

net

Cash and cash
equivalents

Restricted cash

Funds held in escrow

Deterred rent receivable net

Deferred financing costs net

Other assets

442521

53784

388737

37670

3329

2473

4086

12403

3473

976

401017

43659

357358

26747

7062

2288

2621

10373

3326

834

TOTAL ASSETS 453147 410609

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Mortgage notes payable

Borrowings under line of credit

Deferred rent liability net

Asset retirement obligation liability

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Due to Adviser

Other liabilities

285350 259595

18700 27000

3851 2276

3289 3063

1956 2683

965

___________________
3652

Total Liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Series and redeemable preferred stock $0001 par value $25 liquidation preference

2300000 shares authorized and 2150000 shares issued and outstanding at

December31 2011 and December31 2010 respectively

Senior common stock $0.00 par value 7500000 shares authorized and

60290 and 59057 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31 2011 and December31 2010 respectively

Common stock $0.00 par value 40200000 shares authorized and

10945379 and 8724613 shares issued and outstanding at December31

2011 and December31 2010 respectively

Additional paid in capital

Notes receivable employees

Distributions in excess of accumulated earnings

317833 299234

Total Stockholders Equity 135314 111375

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 453147 410609

Refer to Note Related-Party Transactions

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

1188

3499

11

211553

422

75830

174261

963

61934
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Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Data

For the year ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues

Rentalincomo 43632 41180 41514

Interest inconar from mortgage note receivable 421 760

Tenant
recovely

revenue 344 327 335

Totaloperatingrevenues 43976 41928 42609

Operating expenses

Depreciation and atnortization 14149 13264 13161

Property operating expenses
986 971 915

Due diligence expense 700 412 41

Basenatnagenatntlise 1629 1199 1401

Incentive fee 3398 3480 3239

Adnitnisonfee 1024 1063 1016

General and administrative 1497 3408 1494

Total operating expenses beibre credits fromAdviser 23383 23797 21267

Credit to base tnanagenatnt fee 225

Credit to incentive tise 2113 158 726

Total operating expenses 21270 23414 20541

Other incotne expense

Interest inconat employee loans 36 151 192

Other inconat 48 3326 35

Interest expense 17076 17063 17895

Total other expense 16992 13586 17668

hiconat fromcontinuing operations 5714 4928 4400

Discontinued operations

Incotaic from discontinued operations
43

Gain on sale of real estate 160

Total discontinued operations
203

Net inconat 5714 4928 4603

Distributions attributable to preferred stock 4094 4094 4094
Distributions attributable to senior common stock 62 20

Netincomeavallabletoconanatnstockholdera 1558 814 509

Earnings per weighted average
share of common stock basic diluted

Inconic from continuing operations net of dividends attributable to preferred stock 0.15 0.09 0.04

Discontinued operations
0.02

Netinconatavailabletocomtassnstockholders 0.15 0.09 0.06

Weighted average shares of comtaatn stock outstanding

Basic 10237 8576 8563

Diluted 10289 8601 8563

Earningsperweightedaverageshareofseniorcomnatnstock 1.05 0.81

Weighted average shares of senior common stock outstanding basic 59 25

Refer to Note Related-Party Transactions

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Dollars in Thousands

Distributions in

Capital in Notes Excess of Total

Preferred Senior Common Common Excess of Receivable Accumulated Stockholders

Stock Stock Stock Par Value from Employees Earnimp Equity

Balance at December 31 2008 170623 2596 37542 130496

Repayment of principal on

employee notes receivable 46 46

Reclassification of loan balance

to other assets 245 245

Distributiom declared to

common and preferred

stockholders 16939 16939

Net income 4603 4603

Balance at December31 2009 170623 2305 49878 118451

Issuance of senior comnson

stock and common stock net 3882 3882

Repayment of principal on

employeenotesreceivable 1342 1342

Distributions declared to

common senior common and

preferred stockholders 16984 16984

Forfeiture of common stock in

satisfaction of employee note

receivable 244 244

Net income 4928 4928

BalanceatDecember3l20l0 174261 963 61934 111375

Issuanceofcommonstocknet 37292 37294

Repayment of principal on

employeenotmreceivabln
541 541

Distributiom declared to

common senior common and

preferred stockholders 19610 19610

Net income 5714 5714

Balanceat December31 2011 11 211553 422 75830 135314

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Cash paid during year tbr interest

NON-CASH OPERATING INVESTING AND FINANCING INFORMATION

39707

2412

20052

6311

542

58474

66774

17076 17970 16559

Increase in asses retirenarns obligation

Fined rate debt asssaned in conneetino with acquisinom

Forfeiture ofcomnaro stock in satisthetion of employee note receivable

Seninr common dividend issued in the dividend reinvestment program

Reclassificatino of principal on employee note

Leasing commissions included in accounts payable

69 614

11921 10795

244

4$
245

458

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Dollars in Thousands
For the year ended Decenther 31

Cash flows from operating activines

Net income

Adjustments te reconcile net income tenet cash

provided by operating activities

Deprecinlion and atmDrtizstion

Asmelizatinn of deferred financing costs

Ameelizalinn of deferred rent asset and linbaty net

Ameetizatinn of dincosmt and premiamon assumed debt

Asset retirement obligation eapeme

Gain on sale of real estete

Increase decrease in other assets

Increase in deferred rent liability

Increase in deferred rent receivable

Decrease increase in accounts payable aceroed enpemes and amount due Adviser

Decrease increase in other linbfelies

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activines

Real estate investments

Leasing conmisasinm paid

Proceeds from sate of real estate

Principal repayments on mortgage notes receivable

Receipts from lendem thr flasds held in escrow

Payments to lendem thr flails held in escrow

Receipts from tenants the reserves

Payments to tenants from reserves

Increase decrease in restricted cash

Deposits on Ititure acquiainom

Deposits refended

Net cash sued in provided by investing activities

Cash flows fromfinancingactivities

Pmceeds from issuance of equity

Ofibeing costs

norrowings under mortgage notes payable

Principal repayments on mortgage notes payable

Principal repayments on employee notes receivable

Borrowings from line of credit

Repayments on line of credit

Repaysuant
of short-term loan

Increase decrease in security deposits

Payments fer deferred financing costs

Distrfeutiom paid the connsmn senior comnmn and preferred stock

Net cash provided by used in financing activines

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of
year

2011 2010 2009

5714 4925 4603

14149 13264 13172

918 1003 1491

616 684 532
94 II

157 143 144

160

142 389 960

1626

1394 1652 1177

504 348 735

340 363 303

19662 15113 17013

44525 2419 1140

441

1059

10000

1911 1618 1465

3376 1751 1802

2205 2155 4454

2031 2130 4526

155 345 44

250

250 200

46007 8061 907

2350
291

57600

35900

20000

370 25

1065 1192 244

19610 16979 16935

22612 22209 17513

4127

249

2687

1341

32795

35995

3733 3965 1407

7062 3097 4504

3329 7062 3097
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Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars in Thousands Except Share and Per Share Data or Unless Otherwise Indicated

Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Gladstone Commercial Corporation the Company is real estate investment trust REIT that was

incorporated under the General Corporation Laws of the State of Maryland on February 14 2003 primarily

for the purpose of investing in and owning net leased industrial commercial and retail real property and

selectively making long-term industrial and commercial mortgage loans Subject to certain restrictions and

limitations the business of the Company is managed by Gladstone Management Corporation Delaware

corporation the Adviser

Subsidiaries

The Company conducts substantially all of its operations through subsidiary Gladstone Commercial

Limited Partnership Delaware limited partnership the Operating Partnership As the Company

currently owns all of the general and limited partnership interests of the Operating Partnership through

GCLP Business Trust and II as discussed in more detail below the financial position and results of

operations of the Operating Partnership are consolidated with those of the Company

Gladstone Commercial Lending LLC Delaware limited liability company Gladstone Commercial

Lending and subsidiary of the Company was created to conduct all operations related to real estate

mortgage loans of the Company As the Operating Partnership currently owns all of the membership

interests of Gladstone Commercial Lending the financial position and results of operations of Gladstone

Commercial Lending are consolidated with those of the Company

Gladstone Commercial Advisers Inc Delaware corporation Commercial Advisers and subsidiary

of the Company is taxable REIT subsidiary TRS which was created to collect all non-qualifying

income related to the Companys real estate portfolio There has been no such income eamed to date

Since the Company owns 100% of the voting securities of Commercial Advisers the financial position and

results of operations of Commercial Advisers are consolidated with those of the Company

GCLP Business Trust and GCLP Business Trust II each subsidiary and business trust of the Company

were formed under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on December 28 2005 The Company
transferred its 99% limited partnership interest in the Operating Partnership to GCLP Business Trust in

exchange for 100 trust shares Gladstone Commercial Partners LLC transferred its 1% general partnership

interest in the Operating Partnership to GCLP Business Trust II in exchange for 100 trust shares

Out of Period Adjustment

During 2011 the Company recorded adjustments to due diligence expense depreciation and amortization

expense
and to certain balance sheet accounts in connection with the property the Company acquired in

December 2010 As result of these errors the Company understated net income by $250 for the year

ended December 31 2010 or $0.03 per share The Company concluded that these adjustments were not

material to the 2010 results of operations nor to the 2011 results As such these adjustments were recorded

during 2011
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in

the United States or GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods

Actual results could materially differ from those estimates

ReclassfIcations

Certain line items on the consolidated balance sheets consolidated statements of operations and

consolidated statements of cash flows from prior years financial statements have been reclassified to

conform to the current year presentation These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported total

assets total liabilities stockholders equity or net income

Real Estate and Lease Intangibles

The Company records investments in real estate at cost and capitalizes improvements and replacements

when they extend the useful life or improve the efficiency of the asset The Company expenses costs of

repairs and maintenance as such costs are incurred The Company computes depreciation using the straight-

line method over the estimated useful life or 39 years for buildings and improvements to years for

equipment and fixtures and the shorter of the useful life or the remaining lease term for tenant

improvements and leasehold interests

The Company accounts for its acquisitions of real estate in accordance with Accounting Standards

Codification ASC 805 Business Combinations which requires that the purchase price of real estate

be recorded at fair value and allocated to the acquired tangible assets and liabilities consisting of land

building tenant improvements long-term debt and identified intangible assets and liabilities consisting of

the value of above-market and below-market leases the value of in-place leases the value of unamortized

lease origination costs the value of tenant relationships and the value of capital lease obligations based in

each case on their fair values ASC 805 also requires that all expenses related to the acquisition be

expensed as incurred rather than capitalized into the cost of the acquisition as had been the previous

accounting

Managements estimates of fair value are made using methods similar to those used by independent

appraisers e.g discounted cash flow analysis Factors considered by management in its analysis include

an estimate of carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering current market

conditions and costs to execute similar leases The Company also considers information obtained about

each property as result of its pre-acquisition due diligence marketing and leasing activities in estimating

the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired In estimating carrying costs

management also includes real estate taxes insurance and other operating expenses
and estimates of lost

rentals at market rates during the hypothetical expected lease-up periods which primarily range from nine

to eighteen months depending on specific local market conditions Management also estimates costs to

execute similar leases including leasing commissions legal and other related expenses to the extent that

such costs are not already incurred in connection with new lease origination as part of the transaction

The Company allocates purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property by

valuing the property as if it were vacant The as-if-vacant value is allocated to land building and tenant

improvements based on managements determination of the relative fair values of these assets Real estate

depreciation expense on these tangible assets was $10125 $9548 and $9444 for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Above-market and below-market in-place lease values for owned properties are recorded based on the

present value using an interest rate which reflects the risks associated with the leases acquired of the

difference between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place leases and ii

managements estimate of fair market lease rates for the corresponding in-place leases measured over
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period equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of the lease When determining the non-cancelable term

of the lease the Company evaluates if fixed-rate renewal options if any should be included The

capitalized above-market lease values included in the accompanying balance sheet as part of deferred rent

receivable are amortized as reduction of rental income over the remaining non-cancelable terms of the

respective leases Total amortization related to above-market lease values was $336 for the year ended

December 31 2011 and $253 for each of the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The

capitalized below-market lease values included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as part of

deferred rent liability are amortized as an increase to rental income over the remaining non-cancelable

terms of the respective leases Total amortization related to below-market lease values was $952 $937 and

$785 for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The total amount of the remaining intangible assets acquired which consists of in-place lease values

unamortized lease origination costs and customer relationship intangible values are allocated based on

managements evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenants lease and the Companys overall

relationship with that respective tenant Characteristics to be considered by management in determining

these values include the nature and extent of our existing business relationships with the tenant growth

prospects for developing new business with the tenant the tenants credit quality and the Companys

expectations of lease renewals including those existing under the terms of the lease agreement among
other factors

The value of in-place leases and unamortized lease origination costs are amortized to expense over the

remaining term of the respective leases which generally range from 10 to 15 years The value of customer

relationship intangibles which is the benefit to the Company resulting from the likelihood of an existing

tenant renewing its lease are amortized to expense over the remaining term and any anticipated renewal

periods in the respective leases but in no event does the amortization period for intangible assets exceed

the remaining depreciable life of the building Should tenant terminate its lease the unamortized portion

of the above-market and below-market lease values in-place lease values unamortized lease origination

costs and customer relationship intangibles will be immediately charged to the related income or expense

Total amortization
expense

related to these intangible assets was $4024 $3716 and $3728 for the years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Impairment

The Company accounts for the impairment of real estate including intangible assets in accordance with

ASC 360-10-35 Property Plant and Equipment which requires the Company to periodically review the

carrying value of each property to determine if circumstances indicate impairment of the carrying value of

the investment exists or that depreciation periods should be modified If circumstances support the

possibility of impairment the Company prepares projection of the undiscounted future cash flows

without interest charges of the specific property and determines if the investment in such property is

recoverable If impairment is indicated the Company will write down the carrying value of the property to

its estimated fair value

In light of current economic conditions the Company evaluates its entire portfolio each quarter for any

impairment indicators and performed an impairment analysis on those select properties that had an

indication of impairment In performing the analysis the Company considered such factors as the tenants

payment history and financial condition the likelihood of lease renewal business conditions in the industry

in which the tenants operate and whether the fair value of the real estate has decreased The Company

concluded that none of its properties were impaired as of December 31 2011 and will continue to monitor

its portfolio for any indicators that may change this conclusion There have been no impairments

recognized on real estate assets since inception
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash equivalents to be all short-term highly-liquid investments that are both

readily convertible to cash and have maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase except that

any such investments purchased with funds held in escrow or similar accounts are classified as restricted

cash Items classified as cash equivalents include money-market deposit accounts The Companys cash and

cash equivalents at December 31 2011 were primarily held in the custody of two financial institutions and

the Companys balance at times may exceed federally insurable limits

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of security deposits and receipts from tenants for reserves These funds will be

released to the tenants upon completion of agreed upon tasks as specified in the lease agreements mainly

consisting of maintenance and repairs on the buildings and upon receipt by the Company of evidence of

insurance and tax payments For purposes
of the statements of cash flows changes in restricted cash

caused by changes in reserves held for tenants are shown as investing activities Changes in restricted cash

caused by changes in security deposits are reflected in cash from financing activities

Funds Held in Escrow

Funds held in escrow consist of funds held by certain of the Companys lenders for properties held as

collateral by these lenders These funds will be released to the Company upon completion of agreed upon

tasks as specified in the mortgage agreements mainly consisting of maintenance and repairs on the

buildings and when evidence of insurance and tax payments has been submitted to the lenders

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred fmancing costs consist of costs incurred to obtain financing including legal fees origination fees

and administrative fees The costs are deferred and amortized using the straight-line method which

approximates the effective interest method over the term of the secured financing The Company made

payments of $1065 $1192 and $244 for deferred financing costs during the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Total amortization expense related to deferred financing costs is

included in interest expense and was $918 $1002 and $1491 for the years ended December 31 2011
2010 and 2009 respectively

Obligation Under Capital Lease

In conjunction with the Companys acquisition of building in Fridley Minnesota in February 2008 the

Company acquired ground lease on the parking lot of the building which had purchase obligation to

acquire the land under the ground lease at the end of the term in April 2014 for $300 In accordance with

ASC 840-10-25 Leases the Company accounted for the ground lease as capital lease and recorded the

corresponding present value of the obligation under the capital lease The Company recorded total interest

expense related to the accretion of the capital lease obligation of $11 for the year ended December 31 2011

and $12 for the
years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The Company purchased the

parking lot on December 20 2011 for $302 including $2 of legal fees

Revenue Recognition

Rental revenue includes rents that each tenant pays in accordance with the terms of its respective lease

reported evenly over the non-cancelable term of the lease Most of the Companys leases contain rental

increases at specified intervals The Company recognizes such revenues on straight-line basis Deferred

rent receivable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet includes the cumulative difference between

rental revenue as recorded on straight-line basis and rents received from the tenants in accordance with

the lease terms along with the capitalized above-market and below-market in-place lease values of certain

acquired properties Accordingly the Company determines in its judgment to what extent the deferred

rent receivable applicable to each specific tenant is collectable The Company reviews deferred rent
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receivable as it relates to straight line rents on quarterly basis and takes into consideration the tenants

payment history the financial condition of the tenant business conditions in the industry in which the

tenant operates and economic conditions in the geographic area in which the property is located In the

event that the collectability of deferred rent with respect to any given tenant is in doubt the Company

records an allowance for uncollectable accounts or records direct write-off of the specific rent receivable

No such reserves or direct write-offs have been recorded as of December 31 2011 or 2010

Tenant recovery revenue includes payments from tenants as reimbursements for franchise taxes

management fees insurance and ground lease payments The Company recognizes tenant recovery

revenue in the same periods that it incurs the related expenses

Income Taxes

The Company has operated and intends to continue to operate in manner that will allow it to qualifr as

REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and accordingly will not be subject to

federal income taxes on amounts distributed to stockholders except income from foreclosure property

provided that it distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable income to its stockholders and meets certain

other conditions To the extent that the Company satisfies the distribution requirement but distributes less

than 100% of its taxable income the Company will be subject to federal corporate income tax on its

undistributed income

Commercial Advisers is wholly-owned TRS that is subject to federal and state income taxes Though

Commercial Advisers has had no activity to date the Company would account for any future income taxes

in accordance with the provisions of ASC 740 Income Taxes Under ASC 740-10-25 the Company

accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method under which deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases

The Company may recognize tax benefit from an uncertain tax position when it is more-likely-than-not

defined as likelihood of more than 50% that the position will be sustained upon examination including

resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes
based on the technical merits If tax position

does not meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold despite the Companys belief that its filing

position is supportable the benefit of that tax position is not recognized in the statements of operations The

Company recognizes interest and penalties as applicable related to unrecognized tax benefits as

component of income tax expense The Company recognizes unrecognized tax benefits in the period that

the uncertainty is eliminated by either affirmative agreement of the uncertain tax position by the applicable

taxing authority or by expiration of the applicable statute of limitation For the years
ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 the Company did not record any uncertain tax positions

Asset Retirement Obligations

ASC 410 Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligation requires an entity to recognize liability for

conditional asset retirement obligation when incurred if the liability can be reasonably estimated ASC

10-20-20 clarifies that the term Conditional Asset Retirement Obligation refers to legal obligation

pursuant to existing laws or by contract to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or

method of settlement are conditional on future event that may or may not be within the control of the

entity ASC 410-20-25-6 clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate

the fair value of an asset retirement obligation The Company has accrued liability and corresponding

increase to the cost of the related properties for disposal related to all properties constructed prior to 1985

that have or may have asbestos present in the building The liabilities are accreted over the life of the

leases for the respective properties There was $70 and $615 in liabilities accrued in connection with

acquisitions during the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively No such liabilities were

accrued for the year ended December 31 2009 as no acquisitions were made during 2009 The Company

also recorded expenses of $156 $143 and $144 during the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively related to the cumulative accretion of the obligation which is included in general and

administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations Costs of future expenditures for
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obligations are discounted to their present value The aggregate undiscounted obligation on all properties is

$8.5 million and the discount rates used in the calculations ranges from 2.5% to 7.6% The Company does

not expect to make any payments in conjunction with these obligations in each of the next five years

Stock Issuance Costs

The Company accounts for stock issuance costs in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin

SAB Topic 5.A which states that incremental costs directly attributable to proposed or actual offering

of securities may properly be deferred and charged against the gross proceeds of the offering Accordingly

the Company records costs incurred related to its ongoing equity offerings to other assets on its

consolidated balance sheet and ratably applies these amounts to the cost of equity as stock is issued If an

equity offering is subsequently terminated and there are amounts remaining in other assets that have not

been allocated to the cost of the offering the remaining amounts are recorded as an expense on the

consolidated statement of operations

Other Income

The Company records non-operating and unusual or infrequently earned income as other income on its

consolidated statement of operations Accordingly the Company recorded the $3.3 million of prepayment

fees it received in connection with the early payment of its mortgage loan in 2010 as other income

Real Estate Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

ASC 360-10 Property Plant and Equipment requires that the results of operations of any properties

which have been sold or are held for sale be presented as discontinued operations in the Companys

consolidated financial statements in both current and prior periods presented Income items related to held

for sale properties are listed separately on the Companys consolidated income statement Real estate

assets held for sale are measured at the lower of the carrying amount or the fair value less the cost to sell

and are listed separately on the Companys consolidated balance sheet Once properties are listed as held

for sale no further depreciation is recorded

Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 comprehensive income equaled net income

therefore separate statement of comprehensive income is not included in the accompanying Consolidated

Financial Statements

Related-Party Transactions

The Company is externally managed pursuant to contractual arrangements with its Adviser and Gladstone

Administration LLC the Administrator which collectively employ all of the Companys personnel and

pay their salaries benefits and general expenses directly The Company has an advisory agreement with its

Adviser the Advisory Agreement and an administration agreement with its Administrator the

Administration Agreement The management services and administrative fees under the Advisory and

Administration Agreements are described below $1188 and $965 were due to the Adviser as of December

31 2011 and December 31 2010 respectively

Advisory Agreement

The Advisory Agreement provides for an annual base management fee equal to 2% of the Companys total

stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock common stockholders equity and

an incentive fee based on funds from operations FF0 For the years ended December 31 2011 2010

and 2009 the Company recorded base management fee of $1629 $1199 and $1401 respectively The

Advisors Board of Directors voted to give the Company voluntary and irrevocable credit to the base
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management fee for the year ended December 31 2010 of $225 This credit may not be recouped by the

Adviser in the future

For
purposes

of calculating the incentive fee FF0 includes any realized capital gains and capital losses

less any distributions paid on preferred stock and senior common stock but FF0 does not include any

unrealized capital gains or losses The incentive fee rewards the Adviser if the Companys quarterly FF0
before giving effect to any incentive fee pre-incentive fee FF0 exceeds 1.75% or 7% annualized the

hurdle rate of total common stockholders equity The Adviser receives 100% of the amount of the pre
incentive fee FF0 that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than 2.1875% of the Companys common

stockholders equity The Adviser also receives an incentive fee of 20% of the amount of the Companys

pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds 2.1875% of common stockholders equity

For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company recorded an incentive fee of $3398

$3480 and $3239 respectively offset by credit related to an unconditional voluntary and irrevocable

waiver issued by the Adviser of $2113 $158 and $726 respectively resulting in net incentive fee for the

years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 of $1285 $3322 and $2513 respectively The Board of

Directors of the Company accepted the Advisers offer to waive on quarterly basis portion of the

incentive fee for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 in order to support the current level of

distributions to the Companys stockholders This waiver may not be recouped by the Adviser in the future

Administration Agreement

Pursuant to the Administration Agreement the Company pays for its allocable portion of the

Administrators overhead expenses in performing its obligations to the Company including but not limited

to rent and the salaries and benefits of its personnel including its chief financial officer chief compliance

officer internal counsel treasurer investor relations and their respective staffs The Companys allocable

portion of
expenses

is derived by multiplying the Administrators total allocable
expenses by the

percentage of the Companys total assets at the beginning of each quarter in comparison to the total assets

of all companies managed by the Adviser under similar agreements For the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 the Company recorded an administration fee of $1024 $1063 and $1016

respectively

Dealer Manager Agreement

In connection with the offering of the Companys Senior Common Stock see Note Stockholders

Equity for further details the Company entered into Dealer Manager Agreement dated March 25 2011

the Dealer Manager Agreement with Gladstone Securities LLC the Dealer Manager pursuant to

which the Dealer Manager agreed to act as the Companys exclusive dealer manager in connection with the

offering The Dealer Manager is an affiliate of the Company as its parent company is controlled by

Mr David Gladstone the Companys Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to the terms of the

Dealer Manager Agreement the Dealer Manager is entitled to receive sales commission in the amount of

7.0% of the gross proceeds of the shares of senior common stock sold plus dealer manager fee in the

amount of 3.0% of the gross proceeds of the shares of Senior Common Stock sold The Dealer Manager in

its sole and absolute discretion may re-allocate all of its selling commissions attributable to participating

broker-dealer and may also re-allocate portion of its Dealer Manager fee earned in respect of the proceeds

generated by the participating broker-dealer to any participating broker-dealer as non-accountable

marketing allowance In addition the Company has agreed to indemnif the Dealer Manager against

various liabilities including certain liabilities arising under the federal securities laws The company made

$5 of payments during 2011 to the Dealer Manager pursuant to this agreement

Earnings per Share of Common Stock

The following tables set forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock for

the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 The Company computed basic earnings per share for

the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 using the weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the periods Diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31 2011 2010
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and 2009 reflects additional shares of common stock related to our convertible senior common stock that

would have been outstanding if dilutive potential shares of common stock had been issued as well as an

adjustment to net income available to common stockholders as applicable to common stockholders that

would result from their assumed issuance

Calculation of basic earnings per share of common stock

Forthe vearended December 31E

2011 2010 2009

Net income available to common stockholders 1558 814

Denominator for basic weighted average
shares of common stock in thousands 10237 8576 8563

Basic
earnings per

sham ofcomnxn stock

Calculation of diluted earmngs per
share of comon stock

0.15 0.09 0.06

1558 814

62 20

1620 834 509

10237 8576 8563

52 25

10289 8601 8563

0.15 0.09 0.06

The following table sets forth the components of the Companys investments in real estate including

capitalized leases as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

Real estate

Building and improvements

Tenant improvements

Accumulated depreciation

Real estate net

December 31 2010

55158

335576

10283

43659

357358

Includes land held under capital lease carried at $1100

509

Net income available to common stockholders

Add Income impact of assumed conversion of senior common stock

Net income available to common stockholders plus assumed conversions

Denominator forbasic weighted average shares of common stock in thousands

Effect of convertible senior common stock

Denominator for diluted weighted average shares of common stock in thousands

Diluted earnings per share of common stock

Real Estate and Intangible Assets

Real Estate

509

Land

December31 2011

60602

367605

14314

53784

388737
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During the
year

ended December 31 2011 the Company acquired seven properties which are summarized

below

Total

Lease Purchase Acquistion Debt Annualized Straight

Location Acquisition Date Square Footage Term Renewal Options Price Expenses Issued/Assumed Line Rent

Hickosy NC 4/4/2011 60000 years years each 10650 59 N/A 1045

Springfield MO 6/20/2011 78421 10 years years each 15850 55 11584 1422

Boston Heights OH 10/20/2011 25000 10
yeals 33 years each 4375 56 N/A 377

ParsippanyNJ 10/28/2011 60111 15 years 13 years 11075 390 7200 1112

Dartn02UthMA 11/18/2011 16340 75 years N/A 5802 56 4352 414

Springfield MO 12/13/2011 14560 62
years

N/A 2650 42 N/A 221

Pittsburgh PA 12/28/2011 26080 15 years years each 4200 140 N/A 400

Tenant has the right to terminate the lease evely years in years 26-75

Tenant has the right to terminate the lease every years in years 19-62

In accordance with ASC 805 the Company determined the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities

assumed related to the seven properties acquired luring the year ended December 31 2011 as follows

Tenant In-place Customn AboveMaaket BelowMaeket Prnniumon TotalPnrchase

Land Building InWravenrnts Lonnet Lansing Contn Rnlationnhts Leases Leases Annund Debt P4cc

Hickny Nonh Carolina 1163 5567 1038 736 559 616 97 10650

Spebag5eldMioaoueit 1700 11626 413 1174 572 702 337 15850

Boston Heights Ohio 449 2403 605 399 229 288 4375

PanippanyNewJeeey 1696 5980 1070 1053 1103 746 573 11075

Daetnsnuth Massachusetts 4085 150 671 913 25 5802

Optiagfield Misaoui 2228 47 259 307 111 302 2650

Pittnbnegh Pennsylvania 281 2896 267 359 255 142 4296

5289 34787 3590 84651 3938 2613 971 909 337 54602

97Thn Conany paid $4.3 nillinn in tush forthiu property the eanroiniag $11.6 nillion wns fitndnd with thcunnnand nrottgagnd debt

Below is summary of the total revenue and net income recognized on each of the seven properties

acquired during the year ended December 31 2011

Rental revenue for
Net income fbr the

the year ended year ended December

Location Acquisition Date December 31 2011 31 201

HickoryNC 4/4/2011 693359 309574

Springfield MO 6/20/2011 754670 485824

Boston Heights OH 10/20/2011 73928 30947

ParsippanyNJ 10/28/2011 203933 123934

DartmouthMA 11/18/2011 74124 18326

Springfield
MO 12/13/2011 16106 5609

Pittsburgh PA 12/28/2011 4296 2346

Does not include interest expense or acquisition related costs that are required to be expensed

under ASC 805
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The weighted average amortization period for the intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed during

the
year ended December 31 2011 were as follows

Intangible assets Years

In-place leases 16.4

Leasing costs 16.4

Customer relationships 19.2

Above market leases 8.8

Below market leases 20.9

All intangible assets 17.1

Future operating lease payments from tenants under non-cancelable leases excluding tenant reimbursement

of expenses as of December 31 2011 for each of the five succeeding fiscal
years

and thereafter is as

follows

Tenant

Year Lease Payments

2012 44948

2013 40579

2014 36536

2015 32573

2016 28143

Thereafter 197939

In accordance with the lease terms substantially all tenant expenses are required to be paid by the tenant

however the Company would be required to pay property taxes on the respective properties and ground

lease payments on its three properties that are on ground lease in the event the tenants fail to pay them

The total annualized property taxes for all properties owned by the Company at December 31 2011 were

$7284 and the total annual ground lease payments were $411

On January 31 2011 the Company extended the lease with its tenant occupying its properties located in

Decatur Georgia Lawrenceville Georgia Sneliville Georgia Covington Georgia and Conyers Georgia

The lease covering all of these properties was extended for an additional five year period thereby

extending the lease until December 2031 The lease was originally set to expire in December 2026 The

lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of

$1616 Furthermore the lease grants the tenant four options to extend the lease for period of five years

each In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease

the tenant paid $750 to the Company This lease modification fee was recorded to deferred rent liability in

the consolidated balance sheet and is being amortized to rental income over the life of the lease

On May 15 2011 the Company re-leased its previously vacant building located in South Hadley

Massachusetts for period of six months and the tenant had three-month extension option In February

2012 the tenant signed new lease with term expiring in January 2013 with one-year extension option

On June 23 2011 the Company extended the lease with its tenant occupying its properties located in

Angola Indiana and Rock Falls Illinois The lease covering these properties was extended for an

additional three year period thereby extending the lease until August 2023 The lease provides for

prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of $345

Furthermore the lease grants the tenant three options to extend the lease for period of five
years

each In

connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease the

Company provided tenant allowance of $150 payable over one year period

79



Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes the carrying value of intangible assets and the accumulated amortization

for each intangible asset class

December31 2011 December31 2010

Accumulated Accumulated

Lease Intangibles Amortization Lease Intangibles Amortization

In-place leases 24620 10181 17011 8362

Leasing costs 15013 5663 10764 4685

Customer relationships 20725 6844 17636 5617

60358 22688 45411 18664

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years and thereafter is

as follows

Estimated

Year Amortization Eqense

2012 7308

2013 3831

2014 3546

2015 3148

2016 2570

Thereafter 17267

Real Estate Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

As of June 30 2009 the Company classified its property in Norfolk Virginia as held for sale under the

provisions of ASC 360-10 which requires that the results of operations of any properties which have been

sold or are held for sale be presented as discontinued operations in the Companys consolidated financial

statements in both current and prior periods presented On July 17 2009 the Company sold this property

for $1200 and recognized gain on the sale of approximately $160

The table below summarizes the components of income from discontinued operations

For the year ended December31

2011 2010 2009

Operating revenue 56

Operating eqense 13

Gain on sale of real estate 160

Income from discontinued

operations 203
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Mortgage Note Receivable

On April 15 2005 the Company originated mortgage loan in the amount of $10.0 million that was

collateralized by an office building located in McLean Virginia in which the Companys Adviser and

Administrator are subtenants The mortgage loan was originally scheduled to mature in May 2017 but in

July 2010 this mortgage was fully repaid The Company received $3.3 million of additional income and

prepayment fees in connection with the early payment which was recorded as other income in the

consolidated statement of operations

Mortgage Notes Payable and Line of Credit

The Companys mortgage notes payable and the Companys line of credit the Line of Credit as of

December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 are summarized below

Principal
Balance

Outstanding

Date of

Issuance/
Principal

Stated Interest Rate at

Assumption MaturityDate December31 2011 December31 2011 December31 2010

Fixed-Rate Mortge Notes Payable

09/15/08 10/01/12 4.76% 45233 48015

02/21/06 12/01/13 5.91% 8845 9022

02/21/06 06/30/14 5.20% 18345 18740

08/25/05 09/01/15 5.33% 20431 20771

09/12/05 09/01/15 5.21% 12019 12209

12/21/05 12/08/15 5.71% 18448 18728

09/06/07 12/11/15 5.81% 4219 4292

03/29/06 04/01/16 5.92% 16871 17000

04/27/06 05/05/16 6.58% 13409 13720

08/29/08 06/01/16 6.80% 6019 6162

06/20/11 06/30/16 6.08% 11505

11/22/06 12/01/16 5.76% 13761 13954

12/22/06 01/01/17 5.79% 21037 21330

02/08/07 03/01/17 6.00% 13775 13775

06/05/07 06/08/17 6.11% 14240 14240

10/15/07 11/08/17 6.63% 15278 15474

11/18/11 11/01/18 4.50% 4352

12/06/11 12/06/19 6.00% 8500

10/28/11 11/01/21 6.00% 7190

12/15/10 12/10/26 6.63% 10402 10795

03/16/05 04/01/30 6.33% 2314 2642

Contractual Fixed-Rate Mortgage Notes Payable 286193 260869

Premiums and Discounts net 843 1274

Total Fixed-Rate Mortgage Notes Payable 285350 259595

Variable-Rate Line ofCredit 12/28/10 12/27/13 LIBOR2.75% 18700 27000

Total Mortgage Notes Payable and Line of Credit 304050 286595

The vnsiglttedsverase Internet rate on all debt outstanding at December 31 2011 tans appronlmately 5.56%

This note han one assert extessioe option remains initich gives the Company the ahitity to extend the term of the note instil October

2013

Mortgage Notes Payable

As of December 31 2011 the Company had 21 fixed-rate mortgage notes payable collateralized by total

of 59 properties The parent company has limited recourse liabilities that could result from any one or more

of the following circumstances borrower voluntarily filing for bankruptcy improper conveyance of

property fraud or material misrepresentation misapplication or misappropriation of rents security

deposits insurance proceeds or condemnation proceeds or physical waste or damage to the property

resulting from borrowers gross negligence or willful misconduct The Company will also indemnify
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lenders against claims resulting from the
presence

of hazardous substances or activity involving hazardous

substances in violation of environmental laws on property The weighted-average interest rate on the

mortgage notes payable as of December 31 2011 was 5.70%

The Company had $45233 of balloon principal payments maturing under one of its long-term mortgages in

2011 however the mortgage has two annual extension options through 2013 and the Company exercised

one of these options on September 30 2011 In connection with the exercise of the option the interest rate

reset from 4.58% to 4.76% through September 30 2012 At the time of notification of the extension the

Company remitted fee of 0.25% of the outstanding principal balance or approximately $113 which is

recorded as deferred financing cost in the Companys consolidated balance sheet The Company also

remitted certification to the lender that its aggregate debt service coverage ratio is not less than 1.2 thus

the Company was in compliance with all covenants under the mortgage loan The interest rate for the one

additional extension period will adjust based upon the one-year swap rate at the time of extension and

fixed spread of 4.4 1% and the Company would be required to remit another fee of 0.25% of the current

outstanding principal balance

The fair value of all fixed-rate mortgage notes payable outstanding as of December 31 2011 was $276246

as compared to the carrying value stated above of $286193 The fair value is calculated based on

discounted cash flow analysis using interest rates based on managements estimate of market interest rates

on long-term debt with comparable terms

On June 20 2011 we assumed approximately $11584 of indebtedness pursuant to long-term note

payable from PNC Bank in connection with the Companys acquisition on the same date of property

located in Springfield Missouri The note accrues interest at rate of 6.08% per year and we may not

repay this note prior to the last two months of the term or we would be subject to substantial prepayment

penalty The note matures on June 30 2016

On October 28 2011 we borrowed $7200 pursuant to long-term note payable from The Provident Bank

which is collateralized by security interest in our Parsippany New Jersey property which we acquired on

the same date The note accrues interest at rate of 6.00% per year and we may not repay
this note prior to

the last two years of the term or we would be subject to substantial prepayment penalty The note has

maturity date of November 2021

On November 18 2011 we borrowed $4352 pursuant to long-term note payable from Liberty Bank

which is collateralized by security interest in our Dartmouth Massachusetts property which we acquired

on the same date The note accrues interest at rate of 4.50% per year and we may not repay this note prior

to the last three months of the term or we would be subject to substantial prepayment penalty The note

has maturity date of November 2018 with three year extension period through November 2021

On December 2011 we borrowed $8500 pursuant to long-term note payable from Great Southern

Bank which is collateralized by security interest in our Tulsa Oklahoma property The note accrues

interest for the first five years at rate of 6.00% per year after the fifth year the rate is based on the prime

rate with floor of 6.00% portion of this note $2000 is full recourse to the Company We may not

repay this note prior to December 2015 or we would be subject to substantial prepayment penalty

The note has maturity date of December 2019
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Scheduled principal payments of mortgage notes payable as of December 31 2011 for each of the five

succeeding fiscal years
and thereafter are as follows

Scheduled principal

Year payments

2012 49631

2013 13263

2014 21937

2015 55809

2016 59406

Thereafter 86147

286193

The $45.2 million mortgage note issued in
September

2008 xss extended on

September 30 2011 for an additional year The Company expects to exercise the

sdditional option to extend the maturity date until October 2013

Line of Credit

In December 2010 the Company procured $50000 Line of Credit with Capital One N.A serving as

revolving lender letter of credit issuer and an administrative agent and Branch Banking and Trust

Company serving as revolving lender and letter of credit issuer which matures on December 28 2013

The Line of Credit originally provided for senior secured revolving credit facility of up to $50000 with

standby letter of credit sublimit of up to $20000 In January 2012 the Line of Credit was expanded to

$75000 see Note 11 Subsequent Events for further details Currently ten of the Companys properties

are pledged as collateral under its Line of Credit The interest rate per annum applicable to the Line of

Credit is equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate or LIBOR plus an applicable margin of up to 3.00%

depending upon the Companys leverage The leverage ratio used in determining the applicable margin for

interest on the Line of Credit is recalculated quarterly The Company is subject to an annual maintenance

fee of 0.25% per year The Companys ability to access this source of financing is subject to its continued

ability to meet customary lending requirements such as compliance with financial and operating covenants

and its meeting certain lending limits One such covenant requires the Company to limit distributions to its

stockholders to 95% of our FF0 with acquisition-related costs required to be expensed under ASC 805

added back to FF0 In addition the maximum amount the Company may draw under this agreement is

based on percentage of the value of properties pledged as collateral to the banks which must meet agreed

upon eligibility standards

If and when long-term mortgages are arranged for these pledged properties the banks will release the

properties from the Line of Credit and reduce the availability under the Line of Credit by the advanced

amount of the released property Conversely as the Company purchases new properties meeting the

eligibility standards it may pledge these new properties to obtain additional availability under this

agreement The availability under the Line of Credit will also be reduced by letters of credit used in the

ordinary course of business The Company may use the advances under the Line of Credit for both general

corporate purposes and the acquisition of new investments

At December 31 2011 there was $18700 outstanding under the Line of Credit at an interest rate of 3.0%

and $5550 outstanding under letters of credit at weighted average interest rate of 2.75% At December

31 2011 the maximum amount the Company may draw was $35686 leaving remaining borrowing

capacity available under the Line of Credit of $11436 The Company was in compliance with all

covenants under the Line of Credit as of December 31 2011 The amount outstanding on the Line of

Credit as of December 31 2011 approximates fair value because the debt is short-term
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Stockholders Equity

Distributions

The Companys Board of Directors declared the following distributions per share for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

For the year ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Common Stock 1.500 1.500 1.500

Senior Common Stock 1.0500 0.7875

Series Preferred Stock 1.9374996 1.9374996 1.9374996

Series Preferred Stock 1.8750 1.8750 1.8750

For federal income tax purposes distributions paid to stockholders may be characterized as ordinary

income capital gains return of capital or combination of the foregoing There were no capital gains

during the last years The characterization of distributions during each of the last three
years

is reflected

in the table below

Ordinaiy Income Return of Capital

Common Stock

For the year ended December 31 2009 6.04080% 93.95920%

For the year ended December31 2010 15.76540% 84.23460%

For the year ended December31 2011 16.62560% 83.37440%

Senior Common Stock

For the year ended December 31 2009 N/A N/A

For the year ended December 31 2010 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December31 2011 100.00000% 0.00000%

Series Preferred Stock

For the year ended December 31 2009 lOO.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December 31 2010 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December 31 2011 100.00000% 0.00000%

Series Preferred Stock

For the year ended December31 2009 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December31 2010 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December 31 2011 100.00000% 0.00000%

There was no Senior Common Stock outstanding during the year ended December 31 2009

Recent Activity

On February 2011 the Company sold 725000 shares of its common stock at $18.35 per share in an

underwritten public offering of its common stock The Company also granted the underwriters 30-day

option to purchase up to 108750 shares of common stock on the same terms and conditions to cover over-

allotments On February 11 2011 the underwriters exercised their option to purchase an additional

108750 shares of common stock The net proceeds including the over-allotment after deducting the

underwriting discount and offering expenses were $14325 The Company used the proceeds of the

offering to
repay portion of the outstanding balance under its Line of Credit and for general corporate

purposes

On June 15 2011 the Company sold 1200000 shares of its common stock at $17.55 per share in an

underwritten public offering of its common stock The Company also granted the underwriters 30-day

option to purchase up to 180000 shares of common stock on the same terms and conditions to cover over

allotments On July 2011 the underwriters exercised their option to purchase an additional 174000
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shares of common stock The net proceeds including the over-allotment after deducting the underwriting

discount and offering expenses were $22705 The Company used the proceeds of the offering to repay

portion of the outstanding balance under its Line of Credit and for general corporate purposes

The Company has an open market sale agreement or the Open Market Sale Agreement with Jefferies

Company Inc or Jefferies under which it may from time to time offer to sell shares of its common stock

with an aggregate sales price of up to $25000 on the open market through Jefferies as agent or to

Jefferies as principal As of December 31 2011 the Company had sold 192365 shares with net proceeds

of $3400 and has remaining capacity to sell up to $21600 of common stock under the Open Market Sale

Agreement with Jefferies The program was not utilized during 2011

In March 2011 the Company commenced an offering of an aggregate of 3500000 shares of its senior

common stock par value $0.00 per share at price to the public of $15.00 per share of which 3000000

shares are intended to be offered pursuant to the primary offering and 500000 shares are intended to be

offered pursuant to the Companys senior common distribution reinvestment plan the DRIP The

Company however reserves the right to reallocate the number of shares being offered between the primary

offering and the DRIP To date the Company has sold 11933 shares of senior common stock in this

ongoing offering

Notes to Employees

The following table is summary of all outstanding notes issued to employees of the Adviser for the

exercise of stock options

Number of Strike Price Ansunt of Outstanding Balance Outstanding Balance

Optiona of Options Promissory Note of Enloyee Loans at of Employee Loans at Maturity Date Interest Rate

Date Issued Exercised Exercised Issued to Fn9loyees December31 2011 December31 2010 of Note on Note

Sep
2004 25 15.00 375 11 20 Sep 2013 5.00%

Apr2006 12 16.10 193 Apr2015 7.77%

May 2006 50 16.85 843 531 May 2016 7.87%

May 2006 16.10 32 32 32 May 2016 7.87%

Nov 2006 25 15.00 375 375 375 Nov 2015 8.15%

114 1818 422 963

In accordance with ASC 505-10-45-2 Equity receivables from employees for the issuance of capital

stock to employees prior to the receipt of cash payment should be reflected in the balance sheet as

reduction to stockholders equity Therefore these notes were recorded as full recourse loans to employees

and are included in the equity section of the accompanying consolidated balance sheets As of December

31 2011 each loan maintained its full recourse status
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Pro Forma Financial Information unaudited

The Company acquired seven properties during the year ended December 31 2011 The following table

reflects pro-forma condensed consolidated statements of operations as if the properties were acquired as of

the beginning of the periods presented

For the year ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Operating Data

Total operating revenue 47456 47233 47971

Total operating expenses 23544 26829 23968

Other expense 18054 15251 19174

Net income 5858 5153 4829

Dividends attributable to preferred and senior common stock 4156 4114 4094

Net income available to common stockholders 1702 1039 735

Share and Per Share Data

Basiceamingspershareofcommonstock 0.17 0.12 0.09

Diluted earnings per share of common stock 0.17 0.12 0.09

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 10237 8576 8563

Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 10289 8601 8563
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10 Quarterly Financial Information unaudited

The following table reflects the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended

December 31 2011 September 302011 June 302011 March 31 2011

Operating revenues 11468 11173 10816 10519

Operating expenses 5895 5183 5255 4937

Otherexpense 4457 4242 4191 4102
Incomo fromcontinuing operations 1116 1748 1370 1480

Discontinued operations

Net incon 1116 1748 1370 1480

Dividends attributable to preferred and senior common stock 1040 1039 1039 1038
Net incomo available to common stockholders 76 709 331 442

Net incomo available to common stockholders basic 0.01 0.06 0.03 0.05

Net incomo available to common stockholders diluted 0.01 0.06 0.03 0.05

Weighted average shares outstanding basic 10945 10936 9782 9258

Weighted average shares outstanding -diluted 10997 10988 9834 9310

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended

December 31 2010 September 302010 June 302010 March 31 2010

Operating revenues 10228 10334 10681 10685

Operating expenses 5421 7282 5350 5361

Other expense 3999 1024 4325 4238
1ncon fmm continuing operations 808 2028 t006 1086

Discontinued operations

Net incon 808 2028 1006 1086

Dividends attnbutable to prefened and senior common stock 1041 1027 1023 1023
Net incon available to common stockholders 233 1001 17 63

Net incomo available to conamn stockholders basic 0.04 0.12 0.00 0.01

NetinconavailabletocommonstoclrJiolders-diluted 0.04 0.12 0.00 0.01

Weighted average shares outstanding basic 8638 8563 8545 8559

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted 8689 8577 8547 8559
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11 Subsequent Events

On January 10 2012 the Companys Board of Directors declared the following monthly distributions

Common Stock Series Preferred Series Preferred

Record Date Payment Date Distributions per Share Distributions per Share Distributions per Share

January232012 January3l2012 0.125 0.1614583 0.15625

February2l2012 February292012 0.125 0.1614583 0.15625

March222012 March3O2012 0.125 0.1614583 0.15625

Senior Common Stock Cash Distributions

Payable to the

Holders or Record

During the Month of Payment Date Distribution per Share

January February 2012 0.0875

February March 72012 0.0875

March April 92012 0.0875

On January 25 2012 the Company acquired 52130 square foot office building located in Ashbum

Virginia for $10775 excluding related acquisition expenses of $98 The Company funded this acquisition

using borrowings from its Line of Credit Independent Project Analysis Inc an energy consultant is the

tenant in this building and has leased the property for 15 years
and has options to renew the lease for

additional periods of years each The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the

lease with annualized straight line rents of $989

On January 31 2012 the Company amended its Line of Credit to increase the current maximum

availability of credit under the Line of Credit from $50.0 million to $75.0 million The Line of Credit was

arranged by Capital One N.A as administrative agent and Branch Banking and Trust Company as an

additional lender Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania joined the Line of Credit as an additional lender All

other terms of the agreement remained the same In connection with this amendment the Company paid

$125 amendment fee

On February 2012 the Company completed public offering of 1.4 million shares of 7.125% Series

Term Preferred Stock par
value $0.00 per share Term Preferred Stock at public offering price of

$25.00 per
share Gross proceeds totaled $35000 and net proceeds of the offering after deducting

underwriting discounts and offering expenses
borne by the Company were $33400 and were used to repay

portion of outstanding borrowings under the Companys Line of Credit and for acquistions of real estate

On February 2012 the underwriters notified the Company of their intent to exercise their option to

purchase an additional 140000 shares of the Companys Term Preferred Stock to cover over-allotments

which resulted in net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts of $3360 received by the Company

on February 10 2012 which will be used for working capital The shares are traded under the ticker

symbol GOODN on the NASDAQ The Term Preferred Stock is not convertible into the Companys

common stock or any other security of the Company Generally the Company may not redeem shares of

the Term Preferred Stock prior to January 31 2016 except in limited circumstances to preserve
its status as

REIT On or after January 31 2016 the Company may redeem the shares at redemption price of $25

per share plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends to and including the date of redemption The shares

of the Term Preferred Stock have mandatory redemption date of January 31 2017 The Term Preferred

Stock will be recorded as liability in accordance with ASC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity

which states that mandatorily redeemable financial instruments should be classified as liabilities On

February 2012 the Company declared monthly cash distributions of $0 1484375 per share on the Term

Preferred Stock for each of the months of February and March 2012

On February 2012 the Company repaid in full the mortgage on its property located in Canton North

Carolina in the amount of $2276 This mortgage note had been in hyper amortization since February of
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2010 and thus the Company did not incur any prepayment penalties associated with the early repayment

The maturity date of this mortgage was April 2030

On February 13 2012 the Company extende4 the lease with the tenant occupying its property located in

South Hadley Massachusetts The lease covering this property was extended for an additional
one-year

period thereby extending the lease until January 2013 The lease was originally set to expire in February

20 12 The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight

line rents of approximately $256 Furthermore the lease grants the tenant one option to extend the lease

for an additional year

On February 14 2012 the Company extended the lease with the tenant occupying its property located in

San Antonio Texas The lease covering this property was extended for an additional eight-year period

thereby extending the lease until November 2021 The lease was originally set to expire in February 2014

The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line

rents of approximately $785 Furthermore the lease grants the tenant two options to extend the lease for

period of five years each In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain

terms under the lease the Company provided tenant allowance of $603 payable over two years and paid

$327 in leasing commissions

On February 27 2012 the Company extended the lease with the tenant occupying its property located in

Roseville Minnesota The new lease covers approximately one-third of this property and was extended for

an additional five year period thereby extending the lease until December 2017 The lease was originally

set to expire in December 2012 The tenant in this property will pay rent on the entire building through the

end of 2012 and the Company continues to search for new tenants to lease the remainder of the building

The new lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight

line rents of $1257 Furthermore the lease grants the tenant one option to extend the lease for period of

five years In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the

lease the Company provided tenant allowance of $413 payable over two years and paid $767 in leasing

commissions
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GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION
SCHEDULE III REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

DECEMBER 31 2011 Dollars in Thousands

Initial Cost Total Cost

Costs Capitalized

Buildings Subsequent to Buildings
Accumulated Date

Location of Property Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisition Land hnprovements Total Depreciation
Net Real Estate Acquired

Raleigh North Carolina

Office Building 4939 960 4481 960 4481 5441 1362 4079 12/23/2003

Canton Ohio

OfflceWarehouseBuilding 2816 186 3083 186 3083 3269 697 2572 1/30/2004

Akron Ohio

OfflceLaboratory Building 7217 1973 6771 285 1973 7056 9029 1372 7657 4/29/2004

Charlotte North Carolina

Office Building 6b90 /40 n423 60 741 8483 9224 1655 7569 6/30/2004

Canton North Carolina

CommercialManufacturingBuilding 2314 150 5050 150 5050 5200 968 4232 7/6/2004

Snyder Township Pennsylvania

CommercialWarehouseBuilding 5462 100 6574 169 100 6743 6843 1264 5579 8/5/2004

Lexington North Carolina

CommercialWarehouseBuilding 2771 820 2107 820 2113 2933 402 2531 8/5/2004

Austm Texas

OfficeBuilding 6500 1000 6296 46 1000 6342 7342 1217 6125 9/16/2004

Mt Pocono Pennsylvania

CommercialManufacturingBuilding 5113 350 5819 18 350 5837 6187 1095 5092 10/15/2004

San Antonio Texas

FlexibleOfficeBuilding 6982 843 7514 22 843 7536 8379 1757 6622 2/10/2005

Columbus Ohio

tndustnal Building 2n55 410 2385 410 2385 2795 425 2370 2/10/2005

Big Flats New York

Industrial Building 5587 275 6459 34 275 6493 6768 1124 5644 4/15/2005

Wichita Kansas

OfficeBuilding 8129 1525 9703 67 1525 9770 11295 1756 9539 5/18/2005

Arlington Texas

WarehouseBakery Building 4008 636 3695 416 636 4111 4747 663 4084 5/26/2005

Dayton Ohio

Office Building 1984 525 1877 120 525 1997 2522 506 2016 6/30/2005

Eatontown New Jersey

OfficeBuilding 4545 1351 3520 403 1351 3923 5274 674 4600 7/7/2005

FrankIng Township New Jersey

OfficeWarehouseBuilding 6739 1632 6200 1632 6200 7832 1033 6799 7/11/2005

Duncan South Carolina

OfficeWarehouseBuilding 11005 783 10790 1629 783 12419 13202 2023 11179 7/14/2005

Duncan South Carolina

ManufacturingBuilding 2735 195 2682 405 195 3087 3282 503 2779 7/14/2005

Hazelwood Missouri

OfficeWarehouse Building 2360 763 2309 30 763 2339 3102 402 2700 8/5/2005
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GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION
SCHEDULE III REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Continued

DECEMBER 31 2011 Dollars in Thousands

Initial Cost Total Cost

Costs Capitalized

Buildings Subsequent to Buildings
Accumulated

Date

Location of Property Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisition Land Improvements Total Depreciation Net Real Estate Acquired

Angola Indiana

IndustrialBuilding 571 66 1075 49 66 1124 1190 177 1013 9/2/2005

Angola Indiana

IndustrialBuilding 1142 132 1130 51 132 1181 1313 186 1127 9/2/2005

Rock Falls Illinois

IndustrialBuilding 305 35 1113 50 35 1163 1198 183 1015 9/2/2005

Newburyport Massachusetts

Industrial Building 6593 629 6504 1847 629 8351 8980 1219 7761 10/17/2005

Clmtonville Wisconsin

Industrial ManufacturingBuilding 3263 55 4717 55 4717 4772 768 4004 10/31/2005

Maple Heights Ohio

IndustrialBuilding 10332 1609 10065 1124 1609 11189 12798 2013 10785 12/21/2005

Richmond Virginia

Industrial Building 5275 736 5336 36 736 5372 6108 878 5230 12/30/2005

Toledo Ohio

IndustrialBuilding 2889 263 2812 40 263 2852 3115 507 2608 12/30/2005

South Hadley Massachusetts

Industrial Building 471 2765 10 471 2775 3246 417 2829 2/15/2006

Champaign Illinois

Office Building 1667 687 2036 687 2038 2725 342 2384 2/21/2006

Champaign Illinois

Office Building 3268 1347 3992 1347 3996 5343 670 4672 2/21/2006

Champaign Illinois

Office Building 7042 842 2495 842 2497 3339 419 2920 2/21/2006

Champaign Illinois

Office Building 1868 770 2281 770 2283 3053 383 2670 2/21/2006

Roseville Minnesota

Office Building 18345 2588 25290 2588 25290 27878 4633 23245 2/21/2006

Burnsville Minnesota

OfficeBuilding 11556 3511 8746 3511 8746 12257 1678 10579 5/10/2006

Menomonee Falls Wisconsin

Industrial Building 6940 625 6911 57 625 6968 7593 995 6598 6/30/2006

Baytown Texas

OfficeBuilding 2000 221 2443 221 2443 2664 396 2268 7/11/2006

Sterling Heights Michigon

IndustrialBuilding 2735 8606 13 2735 8619 11354 1166 10188 9/22/2006

Birmingham Alabama

Industrial Building 612 2326 612 2326 2938 321 2617 9/29/2006

Montgomery Alabamat4t

Industrial
Building 222 844 222 844 1066 t6 950 9/29/2006
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GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION

SCHEDULE Ill REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Continued

DECEMBER 31 2011 Dollars in Thousands

Initial Cost Total Cost

Costs Capitalized

Buildings Subsequent to Buildings
Accumulated Date

Location of Property
Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisition Land improvements Total Depreciation

Net Real Estate Acquired

Columbia Missouri

Industrial Building
146 555 146 555 701 77 624 9/29/2006

Mason Ohio

Office Building 5357 797 6258 48 797 6306 7103 1014 6089 1/5/2007

Raleigi North Carolina

IndustrialBuilding
5401 1606 5513 1606 5513 7119 707 6412 2/16/2007

Tulsa Oklahoma

Manufacturingtsuilding 8500 14057 14057 14057 2043 12014 3/1/2007

Hialeah Florida

Industrial Building
3562 6672 273 3562 6945 10507 844 9663 3/9/2007

Tewksbury Massachusetts

IndustrialBuilding iiiS 5593 1395 8893 10288 1142 l46 S17/20fl7

Mason Ohio

Retail Building 4764 1201 4961 1201 4961 6162 580 5582 7/1/2007

Cicero New York

Industrial Building
4219 299 5019 299 5019 5318 556 4762 9/6/2007

Grand Rapids Michigan

Office Building 9152 1629 10500 1629 10500 12129 1226 10903 9/28/2007

Boilingirook
Illinois

IndustrialBuilding 4929 1272 5003 1272 5003 6275 583 5692 9/28/2007

Decatur Georgia

Office Building 3257 784 3245 784 3245 4029 354 3676 12/13/2007

Decatur Georgia

OfficeBuilding
851 205 848 205 848 1053 93 960 12/13/2007

Decatur Georgia

Office Building 1068 257 1064 257 1064 1321 116 1205 12/13/2007

Lawrenceville Georgia

Office Building 2820 679 2809 679 2809 3488 307 3181 12/13/2007

Snellville Georgia

Office Building 732 176 729 176 729 905 80 825 12/13/2007

Covinon Georgia

Office Building
963 232 959 232 959 1191 105 1085 12/13/2007

Cumming Georgia

Office Building 3066 738 3055 738 3055 3793 334 3459 12/13/2007

Conyers Georgia

Office Building 1233 2Q7 1228 297 1228 1525 134 1391 12/13/2007

Reading Pennsylvania

Industrial Building 5216 491 6202 491 6202 6693 626 6067 1/29/2008

Fridley Minnesota

Office Building 1354 8074 1383 8074 9457 1112 8345 2/26/2008
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Location of Property

Concord Township Ohio

Industrial Building

Pineville North Carolina

Industrial Building

Marietta Ohio

Industrial Building

Chalfont Pennsylvania

Industrial Building

Orange City Iowa

Office and Warehouse Building

Hickory NC

Office Building

Springfield MO
Office Building

Boston Heights OH

Office Building

Paraippany NJ

Office Building

Bartmouth MA

Retail Location

Springfield MO
Retail Location

Pittsburgh PA

Office Building

GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION
SCHEDULE III REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

DECEMBER 31 2011 Dollars in Thousands

Initial Cost
Total Cost

Encumbrances land

1796

2128 669

4464 829

6019 1249

Iil4il2 132

1163

11505 1700

449

7190 1696

4152

nuildings

Improvements

11154

3028

6607

6420

9383

6605

12038

3010

7077

4236

2275

Accumulated

Total
Depreciation Net Real Estate

12940 1154 11786

3703 294 3409

7645 7070

7669 663 7006

6118 193 5925

Costs Capitalized

Subsequent to Buildings

Acquisition land Improvements

1786 11154

669 3034

209 829 6816

1249 6420

3522 257 5861

1163 6605

1700 12838

449 3010

1696 7077

4236

2275

Date

Acquired

331/2006

430/2008

8292008

8/29/2008

127/2010

4/4/2011

6/20/2011

10/20/2011

10/27/2011

11/18/2011

12/1 3/2011

12/28/2011

7768

13738

3459

8773

423s

2275

225 7543

191 13547

26 3433

47 8726

14 4222

2271

281 3205 281 3205 3486 3485

286193 60457 377907 4011 60602 381919 442521 53784 388737

The aggregate cost for land and building unprsvements fur federal incsme tax purposes is the same as the solal gross cost uf land and
building improvements

Bepreciable life of all buildings is 39 years Beprecmble life sf all imprevemeuts is the shorter of the useful life of the insets or the life sf the respective leases on each building which
range

frsm 20 years
Refer to Nose out of period adjuslmeist

4t
These properties were pledged as borrowing base assets under the line of credit
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The following table reconciles the change in the balance of real estate during the
years

ended December 31

20112010 and 2009 respectively Dollars in Thousands

Balance at beginning of period

Additions

401017 390754 390562

Acquisitions during period 43735

Improvements or other additions 1164

Deductions

8901

1362 1140

Dispositions during period
948

Purchase price adjustments _________________

Balance at end ofperiod 442521

Adjustment to Orange City Iowa property acquired in December 2010 property purchase price Refer to Note

out of period adjustment

The following table reconciles the change in the balance of accumulated depreciation during the years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Dollars in Thousands

Balance at beginning of period

Additions during period

Dispositions during period

Balance at end of period

2010

34112

9547

43659

2009

24757

9446

91

34.1 12

2011 2010 2009

401.017 390754

2011

43659

10125

53784
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Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31 2011 our management including our chief executive officer and chief fmancial

officer evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures
Based on that evaluation management including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer

concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31 2011 in providing
reasonable level of assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit

under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in applicable SEC rules and forms including providing reasonable level of assurance that information

required to be disclosed by us in such reports is accumulated and communicated to our management
including our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure However in evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures

management recognized that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can

provide only reasonable assurance of necessarily achieving the desired control objectives and management
was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and

procedures

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Refer to Managements Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting located in Item of this Form
10-K

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

Refer to the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm located in Item of this Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter
ended December 31 2011 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

We will file definitive Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the 2012 Proxy

Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than

120 days after December 31 2011 Accordingly certain information required by Part III has been omitted

under General Instruction G3 to Form 10-K Only those sections of the 2012 Proxy Statement that

specifically address the items set forth herein are incorporated by reference

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2012 Proxy Statement

under the captions Election of Directors Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

and Code of Ethics

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2012 Proxy Statement

under the captions Executive Compensation and Director Compensation

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

The information required by Item 12 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2012 Proxy Statement

under the caption Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2012 Proxy Statement

under the captions Transactions with Related Persons and Information Regarding the Board of Directors

and Corporate Governance

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2012 Proxy Statement

under the captions Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm Fees and Pre-Approval Policy and

Procedures
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS REPORT

The following financial statements are filed herewith

Report of Management on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Notes to Financial Statements

Financial statement schedules

Schedule III Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation is filed herewith

Schedule IV Mortgage Loans on Real Estate is filed herewith

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or because the required information is

included in the financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report or hereby incorporated by reference to exhibits

previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form

S-il File No 333-106024 filed June 112003

3.1.1 Articles Supplementary of the Registrant Establishing and Fixing the Rights and

Preferences of 7.75% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.3 of the Registrants Form 8-A12G File No 000-50363 filed

January 19 2006

3.1.2 Articles of Amendment to Articles Supplementary of the Registrant Establishing and Fixing

the Rights and Preferences of 7.75% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Registrants Form 8-K filed on April 13

2006

3.1.3 Articles Supplementary of the Registrant Establishing and Fixing the Rights and

Preferences of the 7.5% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.4 of the Registrants Form 8-A12B File No 000-50363 filed

October 19 2006

3.1.4 Articles of Amendment to Articles of Amendment and Restatement to Articles of

Incorporation of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to the

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed July 30 2009

3.1.5 Articles Supplementary of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 19 2010

3.1.6 Articles Supplementary of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 2010

3.1.7 Articles Supplementary of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 2010

3.1.8 Articles Supplementary Establishing and Fixing the Rights and Preferences of the 7.125%

Series Cumulative Term Preferred Stock incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of

Form 8-K FileNo 00 1-33097 filed January 25 2012

3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration

Statement on Form 5-11 File No 333-106024 filed June 11 2003

3.2.1 First Amendment to Bylaws of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed July 10 2007

4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock of the Registrant incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-il File No 333-106024

filed August 2003

4.2 Form of Certificate for 7.75% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock of the

Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrants Form 8-Al 2G File

No 000-50363 filed January 19 2006

4.3 Form of Certificate for 7.50% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock of the
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Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrants Form 8-A12B File

No 00 1-33097 filed October 19 2006

4.4 Form of Certificate for 7.125% Series Cumulative Term Preferred Stock of Gladstone

Commercial Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Current Report on

Form 8-A12B File No 333-128783 filed January 31 2012

10.1 Promissory Note between Key Bank National Association and CMIO4 Canton NC LLC
dated March 14 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Quarterly Report on

Form 0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2005 File No 000-50363 filed May 2005

10.2 Loan Agreement between AFLO5 Duncan SC LLC and Little Arch Charlotte NC LLC and

Bank of America N.A dated as of August 25 2005 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed August 29

2005

10.3 Promissory Note between AFLO5 Duncan SC LLC and Little Arch Charlotte NC LLC and

Bank of America N.A dated as of August 25 2005 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 of the Current RepOrt on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed August 29

2005

10.4 Mortgage and Security Agreement between 260 Springside Drive Akron OH LLC and JP

Morgan Chase Bank N.A dated as of September 12 2005 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.6 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed September 13

2005

10.5 Fixed Rate Note between 260 Springside Drive Akron OH LLC and JP Morgan Chase

Bank N.A dated as of September 12 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of

the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed September 13 2005

10.6 Loan Agreement between PZO5 Maple Heights OH LLC WMIO5 Columbus OH LLC and

OB Crenshaw GCC LP and Countrywide Commercial Real Estate Finance Inc dated as

of December 21 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed December 22 2005

10.7 Promissory Note between PZO5 Maple Heights OH LLC WMIO5 Columbus OH LLC and

OB Crenshaw GCC LP and Countrywide Commercial Real Estate Finance Inc dated as

of December 21 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed December 22 2005

10.8 First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Gladstone Commercial

Limited Partnership incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed February 2006

10.9 Mortgage and Absolute Assignment of Rents and Leases and Security Agreement and

Fixture Filing between Stonewater Dox Funding LLC and Wells Fargo Bank National

Association dated as of November 21 2003 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of

the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed February 24 2006

lOJO Assumption Agreement between Stonewater Dox Funding LLC Stonewater Funding LLC
ACIO6 Champaign IL LLC Gladstone Commercial Corporation and LaSalle Bank National

Association dated as of February 21 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 of

the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed February 24 2006

10.11 Promissory Note Secured by Mortgage between Stonewater Dox Funding LLC and Wells

Fargo Bank National Association dated as of November 21 2003 incorporated by
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reference to Exhibit 10.22 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed

February 24 2006

10.12 Mortgage Assignment of Rents and Security Agreement between Stonewater Funding LLC

and Greenwich Capital Financial Products Inc dated as of May 12 2004 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed

February 24 2006

10.13 Loan Assumption Agreement between Stonewater UIS Funding LLC Stonewater Funding

LLC and UCO6 Roseville MN LLC Gladstone Commercial Corporation and LaSalle Bank

National Association dated as of February 21 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.25 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed February 24 2006

10.14 Promissory Note between Stonewater UIS Funding LLC and Greenwich Capital Financial

Products Inc dated as of May 12 2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the

Current Report on Form 8-K File No 000-50363 filed February 24 2006

10.15 Loan Agreement between IXIS Real Estate Capital Inc and 2525 Woodlawn Vstrm

Wichita KS LLC C105 Clintonville WI LLC and MSIO5-3 LLC dated as of April 27

2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

File No 000-50363 filed May 2006

10.16 Promissory Note between IXIS Real Estate Capital Inc and 2525 Woodlawn Vstrm

Wichita KS LLC CIO5 Clintonville WI LLC and MSIO5-3 LLC dated as of April 27

2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

File No 000-50363 filed May 2006

10.17 Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership Schedule 4.2a2 to First Amended and

Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership Designation of 7.50% Series Cumulative

Redeemable Preferred Units incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed October 25 2006

10.18 Deed of Trust Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security Agreement between First Park

Ten COCO San Antonio L.P and CIBC Inc dated as of November 22 2006 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed

November 28 2006

10.19 Deed of Trust Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security Agreement between SLEE

Grand Prairie L.P and CIBC Inc dated as of November 22 2006 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed

November 28 2006

10.20 Deed of Trust Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security Agreement between OB

Midway NC Gladstone Commercial LLC and CIBC Inc dated as of November 22 2006

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-

33097 filed November 28 2006

10.21 Promissory Note First Park Ten COCO San Antonio L.P SLEE Grand Prairie L.P and

OB Midway NC Gladstone Commercial LLC and CIBC Inc dated as of November 22

2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File

No 001-33097 filed November 28 2006

10.22 Mortgage Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security Agreement between HMBFO5

Newburyport MA LLC and CIBC Inc dated as of December 22 2006 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed
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December 28 2006

10.23 Open-end Mortgage Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security Agreement between

SVMMC05 Toledo OH LLC and CIBC Inc dated as of December 22 2006 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed

December 28 2006

10.24 Mortgage Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security Agreement between TCIO6

Burnsville MN LLC and CIBC Inc dated as of December 22 2006 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed

December 28 2006

10.25 Promissory Note between HMBFO5 Newburyport MA LLC SVMMCO5 Toledo OH LLC

and TCIO6 Burnsville MN LLC and CIBC Inc dated as of December 22 2006

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-

33097 filed December 28 2006

10.26 Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement between Gladstone Commercial

Corporation and Gladstone Management Corporation dated January 2007 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed

January 2007 renewed on July 12 2011

10.27 Administration Agreement between Gladstone Commercial Corporation and Gladstone

Administration LLC dated January 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of

the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed January 2007 renewed on

July 12 2011

10.28 Open Market Sale Agreement by and among Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership and Jefferies Company Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed

November 2009

10.29 Amendment to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of

the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 29 2010

10.30 Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership Schedule 4.2a3 to First Amended and

Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership Designation of Senior Common Units

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April

29 2010

10.31 Amended and Restated Dealer Manager Agreement dated December 22 2009 by and

between Gladstone Commercial Corporation and Halcyon Capital Markets LLC
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K File No
00 1-33097 filed on February 24 2010

10.32 Amended and Restated Dealer Manager Agreement effective as of December 22 2009 by

and between Gladstone Commercial Corporation and Halcyon Capital Markets LLC
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K File

No 001-33097 filed on February 24 2010

10.33 Credit Agreement dated as of December 28 2010 by and among Gladstone Commercial

Limited Partnership Gladstone Commercial Corporation each of the financial institutions

initially signatory thereto together with their successors and assignees under Section 12.6

thereof and Capital One N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current
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Report on Form 8-K filed December 30 2010

10.34 Form of Second Amendment to Credit Agreement and Omnibus Amendment of Loan

Documents incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed January 31 2012

10.35 Second Amendment to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

the Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2012

10.36 Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership Schedule 4.2a4 to First Amended and

Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership Designation of 7.125% Series Cumulative

Term Preferred Units incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed February 2012

11 Computation of Per Share Earnings from Operations included in the notes to the audited

financial statements contained in this Report

12 Statements re computation of ratios included in Selected Financial Data contained in this

Form 10-K

14 Gladstone Commercial Corporation Code of Business Conduct and Ethics dated October

11 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K File

No 000-50363 filed October 12 2005

21 List of Subsidiaries of Gladstone Commercial Corporation filed herewith

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP filed herewith

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of The Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 furnished herewith

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101 SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

The following financial information of the Registrant is included for the year ended December 31

2011 formatted in XBRL eXtensible Business Reporting Language Consolidated Balance Sheets ii
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Consolidated Statements of Operations iii Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity iv

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not

filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for purposes
of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act

of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of

1934 as amended and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections

103



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Date February 28 2012 By Is Danielle Jones

Danielle Jones

Chief Financial Officer

Date February 28 2012 By /s/ David Gladstone

David Gladstone

Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacity and on the dates indicated

Date February 28 2012 By /s/ David Gladstone

David Gladstone

ChiefExecutive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors

principal executive officer

Date February 28 2012 By /s/ Terry Lee Brubaker

Terry Lee Brubaker

Vice Chairman Chief Operating Officer and Director

Date February 28 2012 By /s/ George Stelljes III

George Stelijes Iii

President Chiefnvestment Officer and Director

Date February 28 2012 By /s/ Danielle Jones

Danielle Jones

Chief Financial officer

principal financial and accounting officer

Date February 28 2012 By /s/ David A.R Dullum

David A.R Dulkim

Director

104



Date February 28 2012 By Is Anthony Parker

Anthony Parker

Director

Date February 28 2012 By Is Michela English

Michela English

Director

Date February 28 2012 By Is Paul Adelgren

Paul Adelgren

Director

Date February 28 2012 By Is John Outland

John Outland

Director

Date February 28 2012 By Is Gerard Mead

Gerard Mead

Director

Date February 28 2012 By Is John Reilly

John Reilly

Director
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Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION

Delaware

2525 Woodlawn Vstrm Wichita KS LLC
260 Springside Drive Akron OH LLC
ACIO6 Champaign IL LLC
ACO7 Lawrenceville GA LLC

AFLO5 Duncan SC LLC
AFLO5 Duncan SC Member LLC
AFR1 Parsippany NJ LLC

APMLO7 Hialeah FL LLC
CBP1 Green Tree PA GP LLC
CBP1 Green Tree PA L.P

C08 Fridley MN LLC

CDLCIO7 Mason OH LLC
C105 Clintonville WI LLC
CMIO4 Canton NC LLC
CMSO6-3 LLC
COCOO4 Austin TX L.P

COCOO4 Austin TX GP LLC

Corning Big Flats LLC
D08 Marietta OH LLC
DBP 107 Bolingbrook IL LLC
Dorval Property Trust

EE 208 South Rogers Lane Raleigh NC LLC
EEO7 Raleigh NC L.P

EEO7 Raleigh NC GP LLC
E107 Tewksbury MA LLC
ELFO8 Florida LLC
First Park Ten COCO San Antonio L.P

First Park Ten COCO San Antonio GP LLC
FMCTO8 Chalfont PA GP LLC
FMCTO8 Chalfont PA LP

FS 11 Hickory NC GP LLC
FS 11 Hickory NC LP

FTCH 107 Grand Rapids MI LLC
GBIO7 Syracuse NY LLC
GCC Acquisition Holdings LLC

GCC Dorval LLC
GCC Granby LLC
Gladstone Commercial Advisers Inc

Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership

Gladstone Commercial Partners LLC

Gladstone Commercial Lending LLC

GSM LLC

Granby Property Trust

HMBFO5 Newburyport MA LLC
Little Arch 04 Charlotte NC Member LLC
Little Arch Charlotte NC LLC
MPIO6 Mason OH LLC
MSIO5.-3 LLC
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NJTO6 Sterling Heights MI LLC

NWO5 Richmond VA LLC

OB Crenshaw GCC L.P

OB Crenshaw SPE GP LLC

OB Midway NC Gladstone Commercial LLC

0S08 Winchester VA LLC

Pocono PA GCC GP LLC

Pocono PA GCC L.P

PZO5 Maple Heights OH LLC

RBO8 Concord OH LLC

RCO6 Menomonee Falls WI LLC

RCOGO7 Georgia LLC

RPTO8 Pineville NC GP LLC

RPTO8 Pineville NC LP

SCC1O Orange City IA LLC

SJMHO6 Baytown TX GP LLC

SJMHO6 Baytown TX L.P

SLEE Grand Prairie L.P

SRFFO8 Reading PA GP LLC
SRFFO8 Reading PA LP

STIO5 Franklin NJ LLC

SVMMCO5 Toledo OH LLC

TCIO6 Burnsville MN LLC

TMC1 Springfield MO LLC

UCO6 Roseville MN LLC

WC1 Springfield MO LLC

WEC1 Dartmouth MA LLC

WMIO5 Columbus OH LLC

WMIO5 Hazeiwood MO LLC

WPIO7 Tulsa OK LLC

YCCO6 South Hadley MA LLC

YorkTCO5 Eatontown NJ LLC

Ohio

Hemingway at Boston Heights LLC

Massachusetts

GCLP Business Trust

GCLP Business Trust II

Nova Scotia

3094174 Nova Scotia Company
3094175 Nova Scotia Company
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Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 No 333-

169290 of Gladstone Commercial Corporation of our report dated February 28 2012 relating to the

financial statements financial statement schedules and the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting which
appears

in this Form 10-K

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean VA
February 28 2012
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

David Gladstone certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-l5e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15f and 15d15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report

that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent flmctions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 28 2012

Is David Gladstone

David Gladstone

Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Danielle Jones certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the fmancial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13al5f and 15d15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report

that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit connnittee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 28 2012

Is Danielle Jones

Danielle Jones

Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned the Chief Executive Officer of Gladstone Commercial Corporation the Company
hereby certifies on the date hereof pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350a as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
2011 Form 0-K filed concurrently herewith by the Company fuily complies with the requirements of

Section 13a or Section 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and that the

information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and

will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request

Dated February 28 2012

Is David Gladstone

David Gladstone

Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned the Chief Financial Officer of Gladstone Commercial Corporation the Company
hereby certifies on the date hereof pursuant to 118 U.S.C 1350a as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31

2011 Form 10-K filed concurrently herewith by the Company fully complies with the requirements of

Section 13a or Section 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and that the

information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the fmancial condition and

results of operations of the Company

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and

will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request

Dated February 28 2012

Is Danielle Jones

Danielle Jones

Chief Financial Officer
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GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors and

Executive Officers

David Gladstone

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive
Officer

Terry Lee Brubaker

Vice Chairman
of

the Board

Chief Operating Officer
and

Secretary

George Chip Stelijes III

Director President and Chief Investment Officer

David A.R Dullum

Director and President of Gladstone Investment

Corporation

Paul Adeigren

Director and Pastor of Missionary Alliance Church

Michela English

Director President and

Chief Executive
Officer of Fight for

Children

Gerard Mead

Director Founder and Chairman
of

the Board
of

Gerard Mead
Capital Management

John Outland

Director and Private Investor

Anthony Parker

Director Founder and

Chairman
of

Parker Tide Corp

Jack Reilly

Director and President of

Reilly Investment Corporation

Gladstone Management

Team Members

Arthur Buzz Cooper

Managing Director

Chris Daniel

Managing Director

John Freall

Managing Director

Laura Gladstone

Managing Director

Lud Kimbaugh
Managing Director

Chris Massey

Managing Director

David Meier

Managing Director

Robert Pierce

Managing Director

John Sateri

Managing Director

Jennifer Simpson

Managing Director

Stock Exchange Listing

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market under the symbol GOOD

Our preferred stocks trade on the NASDAQ

Global Select Market under the symbols

GOODN GOODO and GOODP

Transfer Agent

Computershare

Shareowner Services LLC

480 Washington Blvd

Jersey City NJ 07310

Stockholder Inquiries

Website www.bnymellon.com/

shareowner/equity access

Toll Free Dedicated Number

1-877-296-3711

Foreign Stockholders

1-201-680-6578

TDD Hearing Impaired

1-800-231-5469

TDD Foreign Stockholders

1-201-680-6610

Financial Information

Stockholders may receive copy of our Annual

Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on

Form 10-Q by contacting us or going to our

website at www.gladstonecommercial.com the

SECs website at www.SEC.gov or by visiting

the SEC at 100 Street NE Washington

DC 20549

Other Executive Officers

Danielle Jones

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Legal Counsel

Bass Berry Sims PLC

Dickstein Shapiro LLP

Company Website

www.gladstonecommercial.com

This 2011 Annual Report contains forward-

looking
statements Such forward-looking statements

can generally
be

identified by our use of forward-

looking terminology such as may will

expect intend anticipate estimate

believe continue or other similar words

Readers
of

this 2011 Annual Report should be

aware that there are various factors that could

cause actual results to
differ materially from any

forward-looking statements made in this report

Factors that could cause or contribute to such

differences include but are not limited to changes

in general economic and business conditions

industry trends changes in government rules and

regulations including changes in tax laws and

environmental rules and
regulations Accordingly

readers are cautioned not to
place

undue reliance

on these forward-looking statements which speak

only as of
the date

of
this 2011 Annual Report

Jacoby

Office mascot and

officiattreeter at

the McLean VA

headquarters
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